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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
AHMEDABAD BENCH
C A (CAA) NO 63 (AHM) of 2023
In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013
And
In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 read with Sections 66 and 52 and
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
And
In the matter of Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Absorption) of
Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (“Transferor
Company”) with Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private
Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders
(“Scheme”).

Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited

CIN: U29190GJ2016PTC093223

a company incorporated under the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013, having its registered office at

C-803, Safal Parivesh, Prahaladnagar, Ahmedabad

380015 in the state of Guijarat. ... Applicant Transferor Company

NOTICE CONVENING THE MEETING OF UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited

To,
The Unsecured Creditors of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited

TAKE NOTICE that by an order dated 13" December 2023, the Ahmedabad Bench of the National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”) has directed a meeting to be convened and held of
Unsecured Creditors of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (the Transferor
Company) for the purpose of considering, and, if thought fit, approving, with or without modification,
the Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Absorption) Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private
Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT in pursuance of the said order and as directed therein further
notice is hereby given that the meeting of Unsecured Creditors of Yizumi Precision Machinery
(India) Private Limited will be held on Monday, 29" January 2024 at 11.00 a.m. IST through Video
Conferencing (“Meeting”) at which time the said Unsecured Creditors are requested to attend.

The following resolution will be considered and if thought fit, be passed, with or without
modification(s) :

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the National
Company Law Tribunal Rules, 2016, and subject to any provision of any other Applicable law /
statute and in accordance with the relevant clauses of the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association of the Company and subject to the approval of the Hon’ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“NCLT" or “Tribunal”) and approval of such other
Regulatory / Statutory / Government authority (ies), as may be necessary or as may be directed
by the NCLT or such other competent authority(ies), as the case may be, approval of the
Unsecured Creditors of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation (by way of Absorption) Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited
(“Transferor Company”) with Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
(“Transferee Company”) and their respective Shareholders and Creditors.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter called the
‘Board’, which term shall be deemed to include any person (s) authorized and / or Committee
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which the Board may have constituted or hereinafter constitute to exercise its powers including
the powers conferred by this Resolution), be and are hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds,
matters and things, as may be considered requisite, desirable, appropriate or necessary to give
effect to this resolution and effectively implement the Scheme and to accept such modifications,
amendments, limitations and/or conditions, if any, (including withdrawal of the Scheme), which
may be required or directed by the NCLT while sanctioning the Scheme or by any authorities
under law or as may be required for the purpose of resolving any doubts or difficulties that may
arise in giving effect to the Scheme, as the board of directors may deem fit and proper.”

The Applicant Company has appointed CDSL for providing VC/OAVM facility and e-voting facility
for the meeting of unsecured creditors.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT you may attend and vote at the said meeting in person or through
Authorised Representative in case of corporate creditor.

TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that

a) in compliance with the provisions of (i) MCA Circulars; (ii) Sections 108 and 230 of the
Companies Act read with the rules framed there under and Regulation 44 and other
applicable provisions Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited has provided the
facility of voting by e-voting so as to enable the Unsecured Creditors to consider and approve
the Scheme by way of the aforesaid resolution. Accordingly, voting by Unsecured Creditors
of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited to the Scheme shall be carried out
through e voting at the time of the meeting to be held on 29" January 2024.

b) in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act and the Order passed by NCLT, (a)
the aforesaid Notice, (b) the Scheme, (c) the explanatory statement under Sections 230(3),
232(1) and (2) and 102 of the Companies Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and any other applicable
provisions of Companies Act and the rules made there under, and (d) the enclosures as
indicated in the Index (collectively referred to as “Particulars”), are being sent (i) through
electronic mode to those Unsecured Creditors whose e-mail IDs are registered with Yizumi
Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited and (ii) through registered post or speed post or
courier, physically to those Unsecured Creditors who have not registered their e-mail ids with
Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited . The aforesaid Particulars are being sent
to all the Unsecured Creditors whose names appear in the records of the Company as on
30" November 2023.

¢ copies of the aforesaid Particulars can be obtained free of charge, between 11.00 a.m. to
1.00 p.m. on all working days, at the registered office of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India)
Private Limited, up to the date of the Meeting, or from the office of its advocates, Mrs. Swati
Saurabh Soparkar, 301, Shivalik 10, Opp. SBI Zonal Office, S.M. Road, Ambawadi,
Ahmedabad-380015, Gujarat.

d Hon’ble NCLT has appointed Dr. Deepti Mukesh, to be the Chairperson of the Meeting
including for any adjournment or adjournments thereof;

e) the Scheme, if approved at the Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent approval by the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench.

TN Ramesh

S N sd Varadan

i

a-?§

Bl

[

Dated : 22"d December, 2023 % 5| Authorised Director
! /£ Mr. Ramesh Varadan
%@;s DIN: 01940261
Registered Office: —_—

C-803, Safal Parivesh, Prahaladnagar, Ahmedabad
380015 in the state of Gujarat

NOTES:

a) A copy of the explanatory statement, under Sections 230(3), 232(1) and (2) and 102 of the
Companies Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and any other applicable provisions of Companies Act and the
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rules made there under, the Scheme and the other enclosures as indicated in the Index are
enclosed.

Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited has extended the e-voting facility for its
Unsecured Creditors to enable them to cast their votes electronically. The instructions for e-
voting are appended to the Notice. In case of e-voting, the votes should be cast in the manner
described in the instructions. The e-voting module shall be activated by CDSL for voting for
one hour, during the time of the meeting. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by Unsecured
Creditors, he or she will not be allowed to change it subsequently.

Unsecured Creditors whose names appear in the records of the Company as on 30"
November 2023 will be considered for the purpose of voting in proportion to their outstanding
amount of Unsecured Debt to the Company as on 30" November 2023.

The authorised representative of a Body Corporate, which is a registered Unsecured Creditor
of the Company may attend and vote at the meeting, provided a certified true copy of the
resolution of the Board of Directors or other governing body of such Body Corporate,
authorizing such a representative to attend and vote at the meeting is deposited at the
registered office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the scheduled time of the
commencement of the meeting.

The Notice convening the aforesaid meeting will be published through advertisement in
Business Standard, Ahmedabad edition in the English language and Lokmitra, Ahmedabad
edition in the Guajarati language.

The quorum of the Meeting of the Unsecured Creditors of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India)
Private Limited shall be 8 (Eight).

Shri Vinit Nagar, practicing Company secretary, has been appointed as the scrutinizer to
scrutinize the voting through e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner;

The scrutinizer will submit his report to the Chairman or a person authorized by him, after the
completion of scrutiny. The result would be intimated to the CDSL and displayed / at the
Registered Office along with the Scrutinizer’s report, after the same is filed with the NCLT.

The material documents, referred to in the Explanatory Statement will be available for
inspection at the registered office of the Company during working hours on all working days
from the date of dispatch of the Notice upto the date of the meeting.

In case of queries or grievances pertaining to remote e-voting procedure, members may refer
the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for shareholders and e-voting manual, available at
www.evoitngindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or may contact at telephone no. 022-23023333 or toll free
no. 1800225533

Voting by electronic means (remote e-voting):
Remote E-Voting Process — Secured creditors

Step 1 Voters should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com during the
voting period.
Step 2 Click on Shareholders/ Members.

Step 3 Enter your User ID as XXXXXXXXXX

Step 4 Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login

Step 5 Enter your password as XXXXXXXX

Step 6 After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.

Step 7 Select the EVSN of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited on

which you choose to vote.

Step 8 On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against
the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as
desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option
NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.

Step 9 Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire
Resolution details.

Step 10 After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”.

A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on
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“‘OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL” and accordingly modify
your vote.

Step 11 Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
modify your vote.

Step 12 You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here
to print” option on the Voting page.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS ATTENDING THE MEETING THROUGH VC/OAVM
ARE AS UNDER:

1.Members will be provided with a facility to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM through
the CDSL e-Voting system. Members may access the same using e-voting credentials. The
link for VC/OAVM will be available in Members login where the EVSN of Company will be
displayed.

2.0nly those Members, who are present in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility and are
otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system available
during the meeting.

3.If any Votes are cast by the Members through the e-voting available during the meeting and
if the same Members have not participated in the meeting through VC/OAVM facility, then the
votes cast by such Members shall be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during the
meeting is available only to the Members attending the meeting.

4.Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops / IPads for better experience.

5.Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to
avoid any disturbance during the meeting.

6.Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop
connecting via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their
respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

7.Members who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may
register themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 7 days prior to
meeting mentioning their name, membered , email id, mobile number at (company email id).
The Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have queries may send their
queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, member id, mobile number
at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company suitably by email.

8.Those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to
express their views/ask questions during the meeting.

9.For corporate shareholders/ Members, the resolution passed in the board meeting for
appointing the authorized representative of the company shall be uploaded to the CDSL e-
voting system or shall be mailed to the Scrutinizer’s ID- vncolegal@gmail.com.

Contact Details:

Company Hitul Patel

E-mail Hitul.patel@yizumi.com
E-Voting CDSL

Agency

E-mail helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
Scrutinizer Shri Vinit Nagar

E-mail vncolegal@gmail.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102, 230 AND 232 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES,
ARRANGEMENTS AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 TO THE NOTICE CALLING
THE MEETINGS OF EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS AND UNSECURED CREDITORS OF
BOTH THE APPLICANT COMPANIES, VIZ. Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private
Limited and Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited and SECURED
CREDITORS of Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited. PURSUANT
TO ORDER DATED 13t DECEMBER 2023 OF THE HON’BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW
TRIBUNAL, AHMEDABAD BENCH

Pursuant to the Order dated 13" December, 2023 passed by the Ahmedabad Bench of the
Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT” or “Tribunal”), Separate meetings of the
Equity Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors of both the Applicant Companies viz. Yizumi
Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited and Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology
Private Limited as well as Secured Creditors of Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology
Private Limited are being convened and will be held, for the purpose of considering and, if
thought fit, approving with or without modification(s), the Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of
absorption) of  Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (“Transferor Company”)
with Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited (“Transferee Company”) and
their respective shareholders and creditors (“Scheme”) under Sections 230 to 232 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (including any statutory modification or re-enactment or
amendment thereof) read with the rules issued there under. The Hon’ble NCLT has vide the
abovereferred order, dispensed with the meeting of the Secured Creditors of the Applicant
Transferor Company , in view of the written consents on stamp paper from all of them having
been placed on record.

The definitions contained in the scheme will apply to this Explanatory Statement also.

A copy of the Scheme setting out in detail the terms and conditions of the arrangement, inter
alia, providing for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Yizumi Precision Machinery
(India) Private Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Yizumi Advanced Processing
Technology Private Limited (“Transferee Company”) and their respective shareholders and
creditors, which has been approved by the Board of Directors of both the Applicant
Companies at their respective meetings held on 20" July 2023 and 22" July 2023 are
attached to this explanatory statement and forms part of this statement as Annexure A.

As stated earlier, NCLT by its said Order has, inter alia, directed that separate meetings of
the Equity Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors of both the Applicant Companies and
Secured Creditors of Transferee Company shall be convened and held on Monday, 29t
January 2024 as per following schedule:

Type of the Yizumi Precision Machinery | Yizumi Advanced Processing
meetings (India) Private Limited Technology Private Limited
Equity Shareholders 10.00 a.m. 2.00 p.m.
Unsecured Creditors 11.00 a.m. 4.00 p.m.

Secured Creditors Dispensation granted 3.00 p.m.

The said meetings shall be convened and conducted through video-conferencing or other
audio-visual means (‘VC/OAVM’) for the purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving
with or without modification(s) the Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Absorption). All the
concerned parties would be entitled to vote by e-voting at the time of respective meetings to
be conducted through VC/OAVM.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
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Scheme shall be acted upon only if a majority in number representing three fourth in value
of the equity shareholders/ secured creditors/ unsecured creditors of the respective Applicant
Companies, agree to the Scheme.

The scrutinizer appointed for conducting e-voting process will submit his report to the
Chairperson of the respective Applicant Companies or to the person so authorised by him
after completion of the scrutiny of e-voting submitted and votes cast by the concerned parties
at the time of respective meetings.

5.  Background of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited, the Applicant Transferor
Company.

(i)  Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Yizumi
Precision” or the “Applicant Transferor Company”), is a private company limited incorporated
on August 04, 2016 under the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat.
The registered office of the Company is situated at C-803, Safal Parivesh, Prahaladnagar,
Ahmedabad, 380015, in the state of Gujarat. The CIN is U29190GJ2016PTC093223. The
Permanent Account Number of the Transferor Company is AAACY8230D. Email id of the
Transferor Company is Hitul.patel@yizumi.com.

(i) The share capital of Yizumi Precision as on March 31, 2023 is as under:

Particulars Amount (In INR)
Authorized Capital
3,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 3,00,00,000
Total 3,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid — up Capital
2,95,792 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 2,95,79,200
Total 2,95,79,200

(ii) There is no change in the capital structure of the company since the above referred date.
Currently, 90% shares of the said company are held by Yizumi Holdings Co., Ltd , a company
based in China and 10% shares are held by an individual, Indian resident.

(iii) The main objects of Yizumi Precision are as under:

1. To engage in carrying on the business to manufacture, produce, formulate,
assemble, fabricate, erect, sale, purchase, trading, process, design, develop, distribute,
repair, service, renovate, import, export, research and development of servo high-
precision plastics injection molding machines, die casting machines, rubber injection
machines, press machines, hydraulic machines, low-pressure casting machines, pipe
packing machines, road sweeping machines and parts and fittings thereof, design and
production of non-mental product molds and hydrostatic drive apparatus, production of
electro hydraulic proportional servo components, manufacturing of waste plastics,
electric appliances, rubber and battery recycle equipment, development and production
of software products and consultation service on application technology of die casting
machines and injection molding machines, trading of machineries and its spare parts
and to do all types and descriptions of plastic, rubber, die casting commercial and
industrial machineries and articles ;

2. To engage in any and all activities necessary, desirable, ancillary or incidental to the
accomplishment of the conduct of above business of the Company; and

(iv) Yizumi Precision, the Applicant Transferor Company is a Private Limited company and
belongs to the same group of management as the Transferee Company. The company is
engaged in the business of manufacturing, marketing and service support of injection
molding machines. The company is promoted by Yizumi Group based in China and majority
stakeholder is the Holding Company. Yizumi Precision is operational since May 2017. The
total income of the Transferor Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023
was around Rs. 220.76 crores and the net profit was around Rs. 7.82 crores. The company
has Reserves and Surplus of around Rs. 17.79 crores. Copy of the Audited financial
statements as on 315t March 2023 as well as Unaudited provisional financial statements as
on 30" June 2023 are annexed herewith.
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6. Background of Yizumi Advanced “Transferee Company” is as under:

(i)

(ii)

Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Yizumi Advanced” or “the Applicant Transferee Company”) is a private limited company
incorporated on June 25, 2019 under the Companies Act, 2013 with the Registrar of
Companies, Gujarat. The Registered Office of the company is situated at Plot No. 1062 &
1063, GIDC Sanand - Il Industrial Estate, Dist. Ahmedabad, 382170 in the state of Gujarat.
The CIN is U29230GJ2019FTC108825. The Permanent Account Number of the
Transferee Company is AABCY1365N. Email id of the Transferee Company is
Hitul.patel@yizumi.com.

The authorised, issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital of Yizumi Advanced as
on 318t March 2023, is as under:-

Particulars Amount (In INR)
Authorized Capital
22,25,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 22,25,00,000
Total 22,25,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid — up Capital
20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 20,00,00,000
Total 20,00,00,000

On 5% May, 2023, 2,22,222 equity shares has been issued by following requisite

procedure. The share capital of Transferee Company as at 015t June, 2023 is as under:

Particulars Amount (In INR)
Authorized Capital
22,25,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 22,25,00,000
Total 22,25,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid — up Capital
20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 20,00,00,000
Issuance of 2,22,222 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 2,22,22,200
each on 5" May, 2023
Total 22,22,22,200

Subsequent to the above change in May 2023 and up to the date of approval of this
Scheme by the Board of Transferee Company, there has been no change in the stated
capital of Transferee Company except as stated aforesaid.

(iii)

The main objects of Yizumi Advanced as per Memorandum of Association are as under:
1.To engage in carrying on the business of providing manufacturing of Injection
molding, Die casting machine, Rubber injection molding machine, Fabrication and
automation system;
2.To engage in any and all activities necessary, desirable, ancillary or incidental to the
accomplishment of the conduct of above business of the Company;

(iv) Yizumi Advanced, the Applicant Transferee Company, has been set-up inter alia to carry

out the business of manufacturing of Injection molding, Die casting machine, Rubber
injection molding machine, Fabrication and automation system. The company is promoted
by Yizumi Group based in China and majority stakeholder is the Holding Company. A new
advanced manufacturing base was set up in Yizumi Advanced for expanding existing
operations. In order to capture the demand for Yizumi Group's products, manufacturing
capabilities has been expanded by setting up of a new manufacturing plant which will allow
the group to meet customer needs more effectively and efficiently. This expanded facility
can support higher volumes, reduce lead times, and meet customer requirements more
effectively, expand its market reach, tap into new customer segments, or enter new
geographic regions. The management focus was to carry out business in Asia and rest of
world markets from Yizumi Advanced. The Yizumi Group had decided to consolidate both
the Indian Group entities (i.e., Yizumi Precision and Yizumi Advanced). Intermittently,
Yizumi Advanced has given its new manufacturing facility on lease to Yizumi Precision for
a period of 11 months starting from October 2022. During the financial year ended on 31t
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March, 2023, the company had total revenue of Rs. 3.21 crores but has no profits as yet.
Copy of audited financial statements of Yizumi advanced as on 318t March, 2023 as well
as Unaudited provisional financial statements as on 30" June 2023 are annexed herewith.

7. Rationale and Valuation Report:

Both these companies are part of the same group i.e., Yizumi Group and are engaged
in same line of business. The activities to be undertaken by both are complimentary in nature.
The Board of Directors of both the companies considered the merger of both entities which
will result in consolidation of businesses as well as simplification of structure (including
shareholding structure). The proposed merger envisaged under this Scheme is in line with
the current global industry practice to achieve size, scalability, integration, greater financial
strength and flexibility there by maximizing shareholder value and to achieve higher long-
term financial returns. The proposed scheme is envisaged to result in the following benefits:

e Integration of business operations.

e Greater efficiency in cash management of the amalgamated entity, and unfettered access
to cash flow generated by the combined business which can be deployed more efficiently
to fund growth opportunities.

e Garner the benefits arising out of economies of large scale and lower operating costs.

e Pooling and rationalization of talents in terms of manpower, management, administration
etc. to result in savings of costs.

e Avoidance of duplication of administrative functions, reduction in multiplicity of legal and
regulatory compliances and cost.

e Integrated operational and marketing strategies, inter-transfer of resources / costs will
result in optimum utilization of assets.

e Bring uniformity in corporate policy.

e Benefit of operational synergies to the combined entity and greater leverage in operations,
planning and process optimization.

The proposed amalgamation will be beneficial to both the companies and their respective

shareholders and creditors, employees and other stakeholders and not prejudicial to the

interests of the shareholders.

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of both the companies have proposed this

scheme for the transfer and vesting of whole of the undertaking of the Transferor company

with and into the Transferee Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 read

with Sections 66 and 52 and other relevant provisions of the Act.

It is further clarified that as a consequence of the proposed Merger by Absorption, there will

be no change in control or economic beneficial ownership with respect to total shareholding

of the promoters/ promoter group i.e. the Ultimate Beneficial Owner/s.

The report confirming the proposed Entitlement Ratio of Equity Shares, being just and
reasonable, dated 08" July, 2023, provided by CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav, a Registered
Valuer is annexed herewith.

10. Salient features of the Scheme:

“1. Definitions:

1.3 “Appointed Date” means 015t April, 2023 or such other date as may be directed or approved
by the National Company Law Tribunal or any other appropriate authority.

1.6 “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the conditions mentioned in Clause
16 are satisfied.

1.15 “Undertaking of Transferor Company” means all the undertakings and entire business,
activities and operations of the Transferor Company in India, as a going concern, including,
without limitation:

a. all the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or intangible, real
or personal, in possession or reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or
contingent of whatsoever nature) of the Transferor Company, whether situated in India
including, without limitation, all land, buildings and structures, offices, branches, residential
and other premises, capital work-in-progress, machines and equipment, furniture, fixtures,
office equipment, computers, information technology equipment, laptops, server, vehicles,
appliances, accessories, power lines, stocks, current assets (including inventories, sundry
debtors, bills of exchange, loans and advances), investments of all kinds (including shares,
scrips, stocks, bonds, debenture stocks, units or pass through certificates, investment in
subsidiaries), cash and bank accounts (including bank balances), contingent rights or
benefits, benefits of any deposits, earnest monies, receivables, advances or deposits paid
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by or deemed to have been paid by the Transferor Company, financial assets, benefit of
any bank guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit, hire purchase
contracts and assets, lending contracts, rights and benefits under any agreement, benefit
of any security arrangements or under any guarantees, reversions, powers, tenancies in
relation to the office and/or residential properties, rights to use and avail of telephones,
telexes, facsimile, email, internet, leased line connections and installations, utilities,
electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties
or other interest held in trust, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all
kind, privileges and all other rights, easements, privileges, liberties and advantages of
whatsoever nature and wheresoever situate belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession and in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or enjoyed by the
Transferor Company or in connection with or relating to the Transferor Company and all
other interests of whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession
or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by
the Transferor Company in India;

. all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, industrial and other licences, contracts,
agreements, bids, tenders, letters of intent, expressions of interest, memorandums of
understanding, offer letters, approvals, consents, privileges, incentives deductions,
exemptions, rebates, allowances, amortization, tax credits [including but not limited to
advance tax, self-assessment tax, deferred tax assets/liabilities, tax deducted at source,
tax collected at source, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act, allowance for
unabsorbed depreciation under Income-tax Act, tax refunds, tax losses and exemptions in
respect of the profits of the undertaking of the Transferor Company for the residual period,
i.e., for the period remaining as on the Appointed Date out of the total period for which the
benefit or exemption is available, if any, in law if the merger pursuant to this Scheme does
not take place, all other rights, exemptions and other benefits under any policy
announcements issued or promulgated by the government of India or state government or
any other government body or authority or any other like benefits under any statute]
receivables, and liabilities related thereto, licenses, powers and facilities of every kind,
nature and description whatsoever provisions and benefits of all agreements, contracts
and arrangements and all other interests in connection with or relating to the Transferor
Company, whether or not so recorded in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company;
. all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities, both present and future, current
and non-current (including deferred tax liabilities, contingent liabilities and the Liabilities
and obligations under any licenses or permits or schemes) of every kind, nature and
description whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or utilized, whether
secured or unsecured, whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed
in the balance sheet of the Transferor Company; and

. all trade and service names and marks, patents, copyrights, goodwill and other intellectual
property rights of any nature whatsoever, books, records, files, papers, software licenses
(whether proprietary or otherwise), computer programs, manuals, data, catalogues,
quotations, sales and advertising material, lists of present and former customers and
suppliers, other customer information, customer credit information, customer pricing
information and all other records and documents, whether in physical or electronic form
relating to business activities and operations of the Transferor Company.

. all staff and employees and other obligations of whatsoever kind, including liabilities of the
Transferor Company with regard to its employees, with respect to the payment of gratuity,
superannuation, pension benefits and the provident fund or compensation or benefits, if
any, in the event of resignation, death, voluntary retirement or retrenchment or otherwise.
any statutory licenses, permissions, registrations or approvals or consents held by the
Transferor Company required to carry on the operations shall stand vested in or transferred
to the Transferee Company without any further act or deed and shall be appropriately
mutated by the statutory authorities concerned therewith in favour of the Transferee
Company and the benefit of all the statutory and regulatory permissions, environmental
approvals and consents, registration or other licenses and consents shall vest in and
become available to the Transferee Company as if they were originally obtained by the
Transferee Company. In so far as the various incentives granted by any Governmental
Authority or by any other person, or availed by the Transferor Company, are concerned,
the same shall vest with and be available to the Transferee Company on the same terms
and conditions as applicable to the Transferor Company, as if the same had been allotted
and/ or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed to the Transferee Company.
AMALGAMATION OF COMPANIES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date,
pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunal or any other competent authority
and pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any,
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of the Act, the entire business and whole of the Undertaking of the Transferor Company
shall be and stand vested in or be deemed to have been vested in the Transferee Company,
as a going concern without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to
become, as and from the Appointed Date, the undertaking of the Transferee Company by
virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

The requisite sanctions or approvals including but not limited to in-principle approvals,
sanctions of Central Government or any government authority or any other agency or
department or authorities concerned being obtained and granted in respect of any of the
matters in respect of which such sanction or approval is required under any law;

4.1 Transfer and Vesting of Assets
Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 4 above, upon this Scheme becoming
effective and with effect from the Appointed Date:

a. All the estate, assets, properties, rights, claims, title, interest and authorities including
accretions and appurtenances comprised in the Undertaking of whatsoever nature and
where so ever situate shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all
other applicable provisions of Applicable Law, if any, without any further act or deed, be
and stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and/or be deemed to be
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company as a going concern so as to become,
as and from the Appointed Date, the estate, assets, properties, rights, claims, title, interest
and authorities of the Transferee Company.

b.  All immovable properties of the Transferor Company, if any, including land together with
the buildings and structures standing thereon and rights and interests in immovable
properties of the Transferor Company and all documents of title, rights and easements in
relation thereto shall be vested in and/or be deemed to have been vested in the Transferee
Company by operation of law pursuant to sanctioning of the Scheme and upon the Scheme
becoming effective, without any further act or deed done or being required to be done by
the Transferor Company and/or the Transferee Company. Such assets shall stand vested
in Transferee and shall be deemed to be and become the property as an integral part of
the Transferee Company by operation of law. The Transferee Company shall be entitled
to exercise all rights and privileges attached to such immovable properties and shall be
liable to pay the ground rent and Taxes and fulfil all obligations in relation to or applicable
to such immovable properties. The mutation or substitution of the title to the immovable
properties shall, upon this Scheme becoming effective, be made and duly recorded in the
name of the Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities pursuant to the sanction
of this Scheme by the Tribunal and upon the coming into effect of this Scheme in
accordance with the terms hereof. Further the mere filing thereof with the appropriate
registrar or sub-registrar or with the relevant Government Authority shall suffice as a record
of continuing title with Transferee Company and shall be constituted as a deemed mutation
and substitution thereof. The Transferee Company shall upon the Scheme becoming
effective be entitled to the delivery and possession of all documents of title to such
immovable property in this regard. Further, at the discretion of Transferee Company, such
immovable properties can be vested pursuant to a separate conveyance or any other
agreement as well.

c.  Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 4(a) and 4(b) above, in respect of such of the
assets and properties of the Transferor Company as are movable in nature or incorporeal
property or are otherwise capable of vesting or transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/or delivery, the same shall stand so transferred or vested by the
Transferor Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and shall, become the
assets and property of the Transferee Company with effect from the Appointed Date
pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, without requiring any deed or
instrument of conveyance for transfer or vesting of the same.

d. Inrespect of such of the assets and properties belonging to the Transferor Company (other
than those referred to in Clause | above) including sundry debtors, receivables, bills,
credits, loans and advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to
be received, bank balances, investments, earnest money and deposits with any
government, quasi government, local or other authority or body or with any company or
other person, the same shall stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company
and/or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company,
without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge and without any notice or other
intimation to any third party, upon coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from
the Appointed Date pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act. All assets,
rights, title, interest, investments and properties of the Transferor Company as on the
Appointed Date, whether or not included in the books of the Transferor Company, and all
assets, rights, title, interest, investments and properties, which are acquired by the
Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date but prior to the Effective Date, shall



Page 11

be deemed to be and shall become the assets, rights, title, interest, investments and
properties of the Transferee Company, and shall under the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument
or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been transferred
to and vested in the Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and
with effect from the Appointed Date or from the date of their acquisition (after the Appointed
Date but before the Effective Date) as the case may be, pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.

e. All the profits or costs, charges, or expenditure accruing to the Transferor Company in India
or expenditure or losses arising or incurred or suffered by the Transferor Company shall
for all purpose be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits, costs, charges,
expenditure or losses of Transferee Company, as the case may be.

f. All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, deferred tax
assets/liabilities, tax deducted at source, tax collected at source, accumulated losses
under Income-tax Act, allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under Income-tax Act etc.),
including any interest, penalty, surcharge and cess, if any, paid / payable by or refunded /
refundable to the Transferor Company, including all or any refunds or claims shall be
treated as the tax paid / payable by the Transferee Company, or as the case may be,
refunds/claims, of the Transferee Company, and any tax incentives, advantages,
privileges, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act, allowance for unabsorbed
depreciation under Income-tax Act, deductions otherwise admissible such as under
Section 40, 40A, 43B, etc. of the Income-tax Act, exemptions, credits, exemptions,
deductions / holidays, remissions, reductions etc., as would have been available to the
Transferor Company, shall pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective, be available to
the Transferee Company; and

g. All the benefits under the various incentive schemes and policies that the Transferor
Company is entitled to, including tax credits, tax deferral, exemptions, holidays and
benefits, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or
conferred upon or held or availed by the Transferor Company, rights of any claim not made
by the Transferor Company in respect of any refund of tax, duty, cess or other charge,
including any erroneous or excess payment thereof made by the Transferor Company and
any interest thereon and all rights or benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to
the Transferor Company, whether on, before or after the Appointed Date, shall upon this
Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date be transferred to and
vest in the Transferee Company and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature
whatsoever, shall be claimed by the Transferee Company and these shall relate back to
the Appointed Date as if the Transferee Company was originally entitled to all benefits
under such incentive schemes and/or policies.

h. All the licenses, permits, registrations, quotas, entitlements, approvals, permissions,
registrations, incentives, tax deferrals, exemptions and benefits, concessions, grants,
rights, claims, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or privileges
enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by the Transferor Company and all rights
and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to the Transferor Company, whether
on, before or after the Appointed Date, including income tax benefits and exemptions,
shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable
provisions, if any, without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge be and stand
transferred to and vest in and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in and be
available to the Transferee Company so as to become the licenses, permits, registrations,
quotas, entitlements, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, tax deferrals,
exemptions and benefits, concessions, grants, rights, claims, tenancy rights, liberties,
special status and other benefits or privileges of the Transferee Company and shall remain
valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions.

4.2 Transfer and Vesting of Liabilities

a. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date all
debts and liabilities of the Transferor Company including all secured and unsecured debts
(in whatsoever currency), liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations
of the Transferor Company of every kind, nature and description whatsoever whether
present or future, and howsoever arising, along with any charge, encumbrance, lien or
security thereon (herein referred to as the “Liabilities”) shall, pursuant to the sanction of this
Scheme by the Tribunal and under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument, deed,
matter or thing, be and stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, to the extent they are outstanding
on the Effective Date so as to become as and from the Appointed Date the Liabilities of the
Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions as were applicable to the
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Transferor Company, and the Transferee Company shall meet, discharge and satisfy the
same and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other
person who is a party to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such Liabilities
have arisen in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause.

b.  Where any such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferor Company as on
the Appointed Date have been discharged by such Transferor Company on or after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to be for
and on account of the Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme.

c. Allloans raised authorized and all liabilities, duties and obligations incurred or undertaken
by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date
shall be deemed to have been raised, used, incurred or undertaken for and on behalf of
the Transferee Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall,
upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232
of the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed be stand transferred to and vested
in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and
shall become the loans and liabilities, duties and obligations of the Transferee Company
which shall meet, discharge and satisfy the same.

d. Loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees, letters of credit, letters
of comfort or any other instrument or arrangement which may give rise to a contingent
liability in whatever form), if any, due or which may at any time from the Appointed Date to
the Effective Date become due between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company shall, ipso facto, stand discharged and come to an end and there shall be no
liability in that behalf on any party and the appropriate effect shall be given in the books of
accounts and records of the Transferee Company.

4.3 Encumbrances

a. The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the Undertaking to the Transferee
Company under Clause 4.1, Clause 4.2 and Clause 4.3 of this Scheme shall be subject to
the Encumbrances, if any, affecting the same as hereinafter provided.

b. AllEncumbrances, if any, existing prior to the Effective Date over the assets of the Transferor
Company shall, after the Effective Date, without any further act, instrument or deed,
continue to relate and attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related
or attached prior to the Effective Date, provided that if any of the assets of the Transferor
Company have not been Encumbered, such assets shall remain unencumbered and the
existing Encumbrance referred to above shall not be extended to and shall not operate
over such assets. Further, such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the other
assets of the Transferee Company. The absence of any formal amendment which may be
required by a lender or trustee or third party shall not affect the operation of the above.
Furthermore, no duty (including stamp duty), levy, cess of any nature will be payable by
the Transferee Company at the time of transfer of the encumbrance, charge and/or right
covered above with respect to the immovable property.

c. The existing Encumbrances over the other assets and properties of the Transferee Company
or any part thereof which relate to the Liabilities of the Transferee Company prior to the
Effective Date shall continue to relate to such assets and properties and shall not extend
or attach to any of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company transferred to and
vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme. Any reference in any security
documents or arrangements (to which the Transferor Company is a party) to the Transferor
Company and their respective assets and properties, shall be construed as a reference to
the Transferee Company and the assets and properties of the Transferor Company
transferred to the Transferee Company by virtue of this Scheme. Without prejudice to the
foregoing provisions, the Transferee Company may execute any instruments or documents
or do all the acts and deeds as may be considered appropriate, including the filing of
necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of charge, with the Registrar of Company to
give formal effect to the above provisions, if required.

d. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall be liable to perform
all obligations in respect of the Liabilities, which have been transferred to it in terms of this
Scheme.

e. It is expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or condition of the
Liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company is amended by virtue of this Scheme
except to the extent that such amendment is required statutorily.

f. The provisions of this Clause 4.3 shall operate notwithstanding anything to the contrary
contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any
security document; all of which instruments, deeds or writings or the terms of sanction or
issue or any security document shall stand modified and/or superseded by the foregoing
provisions.

5. Legal, Taxation and other Proceedings
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a. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions, and other proceedings including
legal and taxation proceedings, (including before any statutory or quasi- judicial authority
or tribunal) by or against the Transferor Company pending on the Effective Date shall be
continued and/ or enforced by or against the Transferee Company as effectually and in the
same manner and to the same extent as if the same had been instituted by or against the
Transferee Company.

b. If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against the Transferor
Company is pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in any way be
prejudicially affected by reason of or by anything contained in this Scheme, but the said
suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or
against Transferee Company, as the case may be, in the same manner and to the same
extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against
the Transferor Company as if this Scheme had not been made.

c. In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be initiated or may be
initiated against the Transferor Company, Transferee Company shall be made party
thereto and any payment and expenses made thereto shall be the liability of Transferee
Company.

7. AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF TRANSFEREE COMPANY

A. Consolidation of Authorised Share Capital of Transferee Company

7.1 As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the
authorized share capital of the Transferor Company shall be deemed to be combined with
the authorized share capital of the Transferee Company, without any further act,
instrument or deed on the part of the Transferee Company including payment of stamp
duty and fees payable to Registrar of Companies and the stamp duty and fees paid by the
Transferor Company on their authorized share capital shall be set-off against any stamp
duty and fees payable by the Transferee Company on any increase in the authorized share
capital of the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme.

7.2 ltis clarified that the approval of the Scheme by the members of the Transferee Company
shall be deemed approval of the alteration of the memorandum and articles of association
of the Transferee Company as required under Sections 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

7.3 The capital clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company shall,

as a part of and, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and without any further act or
deed, be replaced by the following clause:
“V.  The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR §7,71,72,600 (Rupees Fifty
Seven Crores Seventy One Lakhs Seventy Two Thousand Six Hundred only) divided into
57,71,726 (Fifty Seven Lakhs Seventy One Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Six only)
equity shares of INR 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each and with power to increase and
reduce the capital of the company or to divide the shares in the capital for the time being
into several classes and to attach there to respectively any preferential, deferred, qualified
or special rights, privileges or condition as may be determined by or in accordance with
the Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may be for the time being provided by the Articles of the
Company and legislative provisions for the time being in force.”

7.4 The share capital being clause 4 of the Articles of Association of the Transferee The
Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR.57,71,72,600 (Rupees Fifty Seven Crores
Seventy One Lakhs Seventy Two Thousand Six Hundred only) divided into 57,71,726 (Fifty
Seven Lakhs Seventy One Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Six only) equity shares of
INR 100/- (Rupees Hundred only)

B. Objects Clause:

7.5 In order to carry on the activities currently being carried on by the Transferor Company,
upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the main objects in the memorandum of
association of the Transferor Company shall be added to the main objects of the
memorandum of association of the Transferee Company, to the extent such objects are
not already covered by those of the Transferee Company. The object clauses as set out
in Schedule |, to the Scheme, shall be added to the memorandum of association of the
Transferee Company.

7.6 Upon the approval of the Scheme by the members of the Transferor Company and the
members of the Transferee Company pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Act, it shall be
deemed that the members of the Transferee Company have also resolved and accorded
all relevant consents under Section 13 of the Act or any other provisions of the Act for the
commencement of any business or activities currently being carried on by Transferor
Company in relation to any of the objects contained in the memorandum of association of
the Transferee Company, to the extent the same may be considered applicable. It is
clarified that there will be no need to pass a separate shareholders’ resolution as required
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under Section 13 of the Act.

It is clarified that for the purposes of Clause 7.1 above, the stamp duties and fees
(including registration fee) paid on authorized share capital of the Transferor Company
shall be utilized and applied to the increase authorized share capital of the Transferee
Company and there would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty and/or
fee (including registration fee) by the Transferee Company for increase in authorized share
capital to that extent. The Transferee Company shall file requisite forms with the concerned
Registrar of Companies.

Under the accepted principle of single window clearance, it is hereby provided that all the
above alterations in Memorandum and Articles of Association pertaining to Objects Clause
as well as Capital Clause, of the Transferee Company pursuant to the above clauses
shall become operative on this Scheme becoming effective and by virtue of the fact that
the shareholders of the Transferee Company while approving this scheme as a whole,
have approved and accorded the relevant consents as required under the act for the
aforesaid amendments of the memorandum of the association and articles of the
association of the Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall not be required
to pass separate resolutions under the applicable provisions of Section 13, 14 and other
applicable provisions of the Act. The Transferee Company undertakes to pay fees if any
that may be required in relation to such amendments.

CONSIDERATION

Pursuant to the Scheme coming into effect and without any further application, act or deed,
the Transferee Company shall issue and allot:

12 (Twelve) Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up in its equity share capital in respect
of every 1 (one) equity share of Rs. 100/- held by person whose name appear in the
register of members of the Transferor Company (or to such of their respective heirs,
executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in title as may
be recognized by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company) as on the Record
Date.

The ratio in which the New Equity Shares are to be issued and allotted to the shareholders
of the Transferor Company is herein referred to as the “Share Entitlement Ratio”. The same
has been worked out by CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav, a Registered Valuer.

8.3 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the New Equity Shares being issued and

8.4

8.5

allotted as provided in this scheme, the equity shares of the Transferor Company shall be
deemed to have been automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the record
date.

The New Equity shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause 8.1 above shall be
subject to the provisions of the memorandum and articles of association of the Transferee
Company and shall rank pari-pasu in all respects with the equity shares of the Transferee
Company as on the Effective Date including in respect of dividend, if any that may be
declared by the transferee company on or after the Effective Date.

The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares to the respective shareholders of the
Transferor Company as provided in the scheme, is an integral part thereof and shall be
deemed to have been carried out without requiring any further act on the part of the
transferee company or its shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under Section
62 of the Act and any other applicable provision of the Act, and such other statues and
regulations as may be applicable were duly complied with.

9. Accounting Treatment

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall account for the
Amalgamation in its books of accounts with effect from the Appointed Date as under:

The Transferee Company shall follow the ‘pooling of interest method’ of accounting for the
amalgamation as per Accounting Standard — 14.

All Assets and Liabilities, including Reserves, of the Transferor Company shall be recorded
in the books of account of the Transferee Company at their existing carrying amounts and
in the same form;

The inter-corporate deposits/loans and advances/balance outstanding between the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company will stand cancelled and there shall be
no further obligation on that behalf;

The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued and the amount of
share capital of the transferor company, in case of excess shall be credited in the Capital
Reserve Account of the Transferee Company and in case of shortfall it shall be debited to
the Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve account of the Transferee Company;

The balance in the amalgamation adjustment reserve account as per clause 9.4 above, if
any, shall, on merger, be adjusted in the books of Transferee Company as under:
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i.  Firstly, out of the amount available in Capital Redemption Reserve of Transferee Company
(including Capital Redemption Reserve of the Transferor Company transferred to the
Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme); and

ii. Secondly, out ofthe amount available in the Securities Premium account of the Transferee
Company (including Securities Premium of the Transferor Company transferred to the
Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme) in compliance with Section 66 and 52 of
the Companies Act, 2013; and

ii.  Thirdly, out of the amount available in the General Reserve of the Transferee Company
(including General Reserve of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme); and

iv. Fourthly, out of the amount available in the Profit and Loss account of the Transferee
Company (including Profit and Loss Account of the Transferor Company transferred to the
Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme).

9.6 In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, the impact of the same till the Appointed Date will be quantified and
adjusted in the reserves of the Transferee Company to ensure that the financial statements
of the Transferee Company reflect the financial positions on the basis of consistent
accounting policy.

10. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

10.1 On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall be dissolved without
being wound up without any further act or deed by the parties.

10.2 On and with effect from the Effective Date, the Transferor Company shall be struck off from
the records of the relevant Registrar of Companies. The Transferee Company shall make
all necessary filings in this regard.

10.3 Any obligations/ steps which need to be undertaken by the Transferor Company pursuant
to the sanction of this Scheme shall be fulfilled by the Transferee Company.

11. Applicability of provisions of Income Tax Act

11.1 The provisions of this Scheme as they relate to the merger of Transferor Company with
Transferee Company has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to
‘amalgamation’ as defined under Section 2(1B) of the (Indian) Income- tax Act, 1961
(hereinafter referred to as Income Tax Act). If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are
found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said Section of the Income-
tax Act, at a later date including resulting from an amendment of law or for any other reason
whatsoever, the provisions of the said Section of the Income-tax Act, shall prevail and the
Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary to comply with Section
2(1B) of the Income- tax Act. Such modification will, however, not affect the other parts of
the Scheme.

11.2 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is expressly permitted to
revise its financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms, filings and
annexures under the Income Tax Act (including for purposes of carry forward and set-off
of tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation and tax benefits, if any) and other tax laws and to
claim refunds and/or credits for taxes paid by Transferor Company, and to claim tax
benefits, under the Income Tax Act and other tax laws etc. and for matters incidental
thereto, if required to give effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The order of the Tribunal
sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order permitting the Transferee
Company to prepare and/or revise its financial statements and books of accounts on and
from the Appointed Date and no further act shall be required to be undertaken by the
Transferee Company.

11.3 All tax assessment proceedings/appeals of whatsoever nature by or against the Transferor
Company pending and/or arising at the Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor
Company shall be continued and/or enforced until the Effective Date by the Transferor
Company. In the event of the Transferor Company failing to continue or enforce any
proceeding/appeal, the same may be continued or enforced by the Transferee Company,
at the cost of the Transferee Company. As and from the Effective Date, the tax proceedings
shall be continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by
or against the Transferor Company.

11.4 Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued nor be in any
way prejudicially affected by reason of the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with
the Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

11.5 All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, deferred tax
assets/liabilities, tax deducted at source, tax collected at source, minimum alternate tax
etc.), including any interest, penalty, surcharge and/or cess, paid / payable by or refunded
/ refundable to the Transferor Company with effect from the Appointed Date, including all
or any refunds or claims shall be treated as the tax liability or refunds/ claims/credits, etc.
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as the case may be, of the Transferee Company, and any tax incentives, advantages,
privileges, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act, allowance for unabsorbed
depreciation under Income-tax Act, including payment admissible on actual payment or on
deduction of appropriate taxes or on payment of tax deducted at source such as under
Sections 40, 40A, 43B, etc. of the Income-tax Act, exemptions, credits, deductions /
holidays, remissions, reductions etc., if any, as would have been available to the Transferor
Company, pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective, be available to the Transferee
Company and the relevant authority shall be bound to transfer to the account of and give
credit for the same to the Transferee Company upon coming into effect of this Scheme.

11.6 The Transferee Company shall also be permitted to claim refunds / credits in respect of

any transaction between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company. Without
prejudice to the generality of Clause 11.1 above, upon the Scheme becoming effective,
the Transferee Company shall be permitted to revise, if it becomes necessary, its income
tax returns and related withholding tax certificates, including withholding tax certificates,
relating to transactions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company,
and to claim refunds, advance tax and withholding tax credits and carry forward of
accumulated losses, unabsorbed depreciation etc., pursuant to the provisions of this
Scheme.

11.7 The taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax, minimum alternate

tax, tax deducted at source, tax collected at source), including any interest, penalty,
surcharge and/or cess, if any, paid by the Transferor Company under the Income Tax Act,
1961 or any other statute for the period commencing from the Appointed Date shall be
deemed to be the taxes paid by the Transferee Company and credit for such taxes shall
be allowed to the Transferee Company notwithstanding that certificates or challans for
such taxes are in the name of the Transferor Company and not in the name of the
Transferee Company.”
THE FEATURES SET OUT ABOVE BEING ONLY THE SALIENT FEATURES OF THE
SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION (BY WAY OF ABSORPTION), THE EQUITY
SHAREHOLDERS AND UNSECURED CREDITORS OF THE APPLICANT TRANSFEREE
COMPANY AND APPLICANT TRANSFEROR COMPANY AND SECURED CREDITOR OF
APPLICANT TRANSFEREE COPMANY ARE REQUESTED TO READ THE ENTIRE TEXT
OF THE SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION (BY WAY OF ABSORPTION) TO GET
THEMSELVES FULLY ACQUAINTED WITH THE PROVISIONS THEREOF.

The proposed Scheme was placed before the Board of Directors of both the Applicant
Companies respectively on 20" July 2023 and 22" July 2023. The Board of Directors of both
the Applicant Companies passed a resolution by which it was resolved that the Scheme of
Amalgamation (by way of Absorption) placed before the Board be submitted to National
Company Law Tribunal.

Pursuant to the same, The Application has been filed jointly by both the Applicant
Companies, viz. Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (“Transferor Company”)
with Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited (“Transferee Company”)
before the Ahmedabad Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal for the sanction of the
Scheme under Section 230 read with Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Directors, Promoters and Key Managerial Personnel:
The Directors of both the Transferor Companies and Transferee Company may be deemed to

be concerned and/or interested in the Scheme only to the extent of their shareholding in the
companies, or to the extent the said Directors are common Directors in the companies, or to
the extent the said Directors are the partners, directors, members of the companies, firms,
association of persons, bodies corporate and/or beneficiary of trust, that hold shares in any
of the Companies. The shareholding of the Directors of both the companies is annexed
herewith as Annexure-E.

Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) other than Directors and their relatives may be deemed to
be concerned and/or interested in the Scheme only to the extent of their shareholding directly
in the respective companies that are the subject of the Scheme. None of the KMPs other than
Directors and their relatives, of any of these companies hold any shares in any of these
companies.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors and KMPs of the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company and their relatives have any material concern or interest, financial and /
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or otherwise in the Scheme.

. The Capital Clause V of MOA of Yizumi Advanced shall be modified upon consolidation of

Authorised Capital of the Transferor Company with that of the Transferee Company as follows:

“V.  The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR 57,71,72,600 (Rupees Fifty
Seven Crores Seventy One Lakhs Seventy Two Thousand Six Hundred only) divided into
57,71,726 (Fifty Seven Lakhs Seventy One Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Six only)
equity shares of INR 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each and with power to increase and
reduce the capital of the company or to divide the shares in the capital for the time being
into several classes and to attach there to respectively any preferential, deferred, qualified
or special rights, privileges or condition as may be determined by or in accordance with
the Articles of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may be for the time being provided by the Articles of the
Company and legislative provisions for the time being in force.”

. The copy of the proposed Scheme is being filed by the Companies before the concerned
Registrar of Companies.

. The audited Accounting Statements of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company
as on 318t March, 2023 and unaudited financial results of all the Companies for the period
ended on 30" June, 2023 are enclosed as Annexure - D to this Notice.

Amounts due to secured creditors (as on 30" November 2023)
Yizumi Precision - Rs. 15,50,00,000
Yizumi Advanced - Rs. 15,00,00,000

Amounts due to unsecured creditors (as on 30" November 2023)
Yizumi Precision - Rs. 1,00,63,92,004
Yizumi Advanced - Rs. 94,06,40,911

Disclosure about effect of the compromise or arrangement on:

ﬁg_ Particulars  Transferee Company Transferor Company
Key

A |Managerial |No Effect Shall cease to be KMPs
Personnel

B | Directors No Effect Shall cease to be Directors

C |Promoters No effect Shall cease to be promoters.

D Non-promoter No effect No effect as there is no non-
members promoter member

No Effect as none of the Companies have accepted any

E |Depositors .
deposits

Creditors,  of Transferor
Company shall become the
creditors of the Transferee
F |Creditors No Effect Company and paid off in the
ordinary course of business.
Inter-company creditors, if any,
would get cancelled.
Debenture Not applicable as none of the Companies have issued any
holders debentures
Deposit
H trustee and
dehentiire

Not applicable as none of the Companies have any Deposit
trustees or Debenture trustees.



Page 18

No adverse effect as

Employees of employees of Transferor
I |the No adverse effect Company as on effective date
company will become employees of the

Transferee Company

19. There are no proceedings/investigation pending against any of the Applicant Companies

20.

21.

under Sections 210 — 217, 219, 220, 223, 224, 225, 226 & 227 of the Act and/or Sections 235
to 251 of the Act and the like. There are no winding up petitions and/or any proceedings under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code pending against any of the Companies.

Details of approvals, sanctions or no-objection(s), if any, from regulatory or any other
governmental authorities required, received or pending for the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement.
Notice under Section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 is being given to the Central
Government, Registrar of Companies, Income Tax Authorities and Reserve Bank of India
in respect of all Companies.
Notice under Section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 is being given to the Official
Liquidator in respect of Transferor Company.

General:

The rights and interests of the Equity Shareholders, Secured or Unsecured Creditors
of the Applicant Companies will not be prejudicially affected by the Scheme as no
sacrifice or waiver is, at all called from them nor their rights sought to be modified in
any manner.

There are no winding up proceedings or any proceedings under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Act, pending against any of the Applicant Companies as of date.

The following additional documents will be open for inspection to the Shareholders and
Unsecured Creditors of all Applicant Companies at the Registered Office between
11.00 am to 1.00 p.m. on all working days (except Saturday and Sunday) upto one day
prior to the date of meeting:
Audited financial results of all the Applicant Companies as on 315t March 2023
Unaudited financial results of all the Applicant Companies as on 308t June 2023
Papers and proceedings in Company Application No. 63 of 2023 including certified
copy of the Order of the Ahmedabad Bench of the National Company Law Tribunal
in the said Company Application dispensing with the meetings of Secured Creditors of
the Applicant Transferor Company and directing the convening and holding of the
meetings of the Equity Shareholders and Unsecured Creditors of both the Applicant
Companies and Secured Creditors of the Applicant Transferee Company;
Copy of Scheme of Amalgamation (by way of Absorption);
Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of all Applicant Companies.
Valuation Report dated 08" July, 2023, provided by CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav, a
Registered Valuer.

7.  Copy of the Statutory Auditors’ certificates dated 5" September 2023 issued by M/s.
Devadiya & Associates, Chartered Accountants for the Applicant Transferor
Company and for the Transferee Company dated 5" September 2023 issued by
M/s K P Shah Associates, Chartered Accountants certifying that the accounting
treatment proposed in the Scheme is in conformity with the Accounting Standards
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013

8. Copies of the resolutions passed by the Board of Directors of Transferor Company
and Transferee Company dated 20" July 2023 and 22" July 2023, approving the
Scheme.

wp =

ook

A copy of the Scheme, Explanatory Statement may be obtained free of charge between
11.00 a.m. to 1.00 p.m. on any working day (except Saturday and Sunday) from the
Registered Office of the Applicant Companies or / and at the office of Advocates Mrs.
Swati Saurabh Soparkar, situated at 301, Shivalik 10, Opp. SBI Zonal Office, S.M.
Road, Ambawadi, Ahmedabad-380015, in the state of Gujarat.
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V. This statement may be treated as an Explanatory Statement under Section 230 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises,
Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

sd/ Ramesh Varadan

Dated : 22nd December, 2023 Authorized Director

Registered Office of the Transferor Mr. Ramesh Varadan

Company:
C-803, Safal Parivesh, Prahaladnagar, Ahmedabad
380015 in the state of Guijarat

Registered Office of the Transferee

Company:

Plot No. 1062 & 1063, GIDC Sanand-Il Industrial Estate,
Dist. Ahmedabad, 382170 in the state of

Guijarat.
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ANNEXURE A
197

SCHEME OF AMALGAMATION (MERGER EY ABSORPTION)

OF

YIZUMI PRECISION MACHINERY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

«...Transferor Company

WITH

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

.. Transferee Company

THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS AND CREDITORS

UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 READ WITH SECTIONS 66 & 52
AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

This Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) (the Scheme) is
presented under Sections 230 to 232 read with Section 66 and 52 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment or amendment thereof), as may be applicable, for the
merger of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited
[“Transferor Company” or “Yizumi Precision”] with Yizumi Advanced
Processing Technology Private Limited [“Transferee Company” or
“Yizumi Advanced’| and their respective shareholders. For the
purpose of this Scheme, Yizumi Group shall mean as defined under the

Definitions (Refer Clause 1.16) to this Scheme.

we e AEY BYT LTD
YiTUM1 ADYANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PYT. LI “
PR L0 w AL X
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A. Description of the Companies: .!" ﬁ %/

A.1 Transferor Company
a. Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited is a private
company limited by shares incorporated on August 04, 2016 under
the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office at C-803,
Safal Parivesh, Prahaladnagar, Dist.-Ahmedabad, 380015, in the
state of Gujarat. (“Transferor Company” or “Yizumi Precision”)
[CIN: U29190GJ2016PTC093223]. In 2016, Yizumi Group based
at China conducted in-depth research on the injection molding
industry in India and found that Indian market has a huge
demand for injection molding products and there is a huge market
opportunity. Yizumi Group incorporated a subsidiary namely
Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited in the state of,
Gujarat, India. With production base of approximately 8000
square metres, Yizumi Precision is operational since May 2017,
and is engaged in the production, sales and service support of
injection molding machines. 90% shares of the said company are
held by Yizumi Holdings Co., Ltd and 10% shares held by an
individual, Indian resident. The company has not changed its

name in last 5 preceding years.

A.2 Transferee Company

b. Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited is a
private company limited by shares incorporated on June 25, 2019
under the Companies Act, 2013 having its registered office at Plot
No. 1062 & 1063, GIDC Sanand-II Industrial Estate, Taluka
Sanand, Dist.-Ahmedabad 382170 in the state of Gujarat.
(“Transferee Company” or “Yizumi Advanced”) [CIN:
U29230GJ2019FTC108825]. The Company was set-up inter alia
to carry out the business of manufacturing of Injection molding,
Die casting machine, Rubber injection molding machine,
Fabrication and automation system. 90% shares of the said
company are held by Yizumi group companies and 10% shares
held by an individual, Indian resident. The company has not

changed its name in last 5 preceding years.

ROCESSING TECHHOLOGY BVT. LTD.
FA.Sshof
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B. Rationale of the Scheme: ' ) c’ ﬁ

Both these companies are part of the same grc-ﬁp i.e., Yizumi Group and
are engaged in same line of business. The Board of Directors of both the
companies considered the merger of both entities which will result in
consolidation of businesses as well as simplification of structure
(including shareholding structure). The proposed merger envisaged
under this Scheme is in line with the current global industry practice to
achieve size, scalability, integration, greater financial strength and
flexibility there by maximizing shareholder value and to achieve higher
long-term financial returns. The proposed scheme is envisaged to result
in the following benefits:

» Integration of business operations.

e Greater efficiency in cash management of the amalgamated entity, and
unfettered access to cash flow generated by the combined business which
can be deployed more efficiently to fund growth opportunities.

¢ Garner the benefits arising out of economies of large scale and lower
operating costs.

* Pooling and rationalization of talents in terms of manpower, management,
administration etc. to result in savings of costs.

e Avoidance of duplication of administrative functions, reduction in
multiplicity of legal and regulatory compliances and cost.

* Integrated operational and marketing strategies, inter-transfer of
resources / costs will result in optimum utilization of assets.

* Bring uniformity in corporate policy.

* Benefit of operational synergies to the combined entity and greater leverage
in operations, planning and process optimization.

e The proposed amalgamation will be beneficial to both the companies
and their respective shareholders and creditors, employees and other

stakeholders and not prejudicial to the interests of the shareholders

In view of the aforesaid, the Board of Directors of both the companies
have proposed this scheme for the transfer and vesting of whole of the
undertaking of the Transferor company with and into the Transferee
Company pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

It is further clarified that as a consequence of the proposed Scheme of
Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption), there will be no change in

control or economic beneficial ownership with respect to total
AECCIE TEI
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shareholding of the promoters/ promoter group i.e. the Ultimate

Beneficial Owner/s.

For detailed shareholding pattern, please refer to the Group Structure

annexed as Schedule-II to this scheme.

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

L1
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1.3.

1.4.
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In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context
thereof, (i terms defined in the introductory paragraphs and
recitals shall have the same meanings throughout this Scheme
and (ii) the following words and expressions, wherever used
(including in the recitals and the introductory paragraphs above),

shall have the following meanings:

‘Act’ or ‘the Act’ means the Companies Act, 2013 and any rules,
regulations, notifications, circulars or guidelines issued
thereunder including any statutory modifications, re-enactments

or amendments thereof for the time being in force.

‘Applicable Law(s)’ means any statute, notification, bye laws,
rules, regulations, guidelines or common law, policy, code,
directives, ordinance, schemes, notices, orders or instructions or
law enacted or issued or sanctioned by any Appropriate Authority
including any modification or re-enactment thereof for the time

being in force.

‘Appointed Date’ means 01% April, 2023 or such other date as
may be directed or approved by the National Company Law
Tribunal or any other appropriate authority.

‘Appropriate Authority’ means any governmental, statutory,
regulatory, departmental or public body or authority of India
including Registrar of Companies, Reserve Bank of India or the

National Company Law Tribunal.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” in relation to the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company, as the case may be, means
the board of directors of such company, and shall include a

committee duly constituted and authorized or individuals

g g

Page 23

YA shah \I\"'XJ

DIRECTOR | AUTHO. SIGH.



Page 24

<o)
authorized for the purposes of matters pertaining to the merger,

this Scheme and/or any other matter relating thereto;

1.6. ‘Effective Date’ means the last of the dates on which the

conditions mentioned in Clause 16 are satisfied.

1.7. “Employees” means all the employees of the Transferor Company
who are on the pay-roll of the Transferor Company as on the

Effective Date;

1.8. “Encumbrance” means any mortgage, pledge, equitable interest,
assignment by way of security, conditional sales contract,
hypothecation, right of other persons, claim, security interest,
encumbrance, title defect, title retention agreement, voting trust
agreement, interest, option, lien, charge, commitment, restriction
or limitation of any nature whatsoever, including restriction on
use, voting rights, transfer, receipt of income or exercise of any
other attribute of ownership, right of setoff, any arrangement (for
the purpose of, or which has the effect of, granting security), or any
other security interest of any kind whatsoever, or any agreement,
whether conditional or otherwise, to create any of the same and

the term “Encumbered” shall be construed accordingly;

1.9. “Governmental Authority” means (i) a national or state
government, political subdivision thereof; (i) an instrumentality,
board, commission, court, or agency, whether civilian or military,
of any of the above, however constituted; and (iii) a government-
owned/ government-controlled association, organization in the
Republic of India;

1.10. “Record Date” means the date to be fixed by the Board of Directors
of the Transferee Company for the purpose of determining the
respective equity shareholders of the Transferor Company, who
shall be entitled to receive equity shares of the Transferee

Company as per Clause 8 of this Scheme;

1.11. “Scheme’ or the Scheme’ or ‘this Scheme’ means this Scheme of
Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) in its present form as
submitted to the Tribunal with any modification(s) made under

Clause 16 of the Scheme as approved or directed by the Tribunal

AGES Gk,
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or such other competent authority, as may be applicable.

1.12. “Transferee Company” or “Yizumi Advanced” means Yizumi
Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited, a private limited
company incorporated on June 25, 2019 under the Companies
Act, 2013 with CIN: U29230GJ2019FTC108825 currently having
its registered office at Plot No. 1062+1063 GIDC Sanand-II
Industrial Estate, Taluka Sanand, Dist.-Ahmedabad Gujarat
382170 India;

1.13. “Transferor Company” or “Yizumi Precision” means Yizumi
Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited, a private limited
company incorporated on August 04, 2016 under the Companies
Act, 2013 with CIN U29190GJ2016PTC093223 currently having
its registered office at C-803, Safal Parivesh, Prahaladnagar, Dist.-
Ahmedabad Gujarat 380015 India;

1.14. “Tribunal” or “NCLT” means the National Company Law
Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench, having jurisdiction in relation to
Transferee Company and Transferor Company, being constituted
and authorized as per the applicable provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for approving any scheme of arrangement, compromise
or reconstruction of companies under Section 230 to 240 of the

Companies Act, 2013, if applicable.

1.15. “Undertaking” means all the undertakings and entire business,
activities and operations of the Transferor Company in India, as a

going concern, including, without limitation:

a. all the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable,
tangible or intangible, real or personal, in possession or
reversion, corporeal or incorporeal, present, future or
contingent of whatsoever nature) of the Transferor Company,
whether situated in India including, without limitation, all
land, buildings and structures, offices, branches, residential
and other premises, capital work-in-progress, machines and
equipment, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, computers,
information technology equipment, laptops, server, vehicles,
appliances, accessories, power lines, stocks, current assets

(including inventories, sundry debtors, bills of exchange, loans

YIZUbil ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LID. T PagaiGial 3811) P, L1p,
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and advances), investments of all kinds (including shares,
scrips, stocks, bonds, debenture stocks, units or pass through
certificates, investment in subsidiaries), cash and bank
accounts (including bank balances), contingent rights or
benefits, benefits of any deposits, earnest monies, receivables,
advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid by
the Transferor Company, financial assets, benefit of any bank
guarantees, performance guarantees and letters of credit, hire
purchase contracts and assets, lending contracts, rights and
benefits under any agreement, benefit of any security
arrangements or under any guarantees, reversions, powers,
tenancies in relation to the office and/or residential properties,
rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email,
internet, leased line connections and installations, utilities,
electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds,
benefits of assets or properties or other interest held in trust,
registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangements of all
kind, privileges and all other rights, easements, privileges,
liberties and advantages of whatsoever nature and wheresoever
situate belonging to or in the ownership, power or possession
and in the control of or vested in or granted in favour of or
enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in connection with or
relating to the Transferor Company and all other interests of
whatsoever nature belonging to or in the ownership, power,
possession or the control of or vested in or granted in favour of
or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company

in India;

all permits, quotas, rights, entitlements, industrial and other
licences, contracts, agreements, bids, tenders, letters of intent,
expressions of interest, memorandums of understanding, offer
letters, approvals, consents, privileges, incentives deductions,
exemptions, rebates, allowances, amortization, tax credits
[including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment tax,
deferred tax assets/liabilities, tax deducted at source, tax
collected at source, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act,
allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under Income-tax Act,
tax refunds, tax losses and exemptions in respect of the profits

of the undertaking of the Transferor Company for the residual
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period, i.e., for the period remaining as on the Appointed Date
out of the total period for which the benefit or exemption is
available, if any, in law if the merger pursuant to this Scheme
does not take place, all other rights, exemptions and other
benefits under any policy announcements issued or
promulgated by the government of India or state government
or any other government body or authority or any other like
benefits under any statute] receivables, and liabilities related
thereto, licenses, powers and facilities of every kind, nature
and description whatsoever provisions and benefits of all
agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other
interests in connection with or relating to the Transferor
Company, whether or not so recorded in the books of accounts

of the Transferor Company;

all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities, both
present and future, current and non-current (including
deferred tax liabilities, contingent liabilities and the Liabilities
and obligations under any licenses or permits or schemes) of
every kind, nature and description whatsoever and howsoever
arising, raised or incurred or utilized, whether secured or
unsecured, whether provided for or not in the books of
accounts or disclosed in the balance sheet of the Transferor

Company; and

all trade and service names and marks, patents, copyrights,
goodwill and other intellectual property rights of any nature
whatsoever, books, records, files, papers, software licenses
(whether proprietary or otherwise), computer programs,
manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising
material, lists of present and former customers and suppliers,
other customer information, customer credit information,
customer pricing information and all other records and
documents, whether in physical or electronic form relating to

business activities and operations of the Transferor Company.

all staff and employees and other obligations of whatsoever
kind, including liabilities of the Transferor Company with
regard to its employees, with respect to the payment of

|
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gratuity, superannuation, pension benefits and the provident
fund or compensation or benefits, if any, in the event of
resignation, death, voluntary retirement or retrenchment or

otherwise.

f. any statutory licenses, permissions, registrations or approvals
or consents held by the Transferor Company required to carry
on the operations shall stand vested in or transferred to the
Transferee Company without any further act or deed and shall
be appropriately mutated by the statutory authorities
concerned therewith in favour of the Transferee Company
and the benefit of all the statutory and regulatory
permissions, environmental approvals and consents,
registration or other licenses and consents shall vest in and
become available to the Transferee Company as if they were
originally obtained by the Transferee Company. In so far as
the various incentives granted by any Governmental Authority
or by any other person, or availed by the Transferor Company,
are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to
the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions as
applicable to the Transferor Company, as if the same had been
allotted and/ or granted and/ or sanctioned and/ or allowed
to the Transferee Company.

It is intended that the definition of ‘Undertakings of the Transferor
Company’ under this Clause would enable the transfer of all
property, assets, rights, duties, licenses, Employees and Liabilities
of the Transferor Company into the Transferee Company pursuant
to this Scheme.

1.16. “Yizumi Group” means all the entities forming part of the Group

Structure as encapsulated under Schedule-II of this Scheme.

2. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

2.1. The Scheme set out herein in its present form with or without
any modification(s) approved or imposed or directed by the Tribunal
or any other competent authority, or made as per the Scheme, shall
be effective from the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the
Effective Date. Fro e LS
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2.2.

effective’ or ‘upon this Scheme be effective’ or ‘effectiveness of the

3.

3.1.

3.2 The share capital of Transferee Company as at 315 March, 2023 is as

Particulars Amount (In INR)
Authorized Capital
22,25,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 22,25,00,000
Total 22,25,00,000
| Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up Capital
.L §
| 20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each E 20,00,00,000
Issuance of 2,22,222 Equity Shares of Rs. 2,22,22.200
100 each on 5t May, 2023
Total 22,22,22,200
CESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT_LTD
-l shaia

Scheme’ shall mean the Effective Date.

SHARE CAPITAL

1s as under:

206

Any references in the Scheme to ‘upon the Scheme becoming

The share capital of Transferor Company as at 315 March, 2023

Particulars Amount (In INR )
Authorized Capital
3,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 3,00,00,000
Total 3,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up Capital
2,95,792 equity shares of Rs. 100 each 2,95,79.200
Total 2,95,79,200

There are no changes in share capital of transferor company since

31st March, 2023.

under:
Particulars Amount (In INR)
Authorized Capital
22,25,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each 22,25,00,000

Total

22,25,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid - up Capital

20,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each

20,00,00,000

Total

20,00,00,000

On 5% May, 2023, 2,22,222 equity shares has been issued by

following requisite procedure. The share capital of Transferee

Company as at 015t June, 2023 is as under:
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Subsequent to the above change in May 2023 and up to the date
of approval of this Scheme by the Board of Transferor Company,
there has been no change in the stated capital of Transferor or

Transferee Company except as stated aforesaid.

There are no existing commitments, obligations or arrangements
by the Transferor Company as on the date of sanction of this
Scheme by the Board of Directors to issue any further shares or

convertible securities.

4. AMALGAMATION OF COMPANIES

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date, pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme by the
Tribunal or any other competent authority and pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Act, the entire business and whole of the Undertaking of
the Transferor Company shall be and stand vested in or be deemed
to have been vested in the Transferee Company, as a going concern
without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to
become, as and from the Appointed Date, the undertaking of the
Transferee Company by virtue of and in the manner provided in this

Scheme.

The requisite sanctions or approvals including but not limited to in-
principle approvals, sanctions of Central Government or any
government authority or any other agency or department or
authorities concerned being obtained and granted in respect of any
of the matters in respect of which such sanction or approval is

required under any law;

4.1 Transfer and Vesting of Assets
Without prejudice to the generality of Clause 4 above, upon this
Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date:

a. All the estate, assets, properties, rights, claims, title, interest and
authorities including accretions and appurtenances comprised in the
Undertaking of whatsoever nature and where so ever situate shall,
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other
applicable provisions of Applicable Law, if any, without any further act

or deed, be and stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee

Page 11 of 36
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Company and/or be deemed to be transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company as a going concern so as to become, as and from
the Appointed Date, the estate, assets, properties, rights, claims, title,
interest and authorities of the Transferee Company.

b. All immovable properties of the Transferor Company, if any, including
land together with the buildings and structures standing thereon and
rights and interests in immovable properties of the Transferor
Company and all documents of title, rights and easements in relation
thereto shall be vested in and/or be deemed to have been vested in the
Transferee Company by operation of law pursuant to sanctioning of
the Scheme and upon the Scheme becoming effective, without any
further act or deed done or being required to be done by the Transferor
Company and/or the Transferee Company. Such assets shall stand
vested in Transferee and shall be deemed to be and become the
property as an integral part of the Transferee Company by operation
of law. The Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise all rights
and privileges attached to such immovable properties and shall be
liable to pay the ground rent and Taxes and fulfil all obligations in
relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation
or substitution of the title to the immovable properties shall, upon this
Scheme becoming effective, be made and duly recorded in the name of
the Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities pursuant to
the sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunal and upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme in accordance with the terms hereof. Further the
mere filing thereof with the appropriate registrar or sub-registrar or
with the relevant Government Authority shall suffice as a record of
continuing title with Transferee Company and shall be constituted as
a deemed mutation and substitution thereof. The Transferee Company
shall upon the Scheme becoming effective be entitled to the delivery
and possession of all documents of title to such immovable property
in this regard. Further, at the discretion of Transferee Company, such
immovable properties can be vested pursuant to a separate
conveyance or any other agreement as well.

c. Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 4(a) and 4(b) above, in
respect of such of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company
as are movable in nature or incorporeal property or are otherwise
capable of vesting or transfer by delivery or possession, or by
endorsement and/or delivery, the same shall stand so transferred or

vested by the Transferor Company upon the coming into effect of this
. Pagel20f36
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Scheme, and shall, become the assets and property of the Transferee
Company with effect from the Appointed Date pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, without requiring any
deed or instrument of conveyance for transfer or vesting of the same.
In respect of such of the assets and properties belonging to the
Transferor Company (other than those referred to in Clause I above)
including sundry debtors, receivables, bills, credits, loans and
advances, if any, whether recoverable in cash or in kind or for value
to be received, bank balances, investments, earnest money and
deposits with any government, quasi government, local or other
authority or body or with any company or other person, the same shall
stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company and/or be
deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the Transferee
Company, without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge
and without any notice or other intimation to any third party, upon
coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed
Date pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act. All
assets, rights, title, interest, investments and properties of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date, whether or not
included in the books of the Transferor Company, and all assets,
rights, title, interest, investments and properties, which are acquired
by the Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date but prior
to the Effective Date, shall be deemed to be and shall become the
assets, rights, title, interest, investments and properties of the
Transferee Company, and shall under the provisions of Sections 230
to 232 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act, without
any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to and
vested in and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and
with effect from the Appointed Date or from the date of their
acquisition (after the Appointed Date but before the Effective Date) as

the case may be, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of
the Act.

All the profits or costs, charges, or expenditure accruing to the
Transferor Company in India or expenditure or losses arising or
incurred or suffered by the Transferor Company shall for all purpose
be treated and be deemed to be and accrue as the profits, costs,

charges, expenditure or losses of Transferee Company, as the case
. Pagf: I3 nf 35
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| B All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment

may be.

tax, deferred tax assets/liabilities, tax deducted at source, tax
collected at source, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act,
allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under Income-tax Act etc.),
including any interest, penalty, surcharge and cess, if any, paid /
payable by or refunded / refundable to the Transferor Company,
including all or any refunds or claims shall be treated as the tax paid
/ payable by the Transferee Company, or as the case may be,
refunds/claims, of the Transferee Company, and any tax incentives,
advantages, privileges, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act,
allowance for unabsorbed depreciation under Income-tax Act,
deductions otherwise admissible such as under Section 40, 40A, 43B,
etc. of the Income-tax Act, exemptions, credits, exemptions,
deductions / holidays, remissions, reductions etc., as would have
been available to the Transferor Company, shall pursuant to this

Scheme becoming effective, be available to the Transferee Company;

and

g. All the benefits under the various incentive schemes and policies that
the Transferor Company is entitled to, including tax credits, tax
deferral, exemptions, holidays and benefits, tenancy rights, liberties,
special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred
upon or held or availed by the Transferor Company, rights of any claim
not made by the Transferor Company in respect of any refund of tax,
duty, cess or other charge, including any erroneous or excess payment
thereof made by the Transferor Company and any interest thereon and
all rights or benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to the
Transferor Company, whether on, before or after the Appointed Date,
shall upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the
Appointed Date be transferred to and vest in the Transferee Company
and all benefits, entitlements and incentives of any nature whatsoever,
shall be claimed by the Transferee Company and these shall relate
back to the Appointed Date as if the Transferee Company was
originally entitled to all benefits under such incentive schemes and/or

policies.

h. All the licenses, permits, registrations, quotas, entitlements, approvals,

permissions, registrations, incentives, tax deferrals, exemptions and

FOR, VUGl PRECIZIONEHg Hmﬁ'ﬂﬁm;g&/
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benefits, concessions, grants, rights, claims, tenancy rights, liberties,
special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred
upon or held or availed of by the Transferor Company and all rights
and benefits that have accrued or which may accrue to the Transferor
Company, whether on, before or after the Appointed Date, including
income tax benefits and exemptions, shall, under the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if
any, without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or charge be
and stand transferred to and vest in and/or be deemed to be
transferred to and vested in and be available to the Transferee
Company so as to become the licenses, permits, registrations, quotas,
entitlements, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives, tax
deferrals, exemptions and benefits, concessions, grants, rights,
claims, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other benefits or
privileges of the Transferee Company and shall remain valid, effective

and enforceable on the same terms and conditions.

1

4.2 Transfer and Vesting of Liabilities
a. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the
Appointed Date all debts and liabilities of the Transferor Company
including all secured and unsecured debts (in whatsoever currency),
liabilities (including contingent liabilities), duties and obligations of
the Transferor Company of every kind, nature and description
whatsoever whether present or future, and howsoever arising, along
with any charge, encumbrance, lien or security thereon (herein
referred to as the “Liabilities”) shall, pursuant to the sanction of this
Scheme by the Tribunal and under the provisions of Sections 230 to
232 of the Act and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act,
without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or thing, be and
stand transferred to and vested in and be deemed to have been
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, to the extent
they are outstanding on the Effective Date so as to become as and from
the Appointed Date the Liabilities of the Transferee Company on the
same terms and conditions as were applicable to the Transferor
Company, and the Transferee Company shall meet, discharge and
satisfy the same and further it shall not be necessary to obtain the
consent of any third party or other person who is a party to any
contract or arrangement by virtue of which such Liabilities have arisen

in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause.
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Where any such debts, liabilities, duties and obligations of the
Transferor Company as on the Appointed Date have been discharged
by such Transferor Company on or after the Appointed Date and prior
to the Effective Date, such discharge shall be deemed to be for and on

account of the Transferee Company upon the coming into effect of this
Scheme.

All loans raised authorized and all liabilities, duties and obligations
incurred or undertaken by the Transferor Company on or after the
Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be deemed to have
been raised, used, incurred or undertaken for and on behalf of the
Transferee Company and to the extent they are outstanding on the
Effective Date, shall, upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and
under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act, without any
further act, instrument or deed be stand transferred to and vested in
and be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company and shall become the loans and liabilities, duties
and obligations of the Transferee Company which shall meet,
discharge and satisfy the same.

Loans, advances and other obligations (including any guarantees,
letters of credit, letters of comfort or any other instrument or
arrangement which may give rise to a contingent liability in whatever
form), if any, due or which may at any time from the Appointed Date
to the Effective Date become due between the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company shall, ipso facto, stand discharged and
come to an end and there shall be no liability in that behalf on any
party and the appropriate effect shall be given in the books of accounts

and records of the Transferee Company.

4.3 Encumbrances

a. The transfer and vesting of the assets comprised in the Undertaking to

the Transferee Company under Clause 4.1, Clause 4.2 and Clause 4.3
of this Scheme shall be subject to the Encumbrances, if any, affecting

the same as hereinafter provided.

b. All Encumbrances, if any, existing prior to the Effective Date over the

assets of the Transferor Company shall, after the Effective Date,

Page 16 of 36
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without any further act, instrument or deed, continue to relate and
attach to such assets or any part thereof to which they are related or
attached prior to the Effective Date, provided that if any of the assets
of the Transferor Company have not been Encumbered, such assets
shall remain unencumbered and the existing Encumbrance referred to
above shall not be extended to and shall not operate over such assets.
Further, such Encumbrances shall not relate or attach to any of the
other assets of the Transferee Company. The absence of any formal
amendment which may be required by a lender or trustee or third
party shall not affect the operation of the above. Furthermore, no duty
(including stamp duty), levy, cess of any nature will be payable by the
Transferee Company at the time of transfer of the encumbrance,
charge and/or right covered above with respect to the immovable

property.

c. The existing Encumbrances over the other assets and properties of the
Transferee Company or any part thereof which relate to the Liabilities
of the Transferee Company prior to the Effective Date shall continue
to relate to such assets and properties and shall not extend or attach
to any of the assets and properties of the Transferor Company
transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company by virtue of this
Scheme. Any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to
which the Transferor Company is a party) to the Transferor Company
and their respective assets and properties, shall be construed as a
reference to the Transferee Company and the assets and properties of
the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee Company by
virtue of this Scheme. Without prejudice to the foregoing provisions,
the Transferee Company may execute any instruments or documents
or do all the acts and deeds as may be considered appropriate,
including the filing of necessary particulars and/or modification(s) of
charge, with the Registrar of Company to give formal effect to the

above provisions, if required.

d. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall
be liable to perform all obligations in respect of the Liabilities, which

have been transferred to it in terms of this Scheme.

e. It is expressly provided that, save as herein provided, no other term or
condition of the Liabilities transferred to the Transferee Company is
FUR, TV FRECISION ACH peigd imbTBATD
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amended by virtue of this Scheme except to the extent that such
amendment is required statutorily.

f. The provisions of this Clause 4.3 shall operate notwithstanding anything
to the contrary contained in any instrument, deed or writing or the
terms of sanction or issue or any security document; all of which
instruments, deeds or writings or the terms of sanction or issue or any
security document shall stand modified and/or superseded by the

foregoing provisions.

4.4 Contracts, Deeds etc.

a. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, and subject to the provisions
of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, schemes,
arrangements, insurance, letters of Intent, memorandums of
understanding, offer letters, undertaking, policies and other
instruments of whatsoever nature, to which the Transferor Company
is a party or to the benefit of which Transferor Company may be
eligible, and which are subsisting or have effect immediately before the
Effective Date, shall continue in full force and effect on or against or
in favour of, as the case may be, the Transferee Company and may be
enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor
Company concerned, the Transferee Company had been a party or

beneficiary or oblige thereto or thereunder.

b. Without prejudice to the other provisions of this Scheme and
notwithstanding that vesting of the Undertaking occurs by virtue of
this Scheme itself, the Transferee Company may, at any time after the
coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions
hereof, if so required under any law or otherwise, take such actions
and execute such deeds (including deeds of adherence], confirmations
or other writings or arrangements with any party to any contract or
arrangement to which the Transferor Company is a party or any
writings as may be necessary in order to give formal effect to the
provisions of this Scheme. The Transferee Company shall, after the
Effective Date, under the provisions of this Scheme, be deemed to
authorized to execute any such writings on behalf of the Transferor
Company and to carry out or perform all such formalities or
compliances referred to above on the part of the Transferor Company to

be carried out or performed.
Page 18 of 36
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c. Existing External Commercial Borrowings to be transferred in due

compliance with the Applicable Laws.

d. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, upon the coming

4.5

EN OOATE
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into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, all
consents, permissions, licences, certificates, clearances, authorities,
powers of attorney given by, issued to or executed in favour of the
Transferor Company shall stand transferred to the Transferee
Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or executed
in favour of the Transferee Company, and the Transferee Company
shall be bound by the terms thereof, the obligations and duties
thereunder, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be
available to the Transferee Company.

Employees of Transferor Company

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all Employees of the
Transferor Company shall, become the empinyeas of the Transferee
Company, on same terms and conditions and shall not be less
favorable than those on which they are engaged by the Transferor
Company and without any interruption of or break in service as a
result of the merger of the Transferor Company with the Transferee
Company. For the purpose of payment of any compensation, gratuity
and other terminal benefits, the past services of such Employees with
the Transferor Company and such benefits to which the Employees are
entitled in the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account
and paid (as and when payable) by the Transferee Company.

It is clarified that save as expressly provided for in this Scheme, the
Employees who become the employees of the Transferee Company by
virtue of this Scheme, shall not be entitled to the employment policies
and shall not be entitled to avail of any schemes and benefits that may
be applicable and available to any of the other employees of the
Transferee Company, unless otherwise determined by the Transferee
Company. The Transferee Company undertakes to continue to abide
by any agreement/settlement, if any, entered into or deemed to have
been entered into by the Transferor Company with any employee of

the Transferor Company.

Insofar as the provident fund, gratuity fund superarmuatmn fund,
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retirement fund and any other funds or benefits created by the
Transferor Company for its Employees or to which the Transferor
Company is contributing for the benefit of its Employees (collectively
referred to as the “Funds”) are concerned, the Funds or such part
thereof as relates to the Employees (including the aggregate of all the
contributions made to such Funds for the benefit of the Employees,
accretions thereto and the investments made by the Funds in relation
to the Employees) shall be transferred to the Transferee Company and
shall be held for the benefit of the concerned Employees. In the event
the Transferee Company has its own funds in respect of any of the
employee benefits referred to above, the Funds shall, subject to the
necessary approvals and permissions and at the discretion of the
Transferee Company, be merged with the relevant funds of the
Transferee Company. In the event that the Transferee Company does
not have its own funds in respect of any of the above or if deemed
appropriate by the Transferee Company, the Transferee Company
may, subject to necessary approvals and permissions, maintain the
existing funds separately and contribute thereto until such time that
the Transferee Company creates its own funds, at which time the
Funds and the investments and contributions pertaining to the
Employees shall be merged with the funds created by the Transferee
Company.

d. In relation to those Employees for whom the Transferor Company is
making contributions to the government provident fund or other
employee benefit fund, the Transferee Company shall stand
substituted for the Transferor Company, for all purposes whatsoever,
including relating to the obligation to make contributions to the said
fund in accordance with the provisions of such fund, bye laws, etc. in
respect of such Employees, such that all the rights, duties, powers
and obligations of the Transferor Company as the case may be in
relation to such schemes/ Funds shall become those of the Transferee

Company.

5. Legal, Taxation and other Proceedings
a. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions, and other
proceedings including legal and taxation proceedings, (including
before any statutory or quasi- judicial authority or tribunal) by or
against the Transferor Company pending on the Effective Date shall

be continued and/ or enforced by or against the Transferee Company
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as effectually and in the same manner and to the same extent as if the
same had been instituted by or against the Transferee Company.

b.  If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever nature by or against
the Transferor Company is pending, the same shall not abate or be
discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of or by
anything contained in this Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other
legal proceedings may be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or
against Transferee Company, as the case may be, in the same manner
and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued,
prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company as if
this Scheme had not been made.

¢. In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings which are to be
initiated or may be initiated against the Transferor Company,
Transferee Company shall be made party thereto and any payment
and expenses made thereto shall be the liability of Transferee

Company.

6. Conduct of Business

From the Appointed date until the Effective Date:

6.1 The Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried
on all business and activities and shall hold and stand possessed of
and shall be deemed to hold and stand possessed of all its estates,
assets, rights, title, interest, authorities, contracts and investments for

and on account of, and in trust for, the Transferee Company;

6.2 The Transferor Company shall carry on its business and activities with
due business prudence and diligence and shall not, without prior
written consent of the Transferee Company or pursuant to any pre-
existing obligation, sell transfer or otherwise alienate, charge,
mortgage, encumber or otherwise deal with any part of its assets nor
incur or accept or acknowledge any debt, obligation or liability except

as is necessary in the ordinary course of business.

6.3 All profits and income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company,
and losses and expenditure arising or incurred by them (including
taxes, if any, accruing or paid in relation to any profits or income) for
the period commencing from the Appointed Date shall, for all

purposes, be treated as and be deemed to be the profits, income, losses
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or expenditure (including taxes), as the case may be, of the Transferee

Company;

6.4 Any of the rights, powers, authorities or privileges exercised by the
Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been exercised by the
Transferor Company for and on behalf of, and in trust for and as an
agent of the Transferee Company. Similarly, any of the obligations,
duties and commitments that have been undertaken or discharged by
the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been undertaken for

and on behalf of and as an agent for the Transferee Company; and

6.5 All taxes (including, without limitation, income tax) paid or payable
by the Transferor Company in respect of the operations and/or the
profits of the Transferor Company before the Appointed Date, shall be
on account of the Transferor Company and, insofar as it relates to the
tax payment (including, without limitation, income tax], whether by
way of deduction at source, tax collected at source, advance tax, self-
assessment tax, regular tax, or otherwise howsoever, by the Transferor
Company in respect of the profits or activities or operation of the
Transferor Company with effect from the Appointed Date, the same
shall be deemed to be the corresponding item paid by the Transferee

Company, and, shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

6.6 If and to the extent there are inter-corporate loans, deposits, balances
or agreements as between the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company, the obligations in respect thereof shall, on and from the
Appointed Date, stand cancelled and there shall be no obligation /
outstanding balance in that behalf.

6.7 Pending sanction of the Scheme, the Transferor Company shall not,
except by way of issue of shares / convertible securities or otherwise

to the Transferee Company, increase its capital.

6.7 Without prejudice to the provisions of Clause 4, with effect from the
Appointed Date, all inter-party transactions between the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company shall be considered as intra-

party transactions for all purposes from the Appointed Date.

6.8 For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby clarified that nothing in the
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scheme shall prevent the Transferee Company and / or the Transferor
Company from declaring and paying dividends, whether interim or

final, to its equity shareholders.

For the avoidance of doubt, it is hereby further clarified that nothing
in the scheme shall prevent the Transferee Company from issuance of
shares, securities, instruments, Employee Stock Option Plans, bonus
shares, rights issue, splitting or consolidation of its shares, making
investments or undertaking merger or demerger or any other mode of

restructuring.

7. AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM OF ASSOCIATION OF

TRANSFEREE COMPANY

g |
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Consolidation of Authorised Share Capital of Transferee Company

As an integral part of the Scheme, and, upon the coming into effect of
the Scheme, the authorized share capital of the Transferor Company
shall be deemed to be combined with the authorized share capital of
the Transferee Company, without any further act, instrument or deed
on the part of the Transferee Company including payment of stamp
duty and fees payable to Registrar of Companies and the stamp duty
and fees paid by the Transferor Company on their authorized share
capital shall be set-off against any stamp duty and fees payable by the
Transferee Company on any increase in the authorized share capital

of the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme.

It is clarified that the approval of the Scheme by the members of the
Transferee Company shall be deemed approval of the alteration of the
memorandum and articles of association of the Transferee Company
as required under Sections 13, 14, 61, 64 and other applicable

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

The capital clause V of the Memorandum of Association of the
Transferee Company shall, as a part of and, upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme and without any further act or deed, be replaced
by the following clause:

N The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR
57,71,72,600 (Rupees Fifity Seven Crores Seventy One Lakhs
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Seventy Two Thousand Six Hundred only) divided into 57,71,726
(Fifty Seven Lakhs Seventy One Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty
Six only) equity shares of INR 100/- (Rupees Hundred only) each
and with power to increase and reduce the capital of the company
or to divide the shares in the capital for the time being into several
classes and to attach there to respectively any preferential,
deferred, qualified or special rights, privileges or condition as may
be determined by or in accordance with the Articles of the
Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such rights,
privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for the time
being provided by the Articles of the Company and legislative

provisions for the time being in force.

7.4 The share capital being clause 4 of the Articles of Association of the
Transferee Company shall on the Effective Date stand substituted to

read as follows:

The Authorised Share Capital of the Company is INR.57,71,72,600
(Rupees Fifity Seven Crores Seventy One Lakhs Seventy Two
Thousand Six Hundred only) divided into 57,71,726 (Fifty Seven
Lakhs Seventy One Thousand Seven Hundred Twenty Six only)
equity shares of INR 100/- (Rupees Hundred only)

B. Objects Clause:

7.5 In order to carry on the activities currently being carried on by the
Transferor Company, upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the main
objects in the memorandum of association of the Transferor Company
shall be added to the main objects of the memorandum of association
of the Transferee Company, to the extent such objects are not already
covered by those of the Transferee Company. The object clauses as set
out in Schedule I, to the Scheme, shall be added to the memorandum

of association of the Transferee Company.

7.6 Upon the approval of the Scheme by the members of the Transferor
Company and the members of the Transferee Company pursuant to
Section 230 to 232 of the Act, it shall be deemed that the members of
the Transferee Company have also resolved and accorded all relevant

consents under Section 13 of the Act or any other provisions of the Act
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for the commencement of any business or activities currently being
carried on by Transferor Company in relation to any of the objects
contained in the memorandum of association of the Transferee
Company, to the extent the same may be considered applicable. It is
clarified that there will be no need to pass a separate shareholders’

resolution as required under Section 13 of the Act.

It is clarified that for the purposes of Clause 7.1 above, the stamp
duties and fees (including registration fee) paid on authorized share
capital of the Transferor Company shall be utilized and applied to the
increase authorized share capital of the Transferee Company and
there would be no requirement for any further payment of stamp duty
and/or fee (including registration fee] by the Transferee Company for
increase in authorized share capital to that extent. The Transferee
Company shall file requisite forms with the concerned Registrar of

Company.

Under the accepted principle of single window clearance, it is hereby
provided that all the above alterations in Memorandum and Articles of
Association pertaining to Objects Clause as well as Capital Clause, of
the Transferee Company pursuant to the above clauses shall become
operative on this Scheme becoming effective and by virtue of the fact
that the shareholders of the Transferee Company while approving this
scheme as a whole, have approved and accorded the relevant consents
as required under the act for the aforesaid amendments of the
memorandum of the association and articles of the association of the
Transferee Company and the Transferee Company shall not be
required to pass separate resolutions under the applicable provisions
of Section 13, 14 and other applicahlé provisions of the Act. The
Transferee Company undertakes to pay fees if any that may be

required in relation to such amendments.

8 CONSIDERATION

8.1

Pursuant to the Scheme coming into effect and without any further

application, act or deed, the Transferee Company shall issue and allot:

12 Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid up in its equity share capital

in respect of every 1 equity share of Rs. 100 hold by person whose name

appear in the register of members of the Transferor Company (or to such
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of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal
representative or other successors in title as may be recognized by the

Board of Directors of the Transferee Company) as on the Record Date.

8.2 The ratio in which the New Equity Shares are to be issued and allotted
to the shareholders of the Transferor Company is herein referred to as
the “Share Entitlement Ratio”. The same has been worked out by M/s.
Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav, Registered Valuers.

8.3 Upon the Scheme becoming effective and upon the New Equity Shares
being issued and allotted as provided in this scheme, the equity shares
of the Transferor Company shall be deemed to have been
automatically cancelled and be of no effect on and from the record
date.

8.4 The New Equity shares to be issued and allotted as provided in Clause
8.1 above shall be subject to the provisions of the memorandum and
articles of association of the Transferee Company and shall rank pari-
pasu in all respects with the equity shares of the Transferee Company
as on the Effective Date including in respect of dividend, if any that
may be declared by the transferee company on or after the Effective
Date.

8.5 The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares to the respective
shareholders of the Transferor Company as provided in the scheme, is
an integral part thereof and shall be deemed to have been carried out
without requiring any further act on the part of the transferee
company or its shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under
Section 62 of the Act and any other applicable provision of the Act,
and such other statues and regulations as may be applicable were
duly complied with.

9. Accounting Treatment
Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall
account for the Amalgamation in its books of accounts with effect from

the Appointed Date as under:

9.1 The Transferee Company shall follow the ‘pooling of interest method’

of accounting for the amalgamation as per Accounting Standard — 14.

9.2 All Assets and Liabilities, including Reserves, of the Transferor

Company shall be recorded in the books of account of the Transferee
Page 26 of 36
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Company at their existing carrying amounts and in the same form;

9.3 The inter-corporate deposits/loans and advances/balance

9.4

9.5

outstanding between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company will stand cancelled and there shall be no further obligation
on that behalf;

The difference between the amount recorded as share capital issued
(plus any additional consideration in the form of cash or other assets)
and the amount of share capital of the transferor company, in case of
excess shall be credited in the Capital Reserve Account of the
Transferee Company and in case of shortfall it shall be debited to the
Amalgamation Adjustment Reserve account of the Transferee

Company;

The balance in the amalgamation adjustment reserve account as per
clause 9.4 above, if any, shall, on merger, be adjusted in the books of
Transferee Company as under:

i. Firstly, out of the amount available in Capital Redemption
Reserve of Transferee Company (including Capital Redemption
Reserve of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme); and

ii. Secondly, out of the amount available in the Securities Premium
account of the Transferee Company (including Securities
Premium of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee
Company pursuant to the Scheme) in compliance with Section 66
and 52 of the Companies Act, 2013; and

fi. Thirdly, out of the amount available in the General Reserve of the

Transferee Company (including General Reserve of the Transferor
Company transferred to the Transferee Company pursuant to the
Scheme); and

iv. Fourthly, out of the amount available in the Profit and Loss
account of the Transferee Company (including Profit and Loss
Account of the Transferor Company transferred to the Transferee

Company pursuant to the Scheme).

9.6 In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor
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Company and the Transferee Company, the impact of the same till

the Appointed Date will be quantified and adjusted in the reserves of
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the Transferee Company to ensure that the financial statements of
the Transferee Company reflect the financial positions on the basis

of consistent accounting policy.

10. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY

10.1 On the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferor Company shall be
dissolved without being wound up without any further act or deed by
the parties.

10.2 On and with effect from the Effective Date, the Transferor Company
shall be struck off from the records of the relevant Registrar of
Companies. The Transferee Company shall make all necessary filings
in this regard.

10.3 Any obligations/ steps which need to be undertaken by the Transferor
Company pursuant to the sanction of this Scheme shall be fulfilled by

the Transferee Company.

11. Applicability of provisions of Income Tax Act

11.1 The provisions of this Scheme as they relate to the merger of
Transferor Company with Transferee Company has been drawn up to
comply with the conditions relating to ‘amalgamation’ as defined
under Section 2(1B) of the (Indian) Income- tax Act, 1961 (hereinafter
referred to as Income Tax Act). If any terms or provisions of the Scheme
are found or interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the
said Section of the Income-tax Act, at a later date including resulting
from an amendment of law or for any other reason whatsoever, the
provisions of the said Section of the Income-tax Act, shall prevail and
the Scheme shall stand modified to the extent determined necessary
to comply with Section 2(1B) of the Income- tax Act. Such modification
will, however, not affect the other parts of the Scheme.

11.2 Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company is
expressly permitted to revise its financial statements and returns
along with prescribed forms, filings and annexures under the Income
Tax Act (including for purposes of carry forward and set-off of tax
losses, unabsorbed depreciation and tax benefits, if any) and other tax
laws and to claim refunds and/or credits for taxes paid by Transferor
Company, and to claim tax benefits, under the Income Tax Act and

other tax laws etc. and for matters incidental thereto, if required to
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give effect to the provisions of this Scheme. The order of the Tribunal
sanctioning this Scheme shall be deemed to be an order permitting
the Transferee Company to prepare and/or revise its financial
statements and books of accounts on and from the Appointed Date
and no further act shall be required to be undertaken by the

Transferee Company.

11.3 All tax assessment proceedings/appeals of whatsoever nature by or

against the Transferor Company pending and/or arising at the
Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor Company shall be
continued and/or enforced until the Effective Date by the Transferor
Company. In the event of the Transferor Company failing to continue
or enforce any proceeding/appeal, the same may be continued or
enforced by the Transferee Company, at the cost of the Transferee
Company. As and from the Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be
continued and enforced by or against the Transferee Company in the
same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been
continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company.
Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be
discontinued nor be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of the
amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee

Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

11.5 All taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment

tax, deferred tax assets/liabilities, tax deducted at source, tax
collected at source, minimum alternate tax etc.), including any
interest, penalty, surcharge and/or cess, paid / payable by or
refunded / refundable to the Transferor Company with effect from the
Appointed Date, including all or any refunds or claims shall be treated
as the tax liability or refunds/ claims/credits, etc. as the case may be,
of the Transferee Company, and any tax incentives, advantages,
privileges, accumulated losses under Income-tax Act, allowance for
unabsorbed depreciation under Income-tax Act, including payment
admissible on actual payment or on deduction of appropriate taxes or
on payment of tax deducted at source such as under Sections 40, 40A,
43B, etc. of the Income-tax Act, exemptions, credits, deductions /
holidays, remissions, reductions etc., if any, as would have been
available to the Transferor Company, pursuant to this Scheme
becoming effective, be available to the Transferee Company and the
relevant authority shall be bound to transfer to the account of and give

credit for the same to the Transferee Company upon coming into effect
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of this Scheme.

11.6 The Transferee Company shall also be permitted to claim refunds !
credits in respect of any transaction between the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company. Without prejudice to the generality of
Clause 11.1 above, upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
Transferee Company shall be permitted to revise, if it becomes
necessary, its income tax returns and related withholding tax
certificates, including withholding tax certificates, relating to
transactions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee
Company, and to claim refunds, advance tax and withholding tax
credits and carry forward of accumulated losses, unabsorbed
depreciation etc., pursuant to the provisions of this Scheme.

11.7 The taxes (including but not limited to advance tax, self-assessment
tax, minimum alternate tax, tax deducted at source, tax collected at
source), including any interest, penalty, surcharge and/or cess, if any,
paid by the Transferor Company under the Income Tax Act, 1961 or
any other statute for the period commencing from the Appointed Date
shall be deemed to be the taxes paid by the Transferee Company and
credit for such taxes shall be allowed to the Transferee Company
notwithstanding that certificates or challans for such taxes are in the
name of the Transferor Company and not in the name of the

Transferee Company.

12. RESOLUTIONS
12.1 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the resolutions, if any, of

the Transferor Company, which are valid and subsisting on the
Effective Date, shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be
considered as resolutions of the Transferee Company and deemed to
have authorized any Director of the Transferee Company or such other
person(s) as authorized by any two Directors of the Transferee
Company to do all acts, deeds, things as may be necessary to give
effect to these Resolutions, without any further acts to be done by the
Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have any monetary
limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable
statutory provisions, then the said limits shall be added to the limits,
if any, under like resolutions passed by the Transferee Company and
shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the Transferee
Company.

12.2 Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the borrowing limits of
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the Transferee Company in terms of Section 180 of the Act shall be
deemed, without any further act or deed, to have been enhanced by
the aggregate limits of the Transferor Company which are being
transferred to the Transferee Company pursuant to the Scheme, such
limits being incremental to the existing limits of the Transferee
Company, with effect from the Appointed Date.

SAVINGS OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

13.1 The transfer and vesting of undertaking under Clause 4 above and

the continuance of proceedings by or against the Transferee Company
under Clause 4.6 above shall not affect any transaction or proceedings
already concluded by the Transferor Company on or after the
Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the
Transferee Company accepts and adopts all acts, deeds and things
done and executed by the Transferor Company in respect thereto, as

if done and executed on its behalf.

14. APPLICATIONS TO THE NCLT

14.1. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall, with

14.2,

all reasonable dispatch, make application (as may be applicable) to the
National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench, for sanctioning
this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act for an order or
orders thereof for carrying this Scheme into effect and for dissolution
of the Transferor Company without winding up.

The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction
of the Scheme, to apply to any Governmental Authority, if required,
under any Law for such Governmental Approvals which the Transferee
Company may require to own the Undertaking of the Transferor

Company and to carry on the business of the Transferor Company.

15. MODIFICATIONS/ AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME
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Subject to the approval of Tribunals, the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company by their respective Board of Directors or such other
person or persons, as the respective Board of Directors may authorize,
including any committee or sub-committee of the Board of Directors or
persons, may consent, to any modifications or amendments of the
Scheme or to any conditions or limitations that the Tribunals or any
other Governmental Authority may deem fit to direct or impose or which

may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or appropriate by the
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Tribunals or such other Governmental Authority for settling any
question or doubt or difficulty that may arise for implementing and/or
carrying out the Scheme, whether in pursuance of a change in Law or
otherwise. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company by
their respective Board of Directors or such other person or persons, as
the respective Board of Directors may authorize, including any
committee or sub-committee thereof, shall be authorized to take all such
steps as may be necessary, desirable or proper to give effect to this
Scheme and to resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions whether by
reason of any directive or orders of any other authorities or otherwise
howsoever arising out of or under or by virtue of the Scheme and/or any
matter concerned or connected therewith.

o.1. For the purpose of giving effect to this Scheme or to any
modification or amendments thereof or additions thereto, the Board of
Director(s) or their Authorised representative(s)] of Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company may give and are hereby
authorized to determine and give all such directions as are necessary
including directions for settling or removing any question of doubt or
difficulty that may arise and such determination or directions, as the
case may be, shall be binding on the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company, in the same manner as if the same were

specifically incorporated in this Scheme.

16. CONDITIONALITY TO THE SCHEME

YIZiM1 ADVAKD
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The effectiveness of the Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

a. This Scheme being approved by the respective requisite majorities
of the various classes of shareholders as well as Creditors of the
Transferor Company and the Transferee Company if required under
the Act and/ or as may be directed by the Tribunal and the requisite
orders of the Tribunal being obtained;

b. The requisite sanction, approval or permission from Registrar of
Company, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, Income Tax Dept.
as may be applicable or as may be directed by the Tribunal.

c. Tribunal Order under the provisions of Section 230 read with
Section 232 of the Act being obtained by the Transferor Company
and the Transferee Company from the Tribunal.

d. The certified copy of the order of the Tribunal under Section 230 to

232 and other applicable provisions of the Act sanctioning the
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scheme being filed with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat by the
Transferor and Transferee Company.

e. Receipt of any other Governmental Approval to the transfer of the
Undertaking and /or the Scheme, if required under Applicable Law.

17. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/SANCTIONS

17.1 In the event of any of the said sanctions and approvals referred
to in the preceding Clause not being obtained and/ or the Scheme
not being sanctioned by the Appropriate Authority and / or the
Order not being passed as aforesaid within such period or periods
as may be agreed upon between the Transferor Company and the
Transferee Company by their Board of Directors (and which the
Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and Transferee
Company are hereby empowered and authorized to agree to and
extend the Scheme from time to time without any limitation) this
Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be of no effect, save
and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is
contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and/ or liabilities
which might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which
shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically

provided in the Scheme or as may otherwise arise in law.

18. COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES

All costs, charges, taxes, including stamp duties, levies and all other
expenses, if any (save as expressly otherwise agreed) of the Transferor
Company and the Transferee Company arising out of or incurred in
carrying out and implementing this Scheme and matters incidental
thereto shall be borne and paid by the Transferee Company.

19. NO CAUSE OF ACTION

No third party claiming to have acted or changed his position in
anticipation of this scheme taking effect, shall get any cause of
action against the Transferor Company or Transferee Company or
their directors or officers, if the Scheme does not take effect or is

withdrawn, amended or modified for any reason whatsoever.
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Schedule I P59

The following objects clause shall be added to the memorandum of
association of the Transferee Company:

al

bj

d]

g)

h)

¥IZUMI ADVANCED PROCES

A

To provide for the welfare of Directors, employees, or ex-
employees of the Company and the wives, widows and families
of the dependents or connections of such persons by building
or contributing for the building, houses, dwelling or quarters,
or by grants of money, pensions, gratuities, allowance, bonus,
profit sharing bonus or benefits or other payments or by
creating and from time to time subscribing or contributing to
provident and other associations, institutions, funds profit
sharing or other scheme or trust and by providing or
subscribing, or contributing towards places of instruction and
recreation, hospitals and dispensaries, medical and other
attendants, and other assistance as the Company shall think
fit.

To appoint any Directors or Managers of any subsidiary
company or of any other company in which this Company is
or may be interested.

To aid pecuniary or otherwise, any association, body or
movement having similar object, the solution, settlement or
labour problems or the promotion of industry or trade.

To acquire and undertake all or any of the business property
and liabilities of any person, company carrying on or
proposing to carry on any business which the Company is
authorised to carry on or possessed of property suitable for
the purpose of the Company which can be capable of being
conducted so as directly to benefit the Company and to
subsidise or assist any such persons or company financially
or otherwise.

To vest any movable or immovable property rights or interests
acquired by or belonging to the Company in any person or
Company on behalf of or for the benefit of the Company and
with or without any declared trust in favour of the Company.
To pay all preliminary expenses of any company promoted by
the Company or any company in which this Company is or
may contemplate being interested including in such
preliminary expenses all or any part of the cost and expenses
of owners of any business or property acquired by the
Company.

To procure the incorporation, registration or other recognition
of the Company in any country, state or place outside India
and to establish and maintain local registers and branch
places of business in any part of the world subject to law in
force.

To establish, promote or concur in establishing or promoting
any company or companies for the purpose of acquiring all or
any of the properties, rights and liabilities of the Company or
for any other purpose which may seem directly or indirectly,
calculated to benefit the Company and to place or guarantee
the placing of subscribed for or otherwise acquired all or any
part of the shares, business capable of being conducted so as
directly or indirectly to benefit the Company.

En
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i) To pay out of the funds of the Company all costs, charges and
expenses of and incidental to the promotion, formation,
registration and establishment of the Company and the issue
of its capital including any undertaking or other commissions,
broker’s fees and charges in connection therewith and to
remunerate (by cash or other assets or by the allotment of
fully or partly paid shares) or by a call or option on shares,
debentures, debenture-stocks, or securities of this or any
other company or in any other manner whether out of the
Company’s capital or profits or otherwise to any person or
persons for services rendered in introducing any property or
business to the Company, in placing or assisting to place or
guaranteeing the subscription of any shares, debentures,
debenture stocks or other securities of the Company as the
directors may think proper.

J) To lend, invest or otherwise employ or deal with money
belonging to or entrusted to the Company in securities and
shares or other movable or immovable property or without
security upon such terms and in such manner as may be
thought proper from time to time, to vary such transactions\
and investments in such manner as the Directors may think
fit subject to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

k) To pay or satisfy the consideration for any property, rights,
shares, securities or assets whatsoever which the Company is
authorised to purchase, or otherwise acquire either by
payment in cash or by the issue of shares, or other securities
of the Company, or in such other manner as the Company
may agree to partly in one mode and partly in another.

) To indemnify members, officers, directors, agents and
employees of the Company against proceedings, cost,
damages, claims and demands in respect of anything done or
ordered to be done by them for and in the interest of the
Company or any loss, damage or misfortune whatsoever
which shall happen in the execution of the duties of their
offices or in relation thereto.

m) To establish agencies in India and elsewhere for sale and
purchase to regulate and discontinue the same subject to law
in force.

n) To furtherance of the aforesaid objects of the Company.

[a] to enter into negotiations with and enter into arrangements
and contracts and conclude the same with foreign and/or
Indian parties and other persons for obtaining by grant,
licence, and/or on other terms, formulate and other rights
and benefits, and to obtain technical and engineering
information assistance and service know-how and expert
advice for installation of plant and machinery, production and
manufacture of any products, and

[b] to pay for technical know-how, technical and engineering
assistance and information and/ or service rights or privileges
acquired by the Company either in shares of the Company or
partly in cash or otherwise.

[c] to pay to promoters such remuneration and fees and
otherwise recompense them for their time and for the service
rendered by them.
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Schedule I1
Yizumi Group Structure

Romesh
YIEUMI HOLDINGS CO,, LTD. -
| 100%
10% G084 ¥
YIZUMI PRECISION MACHIMERY
{HK) CO., LTD.
v
0%
YIZUMI PRECISION MACHIMERY 10%
[IMDIA] PRIVATE LIMITED
¥
Yizumi Advanced Processing
Technalogy Private Emited
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ANNEXURE B

156

Share Exchange Ratio Report

Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited
with

Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
and
their respective shareholders and creditors

July 2023

YIZUimI

CA ROSHAN NILESH VAISHNAV
REGISTERED VALUER
IBBI/RV/06/2019/11653

This Valuation Report is being submitted by CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav, for the purpose as
mentioned herein, and shall not be used for any other purpose whatsoever.
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ROSHAN NILESH VAISHNAV REGISTERED VALUER
SECURITIES OR FINANCIAL ASSETS
Reqg. No. IBBI/RV/06/2019/11653

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANT

Date: July 8, 2023 Private & Confidential

To,

The Board of Directors,

Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
Plot No. 1062+1063,

GIDC Sanand-ll, Industrial Estate,

Ahmedabad - 382170

Gujarat

To,

The Board of Directors,

Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited
C-B03, 5afal Parivesh,

Prahaladnagar,

Ahmedabad - 380015,

Gujarat

Dear 5ir(s)/Madam(s)

Subject: Share exchange ratio Report for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation between Yizumi Precision
Machinery (India) Private Limited with and into Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private
Limited

Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited (YA’, ‘the Company’, ‘the Transferee’), is a company
engaged in the business of manufacturing of injection molding, die casting machine, rubber injection molding
machine, fabrication and automation system. Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited ("YF, ‘the
Transferor’, is a company engaged in the production, sales and service support of injection molding machines.
(YA and YP are together referred to as ‘the Companies’).

A scheme of amalgamation by absorption under sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Scheme’) has been proposed by the board of directors of the Companies where YP is
proposed to be merged into YA. In consideration, YA shall issue its shares to the shareholders of YP. The
appointed date for the Scheme is proposed to be April 1, 2023,

YA has through an Engagement Letter dated June 22, 2023 ('Engagement Letter) appointed Roshan Nilesh
Vaishnav, Chartered Accountant bearing |IBBI Registration Mumber - IBBI/RV/06/2019/11653 and ICAlI RVO

Page 2 0f 32
Vivro House, T Shashi Colony, Opp. Suvidha Shopping Center, Paldi, Ahmedabad - 380007
roshan.vaishnav@ncvaishnav.com | Ph. No. - (073) 4040 4242
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India read with Companies (Registered Valuers & Valuation) Rules, 2017 ("the Valuer’, 'the Registered Valuer’, T,
‘me’, ‘my’) to assist in determining the share exchange ratio for the Scheme, on the basis of the fair valuation of
the equity shares of YA and YP as on June 30, 2023 (‘Valuation Date’), and issue a report for this purpose.

My Valuation Report (‘'Report’) is to be read in conjunction with the scope and purpose of the Report, the sources
of information and the assumptions, exclusions, limitations, and the disclaimers, as have been detailed
hereinafter,

This letter should be read in conjuncticn with the Report. Should you reguire any further information or
explanations, please contact the undersigned.

Thanking you,

Digitally signed
R?Shan by Roshan Nilesh
Nilesh  vaishnav

. Date: 2023.07 08
Vaishnav 125504 z0530

CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav

Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets
IBBI No.: IBBI/RV/06/2019,/11653

UDIN: 23136335BHAMDZE046
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* Capital Asset Pricing Model

cRPF iy Country Risk Premium
CSRP Company Specific Risk Premium
DCF Discounted Cash Flow
S o R W {1  FreeCashFlowtoFirm
FY  Financial Year 1
G Indian Rupee
SEBI Securities and Exchange Board of India
WwACC Weighted Average Cost of Capital
YA . ﬁzﬁ?n?ﬁ&ﬁﬁcéﬁ?-‘mceming Technology Private Limited
YP Yizumi Precision Machlr;erylﬂna;aﬁr“w;t; i.imited
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2, EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2.1, Details of the Transaction

211.  The board of directors of the Companies are proposing a Scheme of Amalgamation where YP shall
merge into YA from the Appointed date upan the Scheme coming into effect.

22 Scope, Usage and Purpose of Valuation

221 The scope of my services as per my Engagement Letter is to carry out the valuation of the equity shares
of ¥A and ¥YP, and arrive at a share exchange ratio for the Scheme under Companies Act, 2013, as on the
closing of June 30, 2023

2232, For the purpose of arriving at the share exchange ratio and the valuation of the equity shares of the
Companies, | have considered the valuation base as ‘Fair Value' and the premise of value as 'Going
Concern’ under the using ICAl Valuation Standards 2018. Any change in the valuation base or premise
could have a significant impact on the valuation analysis, and conseguently, this Report.

2.3, Summary of the Valuation

Income Approach v
Market Approach ® *
Cost Approach ¥

231, Onthe basis of my valuation analysis and methodologies adopted and mentioned in detail in my Report
herein, | estimate the fair Value of the equity shares of Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private
Limited as on June 30, 2023, to be INR 34.97 Cr. and the fair Value of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India)
Private Limited as on June 30, 2023, to be INR55.75Cr..

232, Based on the fair valuation of the Companies, | recommend a share exchange ratio as under
12 (Twelve) equity shares of Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited of INR 100.00 each
fully paid up for every 1{0ne) equity shares of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited of INR

100.00 each fully paid-up”.

233, My valuation working and summary have been provided in the Annexure [ A-E] to this Repart.

<<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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SOURCES OF INFORMATION

| have relied on the following information provided by YA for the preparation of this Report:

Memorandum of Association and Articles of Association of YA and YP;

Audited financials of YA and YP as on March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022;

Provisional financials of YA and YP as certified by the management of YA for the period ended March 31,
2023 and June 30, 2023;

Shareholding pattern of YA and YP as on June 30, 2023;

Draft Scheme of merger by absorption between YA and YP and their respective shareholders and
creditors;

Projections of the future profitability, Cash Flow and Balance Sheet of YA and YP, as certified by
management of YA from FY 2024 to FY 2028:

Written Representations received from the management of YA dated July 7, 2023;

Such other information, explanations and representations which have been provided by the
management of YA and considered relevant for purpose of preparing this Report.

=<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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SCOPE, USAGE AND PURPOSE OF VALUATION

The scope of my services as per my Engagement Letter is to carry out a valuation of the equity shares of
the Companies, using ICAl Valuation Standards 2018, and arrive at the share exchange ratio for the
proposed Scheme and issue a share exchange ratio Report.

The Yaluation Date considered for the fair valuation of the equity shares of YA and YP, is June 30, 2023.
The valuation presented in this Report is specific to this Valuation Date.

This Report shall only be used by the board of directors for the proposed Scheme as well as to represent
to the regulatory authorities for matters concerning the proposed Scheme. It shall not be used for any

other purpose whatsoever,

This Report is my deliverable to this engagement.

<<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited

YA (‘CIN: U29230GJ2019FTC108825) is a company incorporated on June 25, 2019, engaged in the business
of manufacturing of injection molding, die casting machine, rubber injection molding machine,
fabrication and automation system. YA has expanded its existing operations by setting up a new

manufacturing plant to meet customer needs more effectively and efficiently. The expanded facility can
support higher valumes, reduce lead times, and meet customer requirements more effectively.

The shareholding pattern of YA as on June 30, 2023, is as follows:

Yizumi Precision Machinery (HK) Co. Ltd.

81.00

‘Guangdong Yizumi Precision Machinery Co.

Ltd. il A

Mr. Ramesh Vardan 10.00
Total 100.00

Source: Management Representation

The summary of the financials for YA as on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023 and June 30, 2023 is as under:
Balance Sheet of YA

Tangible As

S T

sets

(INR in Cr.)

103.25

Capital Work-In-Progress 0.00 -
Deferred Tax Assets 0.52 0.52
Other Non-Current Assets 0.8 018
Total Non-Current Assets 82.96 104.70 103.95
Trade Receivables - - 127
Cash & Cash Equivalents 120 198 415
Short Term Loans & Advances 121 239

Other Current Assets 3.08 318 226
Total Current Assets 16.31 7.55 7.68
Total Assets 99.27 Mn2.25 m.e2
Equity Share Capital 20.00 20.00 2222

Other Equity (8.17) (15.97) (16.21)
Total Shareholder's Funds 11.83 4.03
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15.00

External En:um_e;gi;ﬁ{;r_o;r;i_ngﬁ 2 8370 8332
Deferred Tax Liabilities ST 000 0.00
Total Non-Current Liabilities 78.64 98.70 98.32
Trade Payables o.m 0.05 0.00
Other Current Liabilities 8.78 9.48 7.29
Total Current Liabilities 8.79 9.52 7.29
Total Equity and Liabilities 99.27 1M2.25 m.62

Source: Audited Financials of YA and Provisional Financials of YA as certified by the management of YA

Profit and Loss Statement of Y&

-y

Revenue

in

(INRin Cr.)

0.00

OperatingRevenue ~~ 0.01 3 0.00
Employee Benefit Expenses (0.59) (1.03) (0.22)
Other Operating Expenses (0.31) (0.41) (0.08)
EBITDA (0.89) 1.76 {0.30)
Depreciation {0.42) (1.84) 0.76
EBIT (1.31) (0.07) {1.08)
Finance Cost {-3.33} 3 {8.2;] _(‘I_Jii .
Non-Operating & Other Income Y or 203
Profit Before Tax (5.13) (8.34) (0.24)
Current Tax 0.00 - -
Deferred Tax ] _ 7 053 || B
Profit After Tax (5.84) (7.81) (0.24)

Source: Audited Financials of YA and Provisional Financials of YA as certified by the management of YA

<<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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¥P ('CIN: U29190GJ2016PTC093223) is a company incorporated on August 4, 2016, engaged in the
engaged in the production, sales and service support of injection molding machines. YP has a
production base of 8,000 square meters.

The shareholding pattern of YP as on June 30, 2023, is as follows:

Total

Source: Management Representation

The summary of the financials for YP as on March 31, 2022, March 31, 2023 and lune 30, 2023 is as under:

Balance Sheet of YP

P

sets

Tangible As

1437

(INRin Cr.)

14m

Capital Work-In-Progress 6.57 ong: j 0.00
In-Tangible Assets 0.00 0.08 0.07
Other Non-Current Assets 0.22 005 0.07
Total Non-Current Assets 8.79 14.50 14.25
Inventories - Raw Material 57495 71.05 79.34
Inventories - Finished Goods 249 — &oE || 1m0
TradeReceivabless @~ 1795 54.70 61.02
Cash&CashEquivalents 78 ol

Cpsentisasets ineh L B ||

Other Current Assets 10.66 1.69

Total Current Assets 115.23 17016

Total Assets 124.02 184.66

Equity Share Capital 296 296

Other Equity 44.58 17.76

Total Shareholder’s Funds 47.53 20.72

External Commercial Borrowings 7.61 8.2

Deferred Tax Liabilities 0.05 0.25
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Other Non-Current Liabilities ' . ¥ 038

Total Non-Current Liabilities 7.66 8.45 T
Shart Term Borrowings 07 16.69 15.50
Trade Payables I} - 4878 1538 105.53
Other Current Liabilities L 2282
Total Current Liabilities 68.82 155.49 143.85
Total Equity and Liabilities 124.02 184.66 184.44

Source; Audited Financials of YP and Provisional Financials of YP as certified by the management of YA

Profit and Loss Statement of YP
(INR in Cr.)

‘Revenue  165.81 219.22 50.85

Operating Revenue 165.81 219.22 50.85
componentsconmea gy (3939 @59
C;g ggdzs in inventories of finished 631 (15.04) dﬁ fﬂ
Employee benefits expense (8.51) {9.53) (227
Other Operating Expenses C @am ' (45.07) (7.12)
EBITDA 21.49 10.22 8.90
- Depreciation o (029 (0.67) (0.33)
EBIT 219 9.55 B8.57
Finance Cost ek (039 . o IUE_S} Wi 0.45
'Non-Operating & Other Income 0.40 154 270
Profit Before Tax 21.20 10.54 10.78
CurrentTax (5.77) (2.75) -
Profit After Tax 15.43 1.79 10.78

Source: Audited Financials of YP and Provisional Financials of YP as certified by the management of YA

<<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme of amalgamation primarily deals with merger by absorption of the Transferor Company i.e,
YP with Transferee Company i.e. YA,

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, pursuant to the
sanction of this Scheme by the Tribunal or any other competent authority and pursuant to the provisions
of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013, the entire
business and whole of the undertaking of the Transferor Company shall be and stand vested in or be
deemed to have been vested in the Transferee Company, as a going concern without any further act,
instrument, deed, matter or thing so as to become, as and from the Appointed Date, the undertaking of
the Transferee Company by virtue of and in the manner provided in this Scheme.

The Appointed Date of the Scheme is April 1, 2023,

Upon this Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, the authorized share
capital of the Transferor Company shall stand transferred to and be merged/amalgamated with the
authorized share capital of the Transferee Company.

The Transferee Company proposes to issue and allot equity shares, as fully paid up, to the members of
the Transferor Company on the Record Date.

<<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

As per the Scheme the proposed amalgamation will be beneficial to the Transferor Company, the
Transferee Company, their respective shareholders and creditors, employees and other stakeholders
and will have following benefits:

Integration of business operations.

Greater efficiency in cash management of the amalgamated entity, and unfettered access to cash flow
generated by the combined business which can be deployed more efficiently to fund growth
opportunities.

Garner the benefits arising out of economies of large scale and lower operating costs.

Pooling and rationalization of talents in terms of manpower, management, administration etc. to result
in savings of costs.

Avoidance of duplication of administrative functions, reduction in multiplicity of legal and regulatory
compliances and cost

Integrated operational and marketing strategies, inter-transfer of resources / costs will result in
optimum utilization of assets.

Bring uniformity in corporate policy.

Benefit of operational synergies to the combined entity and greater leverage in operations, planning
and process optimization.

<<This space is intentionally left blank=>
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PROCEDURE FOR THE VALUATION

| have performed the following procedures to carry out my valuation analysis:

I had requested and was provided the data as per my detailed requisition list including draft proposed
Scheme, structure of the Companies, current shareholding details, operational details of the companies,
business growth estimates, financial projections, etc.

Discussed with the representatives of the Companies about the proposed Scheme, and the various
operational and financial details and received updates on key business parameters, its earning capacity
and expected financial perfformance;

Selected valuation methodology as considered appropriate for the purpose of my valuation considering
the basis and premise of valuation;

Analyzed the business projections of the Companies for the purpose of my valuation which are valued
using the Income Approach;

Obtained necessary data from the public domain, as considered relevant for my valuation analysis;
Determined the fair value of equity shares of YA and YP and determined the share exchange ratio;

Prepared a draft share exchange ratio report and shared it with the Companies (excluding the
recommended equity share exchange ratio) for confirming the facts stated in the Report;

Issued the final share exchange ratio Report.

<<This space is intentionally left blank>>
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9. METHODOLOGY OF THE VALUATION

a1 In order to arrive at the fair value of a company, there are three traditional approaches which can be
considered:

511 Market approach:

The Market approach is a valuation approach that uses prices and other relevant information generated
by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets, liabilities or a group of assets and
liabilities, such as a business. The market approach should be applied and afforded significant weight if
the subject asset or substantially similar assets are actively publicly traded, or there are frequent and/or
recent observable transactions in similar assets.

8912. Income approach:

The Income approach is a valuation approach that converts maintainable or future amounts such as
cash flows or income and expenses, to a single current (discounted or capitalized) amount. The fair
value measurement is determined based on the value indicated by current market expectations about
those future amounts. The income approach should be applied and afforded significant weight if the
income-producing ability of the asset is the critical element affecting value and/or reasonable
projections of the amount and timing of future income are available for the subject asset.

9.13. Costapproach:

The Cost approach seeks to determine the business value based on the value of its assets. The Cost
approach should be applied and afforded significant weight if the asset is not directly income-
generating and the unigue nature of the asset makes using an income approach or market approach
unfeasible, or the asset can be recreated with substantially the same utility as the subject asset.

92 The Discounted Cash Flow Method under the Income Approach takes into consideration the business
potential and future earnings prospects. Hence, the valuation derived from this Approach would be
more representative of the fair value of the Companies. Based on my analysis, there are no listed peers
with similar risk-return profile as the Companies, and hence the Market Approach has not been used in
the valuation. The Cost Approach is a valuation approach that reflects the amount that would be
required currently to replace/reproduce the service capacity of an asset. As the Companies are
operational, | have considered it more appropriate to arrive at its value using the Income Approach and
not the Cost Approach.

53 My valuation working is detailed in Annexure [ A - E] to this Report.
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9.4 DISCOUNTED CASH FLOWS (DCF) METHOD

9.41  Under this method, the fair value of equity shares of the company is arrived at by discounting the
projected free cash flows to the firm or the equity holders including perpetual or terminal values using
an appropriate discounting factor.

9.4.2  There are two fundamental approaches under this method: (i) Free Cash Flow to the Firm {"FCFF) or (ii)
Free Cash Flow to the Equity ('FCFE"). Under the FCFF approach the free cash flows arrived at using the
DCF methodology represent cash flows available to the equity owners of a business as well as its
creditors. Such free cash flows in the explicit period and perpetuity/terminal value are discounted using
the Weighted Average Cost of Capital {'WACC"), which is based on the cost of equity and the cost of
debt adjusted for the capital structure applicable to the business. Under the FCFE approach the increase
and decrease in debt is considered a part of the free cash flow computations and hence the free cash
flows arrived at is the free cash flow available to the equity owners of the business. Such free cash flow
in the explicit period and perpetuity/terminal value are discounted using the Cost of Equity applicable
to the business.

943 | have thought it appropriate to adopt the FCFF approach in my valuation anzlysis as YA and YP, uses
both Equity and Debt to fund its operations and FCFF represents the amount of free cash available for
distribution to all investors.

944 Thediscount rate reflects the time value of money and the risk associated with the projected future cash
flows. The WACC is the discount rate used to arrive at the value of the Companies.

945 In order to estimate the cost of equity, | have applied the Capital Asset Pricing Model ["CAPMY.
According to CAPM, the cost of equity consists of a risk-free rate and risk premium. The risk premium is
calculated by multiplying the market risk premium by the beta factor, a measure of the systematic risk
of an equity investment adjusted with the leverage in the company. An appropriate percentage of
Company Specific Risk Premium ('CSRP) is further added to account for the risks not captured.

946 Terminal value is the present value of all future cash flows expected to yield to a business at the end of
the explicit period considering 2 mature phase of the business. The Terminal value may be arrived at
using the Gordon Growth Model, Exit Multiple or 5alvage Value at the end of the explicit period.

947 | have used the Gordon Growth model to calculate the Terminal value for which FCFF at the end of
explicit period is determined which is divided by the discount rate minus the assumed perpetuity
growth rate,

948 Presentvalue of the terminal value is added to the present value of the explicit period cash flow to arrive

at the Enterprise Value which is further adjusted by Net Debt of the Company to arrive at the Business
Equity Value prior to adjustment for non-operating surplus assets.
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10. BASIS FOR THE DETERMINATION OF THE FAIR VALUE

101 The valuation of the Companies has been arrived at based on the methodology explained hereinabove,
various qualitative factors relevant to the business, business dynamics and growth potential of the
business and taking into consideration the infarmation, key underlying assumptions and limitations as
articulated hereinabove.

102 | have arrived at the fair value of YA and YP using the methodology as explained. The summary of my
analysis is as under:

(INRin Cr.}

e M/

Income Approach R . e  100%
Relative value per share 3497 5575

: Exchange ratio 12

Source: Valuer's Analysis

103  Inthe ultimate analysis, the valuation will have to be arrived at by the exercise of judicious discretion and
judgments taking into account all the relevant factors. There will always be several factors, such as the
guality of management, present and prospective competition, market sentiment and other factors,
which are not evident from financial information, but which influence the worth of a business. This
concept is also recognized in judicial decisions.

<<This space is intentionally left blank==>
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11. ASSUMPTIONS, DISCLAIMERS, EXCLUSIONS, LIMITATIONS AND
QUALIFICATIONS

(18] This Report has been prepared for the purposes stated herein and should not be relied upon for any other
purpose. This Report is restricted for the purpose indicated in the Engagement Letter but does not
preclude the management of the Companies to provide a copy of this Report to their auditors whose
review would be consistent with the intended use. | do not take any respaonsibility for any unauthorized
use of this Report.

N2 | owe responsibility only under the terms of the Engagement Letter. | will not be liable for any losses,
claims, damages, or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions or advice given by any other
person. In no event shall | be liable for any loss, damages, cost, or expenses arising in any way from
fraudulent acts, misrepresentations, or willful default on part of the management of the Companies or
their directors, employees, or agents of the Companies.

n3 In the course of the valuation, | was provided with both written and verbal information, which | have
evaluated through broad inguiry, analysis and review but have not carried out a due diligence or audit
of the information provided for the purpose of this engagement. | have also relied on data from external
sources also to conclude the valuation. These sources are believed to be reliable anc therefore, | assume
no liability for the truth or accuracy of any data, opinions or estimates furnished by others that have been
used in this analysis.

4  Asimplied by the financial statements, the Companies, are assumed to have those legal rights to the
assets and be subject to those claims represented by the liabilities presented in the financial statements.
As informed by the management of YA, there are no contingent liabilities which are expected to devolve
ar contingent assets with the Companies and there are no surplus assets in the Companies as of the date
of this Report beyond those as are captured in this Report. Accordingly, | assume no responsibility and
make no representations with respect to the accuracy or completeness of any information provided by
and on behalf of YA.

1.5  Forward-looking statements and financial projections for the Companies certified and provided by the
management of YA have been considered for this Report. | do not provide any assurance on the
achievability of the financial projections by the management of the Companies. | express no opinion as
to how closely the actual results will correspond to the projected financials as the achievement of the
financial projections is dependent on actions, plans and assumptions. As the events and the
circumstances may not occur as are expected, the differences between the actual results and the
financial projections might be material.

<<This space is intentionally left blank==>
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16 This Report and the results herein are specific to the purpose of valuation agreed as per the terms of the
Engagement Letter, are specific to the date of this Report and are necessarily based on the prevailing
financial and economic conditions as well as the written and oral information, as made available by the
management of YA as on date of this Report. Events occurring after this date may affect this Report and
the assumptions used in preparing it, and | do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm
this Report.

n7 | have not reviewed the legal compliance required for the proposed transaction, except to the extent
necessary for the purpose of this Report, nor provided any accounting, tax, or legal advice to the
Companies, neither am | required to do so, in terms of the Engagement Letter.

N8  Ihavenotcarried out a revaluation of any assets of the Company, nor physically verified any assets of the
Company, neither am I required to in terms of the Engagement Letter.

M9  This Report does not constitute a fairness opinion, solvency opinion, or an investment recommendation
and is not to be construed as such either for making or divesting investment.

M0 | am independent of the Companies and hold no specific interest in the Companies or any of the assets
of the Companies, nor do | have any conflict of interest with the Companies.

.11 The fee for this Report is not contingent upon the result of the valuation arrived therein.

M2 | am aware that based on the opinion of the value expressed in this Report, | may be required to give
testimony or attend judicial proceedings with regard to the valuation, although it is out of scope of the
assignment. In such an event, the party seeking the evidence in the proceedings shall bear the full cost
and the fees of the judicial proceedings, and the tendering of evidence before such authority, if any, will
be as per the applicable laws.

<<This space is intentionally left blank=>>
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CONCLUSION

On the basis of my valuation analysis and methodologies adopted as mentioned above, | estimate the
fair Value of the equity shares of Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited as on June 30,
2023, to be INR 34.97 Cr. and the fair Value of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited as on
June 30, 2023, to be INR 55.75 Cr.

Based on the fair valuation of the Companies, | recommend a share exchange ratio as under

12 (Twelve) equity shares of Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited of INR 100.00 each

fully paid up for every 1(One) equity shares of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited of INR
100.00 each fully paid-up”.

My valuation working and summary have been provided in the Annexure [ A - E] to this Report.

Thanking you,

Digitally signed
RDShaﬂ oy Roshan Milesh

Nilesh Vaishnav
o Date: 2023.07.08
Vaishnav 125607 +0530

CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav

Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets
IBBI No.: IBBI/RV /06,/2019/11653
UDIN: 23136335BHAMDZE046

Date: July 8, 2023
Place: Ahmedabad
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EXTRACTS OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YIZUMI PRECISION MACHINEY
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON THURSDAY, DATED 20TH JULY 2023 AT 11.00 IST (1:30 P.M.
CST) AT THE MEETING ROOM NO.12, SHUNCHANG ROAD, WUSHA RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE,
DALIANG, SHUNDE, FOSHAN, CHINA

TO CONSIDER AND APPROVE SCHEME OF MERGER BY WAY OF ABSORPTION OF THE COMPANY
BY YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED.

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 233 and 66 & 52 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
and other applicable statutory regulations and subject to applicable provisions of the
Memorandum and Article of Association of the company, sanction of the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) at Ahmedabad having jurisdiction in relation to company Yizumi
Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited and further subject to the approvals of secured and
unsecured creditors of the Company if any, through NCLT convened meeting (unless the same
are dispensed with) and statutory/regulatory authorities including Reserve Bank of India/FEMA,
as may be required, and subject to the final approval/consent of shareholders of the Company if
required (with or without modification as per instruction of NCLT), the draft scheme of
amalgamation of the Company Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (Transforor
Company) with Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited (transferee Company) by
way of absorption as placed before the Board, initialed by the Chairman of the Company for
purpose of identification be and is hereby accepted and approved with following understanding
and noting.

1. The Appointment Date of the scheme would be: 01.04.2023
2. The fair value of the equity shares of the Company as on June 30, 2023 is INR 55.75 Cr.
3. The fair exchange/Swap Ration of the scheme would be

'12 (Twelve) equity shares of the Company of INR 100.00 each fully paid up for every 1 (One)
equity shares of Yizumi Precision Machinery (India) Private Limited (Transforor Company) of
INR 100.00 each fully paid-up'.

4. Major benefits of the scheme to both the Companies (Transferee Company and Transferor
Company) would be
e |ntegration of business operations.

e Greater efficiency in cash management of the amalgamated entity, and unfettered
access to cash flow generated by the combined business which can be deployed more
efficiently to fund growth opportunities.

e Garner the benefits arising out of economies of large scale and lower operating costs.

e Pooling and rationalization of talents in terms of manpower, manggemeat,
administration etc. to result in savings of costs. ALRESIo
S10H BACKIYERY (IHDIALF : ' '

No.1062+1063,6.1.0.C
atellite, Ahmedabad-15. www.yizumi.com Phase-ll, Sanand,Ahmedabad
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e Avoidance of duplication of administrative functions, reduction in multiplicity of legal
and regulatory compliances and cost.

® |Integrated operational and marketing strategies, inter-transfer of resources / costs will
result in optimum utilization of assets.

# Bring uniformity in corporate policy.

e Benefit of operational synergies to the combined entity and greater leverage in
operations, planning and process optimization.

e The proposed amalgamation will be beneficial to both the companies and their
respective shareholders and creditors, employees and other stakeholders and not
prejudicial to the interests of the shareholders.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT in the opinion of the Board, the proposed amalgamation will be
advantageous and beneficial to the company and its shareholders, creditors and all other
stakeholders of the company and that the terms therefore are fair and reasonable.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules made thereunder, consent of the Board be and is hereby accorded to conduct a
meeting to seek approval of members of the company for approval of the scheme.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT without affecting the generality of the authorities given, the Board
of Directors of the Company namely MR. RAMESH VARADAN (DIN: 01940261) and MR. TAO
ZHANG (DIN:07273096) either jointly or individually be and is hereby empowered and deemed
to have authorised to exercise all powers and discharge all functions for the purpose of
implementing the scheme, including the following:

a. to finalise and settle the Scheme including carrying out of any modification(s) thereof, in
consultation with the consultants on the broad terms.

b. To do of all such acts, deeds, sign file, submit or present the draft scheme and related
applications, supplementary applications, petitions, documents, replies which are necessary
or advisable for the implementation of the scheme and upon sanction of the scheme by,
amongst others and/or any other regulatory/government authorities, to implement and to
make the scheme effective, without any further approval of board and to appear before the
NCLT or at offices of the relevant Registrar of Companies, the Regional Director, Department
of Company Affairs etc for above purpose.

c. To assent to and approve any alteration or modification, amend, review etc., to the scheme
which the NCLT and/or any other regulatory/Government authorities may require or
suggest or deem fit to impose and to Seek directions from the respective NCLT for
convening or dispensing with meetings of the shareholders and/or creditors for approving
the scheme and to sign and file undertakings and other documents as may be necessary in
this regard to finalize and issue the notices for convening the meetings of the shareholders
and/or creditors together with explanatory statements and assent to such alterations,
conditions and modifications of the same as per directors of the authorities.

" FOR, YIZUM PRECISION MACHINERY (IWDIA) PAT. LTD.

legt. Office:
803, Safal Parivesh,
atellite, Ahmedabad-15.
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d. To settle any question or difficulty arising under the scheme or with regard to and of the
meaning or interpretation of scheme or implementation thereof in any manner whatsoever
connected therewith or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various
conditions of the scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those.

e. To approve and authorize execution of any agreements, deeds, documents, declarations,
affidavits, writings etc., (including any alterations or modifications) as may be required from
time to time.

f. To approve withdrawal (and where applicable, refiling) of the scheme at any stage in case any
change or modification are suggested/required to be made in the scheme or any condition
suggested, required or imposed, whether by any shareholder, creditor, the NCLT and/or any
other authority, are in its view not acceptable to the company, and/or if the scheme cannot
be implemented otherwise.

g To authorize the officers of the company to discuss, negotiate, finalise, execute, sign, submit
and file all required documents, deeds of assignments/conveyance and any other deed,
documents, schemes, agreements, forms, returns, applications, letters etc. including any
modifications thereto, in each case as may be approved by such directors and/or offices, as
may be required from time to time without any further approval of the board.

h. Take all steps for obtaining approval and/or consents of the shareholders/creditors of the
company, banks, financial institutions and other authorities or entities or agencies as may be
required and for that purpose, to initiate all necessary actions and to take other
consequential steps as may be required from time to time in that behalf;

i. To authenticate any document, instruments, proceedings and records of the company.

J.  To Incur such other expenses as may be necessary with regard to the above including
payments of fees to auditors, advisors, valuers, registrar, and other agencies and such other
expenses that may be incidental to the above as may be decided by them.

k. appoint one or more attorneys/representatives and delegate to them any or all of the powers
or functions entrusted to them under this resolution, as well as to revoke, remove such
persons and to appoint any other persons from time to time to act on their behalf and

l.  to do all such other acts, matters, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable in
connection with or incidental to giving effect to the above or to otherwise give effect to the
scheme and matters related thereto.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT subject to the directions of the NCLT, the company do appoint such
other person as may be the director by NCLT as chairman of the NCLT convened meetings of the
shareholder and / or creditor of the company in relation to the Scheme.

\}

IRECTOR

legt. Office: Factory:
=803, Safal Parivesh, Plot MNo.1062+1063,6.1.D.C
atellite, Ahmedabad-15. www.yizumi.com Phase-1l, Sanand,Ahmedabad
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT certified true copy of the above resolutions be hereby forwarded to
the all authorities concerned as may be necessary."

CERTIFIED TO BE TRUE
For, YIZUMI FREEEJQN MACHINERY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

e S —_

" eon, vl

RAMESH UARﬁDﬁ!}! BECTH
. DIRECTOR
DIN: 01940261

Date: 25/07/2023
Place: Ahmedabad

legt. Office: Factory:
~803, Safal  Parivesh, Plot MNo.1062+1063,6.1.D.C
atellite, Ahmedabad-15. www.yizumi.com Phase-ll, Sanand Ahmedabad
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EXTRACTS OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF YIZUMI PRECISION MACHINEY
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED HELD ON THURSDAY, DATED 20TH JULY 2023 AT 11.00 IST (1:30 P.M.
CST) AT THE MEETING ROOM NO.12, SHUNCHANG ROAD, WUSHA RESIDENTIAL COMMITTEE,
DALIANG, SHUNDE, FOSHAN, CHINA

TO CONSIDER, APPROVE AND TAKE NOTE OF THE VALUATION REPORT ISSUED BY MERCHANT
BANKER VIVRO FINANCIAL SERVICES PRIVATE LIMITED AND ALSO BY IBBI REGISTERED VALUER
RV CA ROSHAN NILESH VAISHNAV ON THE SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO FOR PROPOSED
SCHEME OF MERGER OF THE COMPANY WITH YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY
PRIVATE LIMITED.

"RESOLVED THAT the Valuation Reports dated July 08, 2023 submitted by the Independent
Merchant Banker Vivro Financial Services Private Limited and also by IBBI Registered Valuer RV
CA Roshan Nilesh Vaishnav, on the Share Entitlement Ratio/fair market value of shares as set
out in the Scheme for other merger purpose, placed before the Board, be and is hereby approved
and adopted."

Fron v e SERTIFIED TO BE T ﬁ‘
- FOR, YoM “EFﬂF" BRE MAGHINERY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
1', e
4 g
RAMESH VARADAN

DIRECTOR
DIN: 01940261

Date: 25/07/2023
Place: Ahmedabad

tegt. Office: Factory:
803, Safal Parivesh, Plot MNo.1062+1063,G.1.0.C
atellite, Ahmedabad-15. wwnaLyizumi.com Phase-1l, Sanand,Ahmedabad
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lNDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
To The Members of

Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited

Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of Yizumi Advanced Processing
Technology Pvt. Ltd. (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, for the year then ended, the cash flow statement and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information for the year then ended.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as 2t
March 31, 2023 and its profit and its cash flow for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as &
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701; Key Audit Matters is not applicable to the
Company as it is an unlisted Company
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Other Information

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other informatior..
The other information comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the standalone financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements '

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, and financial performance and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, as
applicable.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess ihe risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal  financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

YIZUM! ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY M. LTD.
y A3 hea b
DIRECTOR / AUTMO. SISH.

Vastrapur, Ahmedabad — 380 015.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of 2
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We
consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our
audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matiers,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated
with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation preciudes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rars
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable. -

2) Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

2L ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PYT. 7D,
b o AL sha )l
BIRECTOR / AUma. Sigw.
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(c) The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt
with by-this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued there
under.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31.
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial control over financial reporting of
the company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Repert
in “Annexure B”

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of ihe Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact on
its financial position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii.  On the basis of the information and explanations received from the Company,
the Company is not required to transfer any amount to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund.

iv.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
as disclosed in the note 31 to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from the borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries™) or

e provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Bencficiaries

v.  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or

YI2UMI AOVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD.
y, A, SW\-« \,\
DIRECTOR | AUTHD. SIGH.



K P Shah Associ

Chartered Accountants

|4k

A/810-11, 8th Floor, Block A,
Ratnakar 8 Square,

Opp. Keshavbaug Party Plot.
Vastrapur, Ahmedabad — 380 015.
Guijarat, INDIA.

® +91 (79) 29601366, 29601399
info@kpshah.co.in

entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company

shall:

e directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or

» provide any guarantee, security or -the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries; and

vi. Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub clause (iv) and (v) contain any

material misstaiement.

vii. The company has not declared or paid dividend during the year. Accordingly,
provisions of Section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

3) With respect to the matter to be included in the Anditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act: According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions to Section
197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the private

limited company.

For, K P Shah Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 109614W)

) f 9 r".{ ' ,,,,,
/7// i P
Jigar K. Shah
P arm er

(Membership No. 126747)
UDIN: 23126747BGUWSET7717

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 22-July-2023

YIZUMI ADVARCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOOY PVT LTD.
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ANNEXURE “A” TO TEE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date)

@ (@
(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets. Accordingly, clause 3(i)(a)(B) of
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Property, Plant and
Equipment were physically verified during the year by the management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. No material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all immovable properties (other than the properties where the company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in the financial statements are held in the name of the company.

(d) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not revalued
its Property, Plant and Equipment. Further, the Company does not have any intangible
assets,

(e) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no proceedings
initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(i)

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is no inventory
outstanding as of March, 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) and clause 3(ii)(b) of the
order is not applicable to the company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets during any
point of time of the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Ti2UMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT LTD.
g, N.S | W ‘\
DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIG.
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(iii)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

)46

A/810-11, 8th Floor, Block A,

Shah A SS c Ale Ratnakar 9 Square,

Opp. Keshavbaug Party Piot,

investments in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii)(a) to
clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
granted any loans, or made any investments, or provided any guarantees, and security
according to provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

‘Accordingly. clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits from the public. Accordingly, clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
required to maintain cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, clause 3(vi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company bas

generally beer regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident
Fund, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods and Services Tax and other material
statutory dues, as applicable with the appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no disputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income-tax , Customs Duty, Goods
and Services Tax and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

(viii)

examination of the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, Income-Tax, or Cess or other statutory
dues, which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of
any dispute.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously not recorded as income in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year.
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(i)

(8) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not

defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of interest
thereon to any lender, as applicable, during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or
government authority.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has utilised
the money obtained by way of term loans during the year for the purposes for which
the loans have been obtained.

(d) According te the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
raised funds on the short-term basis. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(e) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(e) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(f) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)(f) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company

)

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not made
any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause'3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.
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(xi)

(@) According to the information and explanation given to us, no fraud by the
Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the
audit.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, no report under sub
section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the
auditors in the From ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit-and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not
have a vigil mechanism and is not required to have vigil mechanism as per the Act
or SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

(xii) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not a Nidki
Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable Accounting Standards.

(xiv)

(a) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not
have Internal Audit System and is not required to have Internal Audit System as per
the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the

- Company.

(b) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does not
have Internal Audit System and is not required to have Internal Audit System as per
the Act. Accordingly, clause 3(xiv)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its
directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not
applicable to the Company.
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(a) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company does not hold any investment in any subsidiary, associate or joint
venture during the year ended 31 March 2023. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(d) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immedidtely

preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor during the year. Accordingly,

(vix)

clause 3(xviii) of the Grder is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come
to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on
the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to
the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the
facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance that all the liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.
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(xx) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
required to have a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as per the Act.
Accordingly, clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For, K P Shah Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 109614W)

Jigar K. Shah

Partner

(Membership No. 126747)
UDIN: 23126747BGUWSE7717

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 22-July-2023
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the internal financial controls over financial reporting under clause (i) of sub —
section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

(Rejerred to in paragraph 2 (f) under ‘Report on other legal and regulatory requirements’
section of our repor? of even date)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as at
March 31, 2023, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s responsibility for internal financial controls

The board of directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute cf
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ responsibility .

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance
Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the standards on auditing
prescribed under Section 143 (10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls. Those standards and the guidance note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. OQur
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial control system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of internal financial controls over financial reporting

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that:

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(ii)  provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(iii)  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies ot
procedures may detenorate.

YI2UMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLDGY-PYT. LT.

Page 106

VoA s ko

TIRECTOR | AUTNG. SI6R.



Page 107

EE;

i N W S A/810-11, Bth Floor, Block A,
A P Shah Associates Ratnakar 9 Square,

! ] . ' ) ' Opp. Keshavbaug Party Plot,
Chartered Accountants Vastrapur, Ahmedabad — 380 015.

Guijarat, INDIA.
® +91 (79) 20601368, 29601399
info@kpshah.co.in

Opinion ]

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting and
such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For, K P Shah' Associates
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 109614W)

Jigar K. Shah

Partner

(Membership No.126747)
UDIN: 23126747BGUWSE7717

Place: Ahmedabad
Date: 22-July-2023
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023

)34

Amouni in Thousewds

Note | As at March 21, | As at March 31,
R No. 2023 2022
A TY &
1 |Sharaholdars® Funds
(&) Share Capital 3 2,00,000 2,00,000
(b) Reserves and Surplus 4 {1.59.741)1 (81,6691
40,259 1,18,331
2 |Non-Currant Liabilities
{8) Lang-Term Borrowlngs § 9,84,521 7,86,334
(b} Deferred Tax Liabilitles (Net) 11 - BS
{c) Other Long ferm Liabiliies . -
i) Long-Tem Provisions = -
9,84,521 7,856,420
3 |Current Liabilities
(a) Short-Term Bomowings 8 2,500 -
i[b) Trade Payablas 7
Total putstanding dues of MSME - -
Total outstanding dues of other than MSME 100 84
(3 Uinher Current Liabilities 8 94,979 87,649
{d) Short-Term Provisiors 9 158 1 B0
97,737 87,924
TOTAL 11,22 518 9,92,674
1 jiNon~ Currant Asssts
(a) Property, Piant and Equipment and intangible Assats 10
Property Plant and Equipment 10,40,079 3,981,973
Inlangible Assets - -
Capital Work-in-progress 419,398
{b) Non Cumrent investments - -
(c) Uefermed Tax Assets (Net) 11 5,185 -
(d) Othar Non-cumrent Assets 12 1,770 18,250
10,47,033 8.29,621
2 |Current Assets
{a) Trade Receivables - -
{b) Cash and Cash Equivalents 13 19,739 1,20,129
{c) Ghort-Term Loans and Advances 14 23917 12,005
(d) Other Currert Asset 15 31,8629 30,829
75485 163,053
TOTAL 11,22,518 9,82,0674
Fee sccompsanying noles forming ped of the financisf Satemsnis

¥ temns of our report attached
For, K P Shah Associatss
Cherlered Accouriants

Firm FagNo. 1085140

Jigar K. Shah
Fariner
Mem. No.: 126747

For, Yizumi Advanced Proceseing Technology
Private Limited

&/Vﬁwﬂ'\q N %l‘l—z/

Yash Anlibhal Shah Lryau Chan
Director Diracior
(DIN: 08492216) (DIN: 08482217)

ui 2 312676 7RGOWSE 7117
edabad

Flace : Ahm

Date: 22*<Iu{j"1°13
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Place : Ahmedabad
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Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2023

— e m—— — — __ Amount in Thousands
‘ Particulars Note | Year ended Year ended
| No. |March 31, 2023 | March 31, 2022
‘ I Revenue from Operations - | . -
Il Other Income |16 | 32136 216 |
; TOTAL INCOME (Ul =1+ I)| | 32,136 21 6_1
| IV EXPENSES |
| Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-trade - - -
] Employee Benefit Expenses 17 10,346 5,854
I Finance Cost 18 82,696 38,277
Depreciation & Amortization ‘ 10 18,369 4,241
Other Expenses | 19 | 4,066 3,149 |
TOTAL EXPENSES (IV) L 1154717 51,521 |
Profit before Exceptional and Extraordina i
| M Items and Tax (I P:ﬂ N e 130
V1 Exceptional and Extraordinary Items -
Vil Profit Before Tax : (83,341)| {51,305)
VIl Tax Expense
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax (5,270)| 7,075
Taxation adjustments for earlier years | - | 36
IX Profit After Tax (Vi - Vlll) , (78,071)| (58,416)|
| X Earnings per Equity Share 20 | ‘ g
-Basic {39.04) (29.21)
-Diluted (39.04 (29.21),

| See accompanying notes forming part of the financial statements

In terms of our report attached
For, K P Shah Assoclates For, Yizuml Advanced Processing
Ghartered Accauntants Technology Private Limited

T A sk %

Yash Anlibhal Shah Liyao Chen
Jigar K. Shah Director Director
Pariner (DIN: 08492216) (DIN: 08492217)
Mem. No.: 126747

~

uDIN: 2.3\ BAZ4 TRGUWSET T (S
Place : Ahmedabad Place : Ahmedabad L= -'
Date: 1?2 "Qu\\'j"lb?.g Date: 29 ~Quly ~262 0
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Yizuml Advericed Pracessing Yechnology Private Limited
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Cash Fiow Statement for the year anded March 31, 2023
Amount It | Thousands

Yearonded | Yearended
e _ Portloulers | March21.2023 | March31.2022 |
[ A |Cashfiow from Operating Activifies ’
i | Net Profit/ (Loss) Before tax | (83,341) {51,305)
| Adjustments for : i
‘Add: Intersst Expanse ‘ 33,220 18 eoa\
Unrealised Fareign Exchangs (Gain) / Loss (net) 48474 18,888 |
| Depreciation 18,368 | 4, 241
Operating Profit Before Working Capital Changes and |
| Extraordinaty ltems | 17.722 (9.569)
| Changes in worldng capital: |
' Adjustment for increase/(decreass) in Cusrent Assels | : |
a) Trade Recsivabalas and Other Retaivables ; - |
' b) Trade Payables and Other Payables 8 | 89
¢) Other current Asset {999) (30,828)
d) Other Current Liablfities (2,813) 60,571
©) Short-Term Provisions (23) {180)
‘ f) Other Non current asset I 16,480 118,061
Cash generated from operations 30,373 | 2,011 |
income Tax paid/ payabie _ m 1961
| Net Cashflow from Operating Activities (A) | 30.373 [ 1,976 |
B | Cash Flow from Investing Activities: | '
‘ Purchase of PPE Including CWIP | (2,23,948)| {4,04,567)
I. — - —————
| Not Cashflow from investing Activities (B) I (2,23.048)| 4,04.567}
C | Cesh Flow from Finaneclng Activities:
Interest Exponce ({33,220)! (18,608)
Forelgn Exchange (Gain) / Loss {49,474) {16,888)
Increase / (Decreass) in Borrowings 1,87,702 4,90,239
Increase /(Decrease) In short ferm loan& advances (11.322)| (11,850)
Net Cashflow from Finsncing Activitles (C) [ 93.186 | 440,893
Net Increase / (Dacrease) in Cash & Cash Eqivalents '
(A+B4C) {1,00,390) 28,301
Cash & Cash Equivelents at the beigining of the year 120128 | 81828 |
‘Cash & Cash Eguivalents at the end of the year ! 19.738 | 1.20,128
e { ggg_ agcomoan, ing notes forming part of the financial mtemams Sl | .
In terms of our report | sttached
For, K P Shah Assoclates For, Yizuml Advanced Processing
Chartered Accountants Tecohnology Private Limited
Fimn Reg.No.1086814W
- ' Yash Anfibhai Sheh  Liyao cmm
Jigar K. Shah Director Diractor
Partner (DIN: 08492218)  (DIN: 08492217)

Mem. No.: 1286747

uDiN: L3126 vi'zequusm'r 7

Place : Ahmedaba Place : Ahmedabad s/ | \
Date: nf:md ~2619 Date zzfixy 2003 | &
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Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31% March, 2023
1. Corporate Information

Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited (“the Company”) is unlisted Gujarat based
Private Limited Company incorporated on June 25, 2019 under the Companies Act, 2013. The
Registered office of the company is located at Plot 7, Mahagujarat Estate, Moraiya Sanand,
Ahmedabad - 382213, (Gujarat, India. During the Year company has completed the Factory Setup
Capitalization phase and Inaugurated dated 01-October-2022.

The company’s main objcct is to engage in the business of Manufacturing and Trading of Machinery
in the field of Plastic Industry including but not limited to injection molding machine, die-casting
machine, rubber injection machine, high-speed packaging machine and robotic automation system.
The main shareholding of the company belongs to M/s Yizumi Precision Machinery (HK) Co.
Limited (A company registered in Hongkong) and Guangdong Yizumi Precision Machinery Co. Lid.
(A company registered in China).

Note 2: Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation of financial statements

» The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles in India (‘Indian GAAP’), on an accrual basis of accounting
under the historical cost convention. The financial statements comply in all material aspects with
the Accounting Standards as specified in an Annexure to the Companies (Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2006 (as amended) under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rules
made thereunder, as applicable.

s The Balance Sheet and the Statement of Profit and Loss, including related notes, are prepared
and presented as per the requirements of Schedule IIl of the Act. All assets and liabilities have
been classified and disclosed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating
cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III. Based on the nature of the products and time
between the acquisition of asset for processing and their realization into cash and cash
equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of
current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. Cash Flow Statement has been

prepared and presented as per the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) — 3 ‘Cash Flow
Statements’,

2.2 Use of Estimates

e The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Indian GAAP requires the
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements, and the
reported amount of revenues and expenses during the financial year. The Management believes
that these estimates and assumptions are reasonable and prudent. However, actual results could
differ from estimates.
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e Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to
accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in the current and future periods in which the
same are known/ materialized.

2.3 Current & Non-current Classification

e All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current and non-current as per the Company’s
normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013.
Based on the nature of activities and time between the activities performed and their subsequent
realization in cash or cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12
months for the purpose of current/ non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

2.4 Cash & Cash Equivalents

e Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term
balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.5 Cash Flow Statement

¢ Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/ loss before extraordinary
items, if any, and tax is adjusted for the effect of transactions of non-cash and any deferrals or
accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash tflows from operating, investing and
financing activities of the company are segregated based on available information.

2.6 Prior Period and Exceptional items

» All identifiable items of income and expenditure pertaining to prior period are accounted through
“Prior Period items™ and classified as exceptional and extra-ordinary items in the statement of
Profit & Loss Account.

e Exceptional items are generally non-recurring items of income and expenses within profit or loss
from ordinary activities, which are of such size, nature or incidence that their disclosure is
relevant to explain the performance of the Company for the year. There is no Exceptional Items
to be reported in the Financial year.

2.7 Property, Plant and Equipment

> Property, Plant & Equipment (PPE) comprises of tangible assets of the company. PPE are staied
at cost, including non-refundable duties and taxes applicable, after reducing depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, for the period from the Gross Opening Value. The
cost of PPE comprises of its purchase price or its construction cost (net of refundable duties and
taxes, if any). any cost directly attributable to bring the asset into the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management. Software

%
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licenses installed on Computers are capitalized to the cost of Computer and presumed to be of the
same useful life, due to the end user license agreement.

¢ Direct costs are capitalized until the asset is ready for use and includes borrowing cost capitalized
in accordance with the Company’s accounting policy. Subsequent expenditure related to an item
of PPE is added to it’s carrying value only, if it increases the future benefits from the existing
asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

® Anitem of PPE is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the PPE. Any consideration on the disposal/ discarded /
retirement of an item of PPE is reduced from the net book value i.c. gross value as reduced by
accumulated depreciation/ amortization on pro-rate basis of time used during the accounting
period.,

*  With effect from 01-April-2022 it is determined that the change in depreciation method from
WDV method to a straight-line method, the same is change in accounting estimate. A change in
accounting estimate affected by a change in accounting principle is applied prospectively. The
change is considered preferable because the straight-line method will more accurately reflect the
pattern of usage and the expected benefits of such assets and provide greater consistency with the
depreciation methods used by group company and other company in our industry.

* Depreciation and amortization on PPE is spread over estimated useful economic life on Straight
Line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule 1I to the Companies Act, 2013 after
considering the residual value as prescribed under the Act. The depreciation is provided on pro-
rata basis according to the period each asset was put to use during the accounting period. Further,
As a result of the change to the straight-line method of depreciation, depreciation expense
increased by INR 163 Thousand and decrease in Profit by same amount.

e The estimated useful lives for main category of Property Plant & Equipment are:

% | Chaes oF Asscts i Betaited deseription Tixaial Lile o
-I l I Mo
1 | Computers and data = Servers and networks - = e
| processincunits -
2 | Computers and data End user devices, such as, desktops, laptops, 3
| processiny units | etc =B _
3 | Vehicle Motor Vehicle, Motor Car 8
4  Leasehold Land Leasehold land from Gujarat Industrial G9
Development Corporation (GIDC) over the
L ) . term of lease «from date of allotment; .
-5 | Plant and Machinery | Fire Protection Piping, Fire Alarm System 15
6 | Building ! Factory Building, Compound Wall ' 30
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7 | Electric Instailation Electric Installation 10

'8 Leasehold Land | Land Scaping ' 10
 Improvements

2.8 Foreign Exchange Transactions:

® Initial recognition:
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency by applying the exchange
rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

e Conversion:
Foreign currency monetary items are reported using the closing rate (other than those covered by
forward contracts). Non-monetary items which are carried in terms of historical cost denominated
in a foreign currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; non-
monetary items which are carried at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rates that existed when such values were determined.

* Exchange differences:
Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on reporting the Entity’s
monetary items at rates different from those at which they were initially recorded during the year,
or.reported in previous financial statements, are recognized as income or as expenses in the year
in which they occur.

2.9 Employee Benefits

e Short term Emplo: ee Benefits:
Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the
Statement of Profit & Loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

* Post-Employment Benefits:
Defined Contribution Plans
The Company’s State governed Provident Fund Scheme is considered as defined contribution.
The contribution under the scheme is recognized as an expense in the Statemeni of Profit & Loss,

as they are incurred. There are no other obligations other than the contribution payable to the
respective funds.

The company makes payment for earned leaves on year to year basis and accordingly the same is
recognized as an expense on year to year basis.

2.10 Borrowing Cost

» Borrowing costs include interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred and exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an

il T
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adjustment to the interest cost. Costs in connection with the borrowing of funds to the extent not
directly related to the acquisition of qualifying assets are charged to the statement of profit and
loss over the tenure of the loan. Borrowing costs, allocated to and utilized for qualifying assets,
pertaining to the period from commencement of activities relating to construction / development
of the qualifying asset up to the date of capitalization of such asset are added to the cost of the
assets. Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of Profit and
Loss during extended periods when active development activity on the qualifying assets is
interrupted.

211  Leases.

® Operating: Lease of assets under which significant risks and rewards of ownership are
effectively retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Lease payments under an
operating lease are recognized as expense in the statement of profit and loss, on a straight-line or
other systematic basis over the lease term.

* Finance: Leased assets acquired on which significant risks and rewards of ownership effectively
transferred to the Company are capitalized at lower of fair value and the present value of
minimum lease payments. Such assets are depreciated / amortized over the period of lease or
estimated life of such assets, whichever is less.

2.12  Accounting for Taxes

¢ Current Tax and Minimum Alternate Tax

The provision for taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profits computed in
accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act, [961.

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxabie income for the year as determined in
accordance with the applicable tax rates and the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.
Minimum Altemate Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an
asset if there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal income tax. Accordingly,
MAT is recognized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is highly probable that future
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the company.

® Deferred Tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized on timing differences, being the differences
between taxable income and accounting income, that originate in one period and are capable of
reversal in one or more subsequent periods using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets, other than on unabsorbed depreciation and
carried forward losses, are recognized only if there is reasonable certainty that they will be
realized in the future. Deferred tax assets in respect of unabsorbed depreciation and carry forward
losses are recognized if there is virtual certainty that there will be sufficient future taxable income
available to realize such losses. Deferred Tax assets are revicwed at each balance sheet date for
their realizability.

* Goods and Service Tax — GST
Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of Goods and Service Tax paid, except:

VAZUMI ACVANCED PROCESSING TECHNGLOGY PYT. (n.
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2.13

2.14

2.15

YI2UM) ADVARCED

6] When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognized as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable.

(ii) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

Impairment of Assets:

The carrying value of assts/ cash generating units at each balance sheet date are reviewed for
impairment, if any indication of impairment exists. The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s net selling price and its value in use which is determined based on the estimated future
cash flow discounted to their present value. If there is no reason to believe that as asset’s value in
use materially exceeds its net selling price, the asset’s recoverable amount may be taken to be its
net selling price.

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of assets exceeds its recoverable value. the
impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year in
which an asset is identified as impaired,

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, unless the asset is
carried at revalued amount in accordance with Accounting Standard 10 — Property., Plant &
Equipment.

Provisions, Contingent Liability and Contingent Assets

The Cdmpany recognizes a provision when there is a present obligation as a result of a past event
that probably requires an outflow of resources and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. A disclosure for a contin gent liability is made when there is a possible
obligation or a present obligation that may, but probably will not, require an outflow of resources.
Where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that the likelihood of outflow of
resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made. Contingent assets are neither recognized
nor disclosed.

Contingent liability is a possible obligation arising from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the entity or a present obligation that arises from past events but is
not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured with sufficient reliability.

Earning Per Share

Basic eamnings per share are computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is
computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) after tax as adjusted for the effects of dividend, interest
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2.16

2.17

Y4t ADVARCED PROCESSING

and other charges relating to the dilutive potential equity shares by weighted average number of
equity shares plus dilutive potential equity shares.

Accounting for claims '

Claims received are accounted at the time of lodgment depending on the certainty of receipt and
claims payable are accounted at the time of acceptance.

Claims raised by the Government authorities regarding taxes and duties, which are disputed by
the Company, are accounted based on legality of each claim. Adjustments, if any, are made in the
year in which disputed are finally settled.

Doubtful Debts/ Advances
Provision is made in the accounts for Debts/ Advances which, in the opinion of the management,
are considered doubtful of recovery.
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Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
Notas forming Part of the Financigl Statements

Note 3 : Share Capital

L

A Waieh 31, 2022 ]
f — As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
paicgars No. of shares Amount No. of shares | Amount
Authorised 22,25,000 2,22,500 20,00,000 2,00,000
Equlty Shares of INR100 egch - — e
|

lssued, Subscribed & Paid-Lip 20,00,000 2,00,000 20,00,000 2,00,000
Enquity Shares of INR100 each
fully paid up

TOTAL 20,00.000 2,00,000 20,00,000 | 2,00,000

(i) Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares

- The Company has issued only one cinss of eqully shares having a per value of INR 100 each. Each Equity Shareholder is entitied to one vote per

share,

(i} Equity Sharaholders holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

RS No. of shares % of holding No.ofshares | % of holding
el FresninMaconan) (1 18,00,000 90.00% 18,00,000 20.00%
Gusngdong Yizumi Precision
s iy 2,00,000 10.00%: 2,00,000 10.00%|
|

il Reconciliation of the enuity shares and amount outstanding

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022 |

s iy Sharu_ . No. of shares | Amount No.ofsheres | Amount
‘At the beginning of the period | 20,00,000 2,00,000 zo,oo,ooo‘ 2,00,000 |
|Movement during the year e | [ =Sl ==l _ =
Outstanding &t the end of the ‘ 20,00,000 2,00,000 20.00,00;[ 2,00,000
period  ~ — == — a5 I
{iv) Disclosure of Shareholding of Promoters
Disclosure of sharehaldin; of - iorolers as at March 31, 2023 i as follows: -
C AsatMarch31,2023 | % change |
Hapaeion oty No. of shares % of total shares | during the vear
;l:{“t:: Precision Machinary (HK) | 18,00,000 90% 0.00%
Guangdong Yizumi Precision
Machinery Co. Lid. 2,00,000 10% 0.00%
Total 20,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
Disclasure of shareholding of cromoters s at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
As at March 31, 2022 % change
N f > 4
-l ol No.of sharea | % of total shares | during the year
Yci:ulr.rt]:j Precislon Machinery (HK) 18,00,000 90% 0.00%
3::;3:2;‘%2"{‘1’;" el 2,00,000 10% 0.00%
[ Total 20,00,000 100.00% 0.00%
A —
.";:' / K
H=1
vi.A0
——e
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Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
Notes forming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 4 : Reserves and Surplus

1HG

Amount In Thousands

Particulars - h | AsatMarch 31, Asat March 34, |

: . 2023 FitF ¥ S

(a) Surplus / (Deficit) - in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance {81,669) (23,253)
Loss for the year (78,071 (58,416)

TOTAL (1,59,741) (81,869)

Note 5 : L.ong-Term Borrowings

Particulars As at March 31, [ Ag at March 31,

Bl 2023 2022

{a) Loans from Bank 1,47,500 -

{b) Loans from Related Parties; =
Unsecured ioan from Director - -
Unsecured loan from Other than director 8,37,021 | 7,86,334

TOTAL 9,84,621 | 7,86,334

(a) Loans from Bank is partaining to ICICi Bank Term Loan which is

i) Secured by first and exclusive charge on all current assats and registered morigags of the Company's

Leasehold immovable land alongwith afl the future assets
Navrangpura, Ahmedabad - 360029, Gujarat.

il) Secured by the corporate guarantee of Yizumi Precesion
IIl) ICICI Bank Term Loan has moratorium til March 31, 2024

Nota 6 : Short-Term Borrowings

build theron, situated at Plot No.16 Swastik Society,

Machinery (HK) Co. td, Hongkong

[Particulars ~ [AsatMarch 24,] As at March 31, |
1 P B 2023 | 2022 |
iCurmnt maturitles of long-term dobt (Refer Nots 5) 2,500 | -
S Toral| 2500 e
Note 7 : Trade Payahbles
[Particulars » | As at March 31, | As at March 31, ]
. 2023 2022 |
Total Outstending dues of MSME - -
Total Outstanding dues of other than MSME . Joo| 84 |
_TOTAL 100 | 84 |

A& per the information svalabie wilh the Company,

in the Mioro, Smal, Medium Enterprises Dovelopment Act, 2008, ta whom the Com

tlog wdth fmlerest and "
Note 27 for Ageing schedute of Trade Payable

Note 8 : Other Gurrent Liabllities

thern are no Micro, Small and Madium Enlemprises (MBME); a5 defined
pany owes tuas on account of principal
ly no additional disclosures have been made,

Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
| 2023 2022
Interest Accrued but not due 87,758 34,476
Stetutory dues payable 2,476 3,134
Capital Creditors 23,829 49,869
Payable to Employees 918 370
- TOTAL 94,979 87,649
Note 9 : Short Term Provisions
Particulars As at March 31, | Asat March 31,
2023 2022
Provision for Auditor's Remuneration 180 150
| Provision for Other Expensas 8 a0
| . TOTAL 158 | 180

Yiz154) ALVANCED PROCESSING TECHNBLOGY YT LT
et

YA, Shah

BRELTOR | ALTHG. SIGN

Lz

Page 119



Page 120

WIS ‘OHLAY | YOLIIAD
= : L
Mot N e St pre £ |
_ 1{]
011 1A8 A9DT0NHOAL gISS1)0Yd GIINVACY MM
SIUBUSIE)S PBrRUSUL) BY) 0) 62 RIN 446: 9} SY 460 SE 1SO0 BUMALOE 40 JUBHUISNIDS S0 t SION
1]
869'60°Y gBE'BL'Y = = - - geE'6L'Yy 80)'36°E 095'¢0'y 50l JE3\ EnoRBlY
\ 86L°8L'Y - = - & = = BLb°EP'S V82'sz'z GEL'SL'Y D=TIVi0L
17 502 - = = - = = 8sr'L9 $62'L8 S0z Auiyoep 2 Jueld
180'ss = - - - = = €Lo'es 92ZB'vZ 180'85 uohieljeineu) [eatiiaejq
S~ Z80'8BY'S = - - o = - cro'es'y 095'vE'L zao'sv'e Bupling Aoyoe
+20'2) = E = B ¥20's| 000°¢ yeo'zL e punduiod
- * = 5 = = = = pue] pjoysses
SSIUDONI-NFUUOM TWLidvD (D
= 2 = = - = X - 5 = Jea ) snojasid
= g 2 = S G s z 5 - 2-WLOL
= E = = = < - = = g sjeesy ajg|Beju;
$13SSY ITAIONYLNS (8
86 £46'L6'E L8y = L2’y 8EL 1G6'98'E = SLL'86'E 26582 183}, SIOJAGIY
£18°L6'S B40'0%'0) 12T . 69¢°8} [ 794 9za'z9'0L - Giv'ag's 15€'96'E ¥- vioL
sgs 8vs €91 : 8l Shk LLE x - 118 ESETIETY
= 08549 4B6'L = L86'L = £15'e9 - L15'e0 = Kieysey g uny
0s (€8 982 . 124 [474 21y - ¥a gee sjun bujasesasd ejeq @ sapiduics
- 56018 9D’y = LP0't = gle'sg = Zle'sg - UOJIERE}SUY [ROUSIS
BLY'70'S 6s0'8 e 85t'9 e 82¢'2L's = 8¥'El's - Bulping Lioyoey
. FATA zZ2 - T ° rer'y - ¥ap'y - weweaoudwi pue ployases
L1118 9zL'i8'e t4:( 7 - Lea‘c 166'c 801'S8'E - = 801's6'S puE pjoysFesy
i ININGINTS ONY LY A LN 0N (v
Jeak erejsuni)] ¢ J8sk eip Buunp
zz02 £202 n20T e |muetgenfoy | e Buinp T e 20z Musunsnfpy HoUnanfpy zooz
deudeniesy| e umeniesy | yammiesy | jeushanpen | suomippy  [vamwmamey| ‘(o yamyiesy [ruoInpag /SUCIEPY | ‘1t ydtew 3e sy
#3018 34 Uogesucny ploleiidsg peEnunIoy Av0ig BIUD ucpduassq
 spussnioyy uj Junoity 83099y ojq)Sumu| pue Juewdinbg pue jueld ‘Auedold : ot 330N

SYUBUIEIE]S [ERUBLL aU) Jo Lieg Buuuog sojoy
PEWT e1eALg ABojoulyas) Buissodolg pasuvapy A



Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
Noles fam-ung Part of the Financial Statements

Note 11 ; Deffered Tax Assets / Defferad Tax Liability

Ih¥

Amount in Thousands
Particutars N As at March 31, | As at March 31, |
2023 2022 |
|Deferred Tax Assets ]
a) Timing difference of Depreciation as per Companles Act, (22) 140
2013 and the Income Tax Act 1961
bj Disallowance ws. 35D of the Incoms Tax Act 1961 - =
c) Unabaorbed business loss of to subsequent years - -
Deferred Tax Liabilities |
a) Timing difference of Depraciation as per Companies Act, - ;
2013 and the muome Tax Act 1851,
b} Disallowance u/a. 35D of the Income Tax Act 1961 (226)| {226)
¢) Unabsorbed business loss off to subsequent ysars 5432 | =
— Net Deferred Tax Asseti(Liability)! 5,185 | 85,
Note 12 : Other non-curreni Asset
Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Security Deposite 1,770 250
Capital Advances - | 18,000
L 0 TOTAL! 1,770 | 18,250 |

Note 13 : Cash and Gash Equivalents

lPamculars === == | As at March 31, Ag at March 31, |
2023 | 2022 |
(a) Cash and Cash Cash Equivalents: B | == —F ]
Balance with Banks |
Current Account I 14,739 1,20,129 |
| Fixed deposit (origine! maturity of three months or less) - -
|lb} Other Bank Balance: .
Fixed deposils (with maturity more than three months but 5.000 i |
lesa than twelve months) == ——| =
TOTAL| 19,738 | 1,20,120

Note 14 : Short Term Loans and Advances

Particulars | As atMarch 31, | As at March 31, |
- | 2023 2022 |
Balance with Government Authorities 23,743 12,086 |
Advance to Suppliers 19 29 |
Prepaid Insurance 155 ‘
—— —_}
TOTAL. 23917 917 12,085 |
Note 15 : Other Current Asset
Particulars AsatMarch 31, Asat March 31, |
2023 2022
Receivable - Sale of Capital Work in Progress (Crane) 20,313 30,828
Receivable - Lease Rental 11,487 -
Interest accrued on bank deposits 29 -
TOTAL 31,829 30,829

PyI.ATL.
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Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private Limited
Notes furming Part of the Financial Statements

Note 16 : Other Income

) A In Thousands
|Particulars As st March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Interest on Fixed Deposils 30 1,135
Borrowing Cost Capitallzed (Refer Note 23) - - 1,021
30 113 1
Rent Income 32,058 100 |
Balance Written Off £ 48 3
| TOTAL 32,138 218 |
Note 17 : Employee Benefit Expenses
[Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
2023 2022
Salaries and Wages 10,038 5,890
Contribution to Provident and other funds 310 165
TOTAL 10,348 5.854
Note 18 : Finance Cost
Particulars ———= et Merch 31, | As at March 31,
. — 2023 2022
Interest Expense 43,364 22,708
Less: Borrowing Cost Capitallzad (Refer Note 23) (10,1431 (4,100)
33,220 18,608 :
Foreign exchange Loss - Unrealised 82,459 29,807
Foreign exchange Loss - Reallsed - -
Less: Borrowing Cost CapHtallzed (Refer Note 23) (12,988) {10,918}
49,474 18,888
Bank Charges 2 781
i TOTAL! 82,886 | 38,277

Note 19 : Other Expenscs

|Particulars As at March 31, | As at March 31,
i L | 2023 2022 |
Auditors Fees N 160 150 |
| Electricity Expense 458 -
Insurance Expense 3B5 -
Legal & Professlonal Charges 1,803 1,973
Office Expense 19 -]
Project Managemeant Faes 155 -
Printing and Stationery 2 5
Travelling & Conveyance Expenses 307 270
Regisiration & Subscription Fass 4 7
Rent Expanses - 28
Revenue Charges 479 708
Round Offf Kasar Vatav (1] 0
Miscellenous Expenses 1 0
Water Expense 301 -
TOTAL 4,086 3,148
Remuneration to Audlitor comprises of
Statutory Audit 50 50
Tax Audit - -
Transfer Pricing Audit 100 100
Caertification - 78
Other Consultancy 826 -
975 228
o
J{If 2 k.
/
YIZUMS ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. (TD Il

oA sha \

BIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIB. N\

Page 122



Ylizumi Advanced Processing Technology Pvt. Ltd.
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Note 20: Earning per share (EPS)

Amount ir Thousands

Pastiewlars =Y Year ended Marck Vear euded March |

S | 31,2023 | 352022 |

| Net Loss for the year (78,071) (58.416) |
 Weighted Average number of  ordinary | . 20,00,000 20,00,000

 shares/Potential Equiy Shares !
Nominal Value of Ordmary shares 100 100

| Basic/Dihated EPS — oMy - peE

Note 21: Disclosures Required Under Section 22 Of The Micro, Small And Medium Enterpnses
Development Act, 2006

; : 4¢3 1. | Az ) 5 -. :
Particalars | As at March 31. | As =i furch 33

| 2023 | 2022

1) Principal amount remaining unpaid to MSME suppliers 0 0

as on March 31, 2022 _ |

(i) Interest due on unpaid prmclpal amount to MSME | 0 ; 0
suppliers as on March 31, 2022 |

(m} The amount of interest paid along with the amounts of 0 0

the payment mede to the MSME suppliers beyond the
. appointed da. | =
(1v) The amount of interest due and payable for the year | 0 0
(without adding the interest under MSME

Development Act) i !

(v) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid 0 0
~as on March 31, 2022 |

(vi) The amount of interest due and payable to be 0 0

disallowed under Income Tax Act, 1961

Dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been
identified on the basis of information collected by the Management.
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Note 22: Capital Commitments

¢ Subsequent to close of the financial year, before signing of financial statements the Company has
entered into Contracts for Property, Plant & Equipment for its upcoming facility at Sanand,
Gujarat as follows:
Amount in Thousands

| Class | Details of. Contractual | Estimated Amount of Confract | Amoant o1 Capits] |

Work in INR l(?nmract Outstanding i

INR HELn R

4 b s p V223  [FY2i2d WY | [RV2ia3 - |

Construction of Pre- 0 16,30,000 0 . 5,000
Engineered Building

Factory | Civil 0 2,11,785 0 47,664

| Building - ! e |

Mechanical 0 60,000 0 60,000

' Electrical Installation 0 76,000 | 0 20374

Note 23: Borrowing Cost (44 Amount in Thousands)

The Compeany has availed External Commercial Borfowings (ECBs) from Parent company M/s Yizumi
Precision Macliinery (HK) Co. Limited through Industrial and Commercial Bank of China and the ICICI
Bank, India. 0

The eligible interest on the Borrowings have been capitalized with reference to the Accounting Standard
16 — Borrowing Cost (AS 16). The working details are as follows:

| Pyt

FY 2022-23 | FY 203122 ot
| Interest for eligib_le Prope_rt;, Pl;nt.& Equipment N _ 10,143 I __4,- 100 |
-z_Idd / (i,ess): (Gain) / Loss c;n Foreign Currency éorrowings | 1_2,986 s 10,919

Less: Fixed d;posit interl;:st ;arned ﬁut of temporary | 0 ' (1,021) |
mvestment of borrowed funds (Para 10 of AS 16) I
rt’mm;!'ar,wpczi ti._\;;_(.'a;mu;i. 5 _{ - e _-ﬂ_mf;

23129 |

The eligible amount of iNKk 23,129 (P.Y.: 13,998) has been proportionately allocated to the Factory
Building for INR 17,406 (P.Y.: 1 1,363), Electrical Installation for INR 2,988 (P.Y.:2,088), Compound
Wall for INR 522 (P.Y.: 342), Plant and Machinery for INR 2,213 (P.Y.: 205) respectively.

YIZUM! ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PYT. L7D.

& A .Sk

OIRECTOR / AUTHO. SiGN.
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Yizumi Advanced Processing Tech nology Pvt. Ltd.

Reg. Office: Plot 7, Mahagujarat Estate Moraiya Sanand Ahmedabad Ahmedabad - 382213 Gujarat India
CIN: U29230GJ2019FTC 108825

Note 24: Related Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of Accounting Standard (AS) — 18 ‘Related Party Disclosures’ the
names of the related party where control exists/able to exercise significant influence along with the
aggregate transactions and year and balance with them as identified and certified by the management in
the ordinary course of business at arms-length are given below.

a) Related Party & their relationship

r#"'";'_ﬁu}ni:.nr the Related parey e T Relationship
e | — — ——— e — ) — e e — !
1 Yizumi Precision Machinery (HK) Co. Limited Holding Company/ Parent
o PR 280 o B0 o . n _ Company
2 Guangdong Yizumi Precision Machinery Co. Limited Holding Company/ Parent
— _ Company
3 | Guangdong Yizumi Precision Injection Molding & Die Associate
Casting Technology Co.,Ltd.
4 Yizumi Prccision_Machinery (Suzhou) Co., Ltd. B  Associate
5 | Yizumi _Rubbeﬁvlachinery Co. Ltd. ' Associate
6 | Yizumi Precision Machi;exy (India) Private Limited ' Associate
7  Yash Anilbhai Shah Key Managerial Personal
. _(Director i
8 Liyao Chen Key Managerial Personal ‘
1 . el .(Director;
9 | Maulik Nikhilkumar Dixit ' Key  Managerial Personal
_ | _Comypan: Secretar:
10 | Wing Fai Rizhard Yan Representative  of  Yizumi
Precision Machinery (HK)
Co. Limited,

b) Details of Related party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2023 and balances
outstanding as at March 31, 2023:

Amu_nt in Thousands

| Nume of Related party | Nature of Transaction I Transactions Balapes )
R | duriag the | Ouistanding: |
: Financial Year wsom o -
- T = 2622-23 March 33,2623 |
o c el o0 _ leezy | (Macknmz |
Yizumi Precision Unsecured Loan - External 61,046%* 8,37,021 |
Machinery (HK) Co. Commercial Borrowing (4,79,879) - (7,75,975)
Limited **Current Year Transaction is due
fo Increases in foreign exchange
 liabilii e | - .
Interest on ECB : 33,280 67,756

_(22,756) | (34476

Y PYT.LT0. \5\
ANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOG \
DIRELTOR | AUTHO. SIGK.
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[ bt =2 -
e e e —

Precision = Reimbursement of Expenses & 3,346
' Machinery (India) Statutory Dues B (259) |
Private Limited Unsecured Loan-Intercorporate - NIL
Loan—Taken _ (4,50,000) (10,359)
' Unsecured Loan-Intercorporate 10,516 {
| Loan — Repaid L (3,50,000) |
] Interest on Intercorporate Loan 175
‘ (1,109
| Lease Rental Including GST 37,828 11,487
Y ) i _|
{ ' Debtor for Crane Sale | Nil 20,313
o el S S P L (30829) (30,829)
. Yash Anilbhai Shah Remuneration/ Salary 1,080 . 9
| (1,109) {90)
| ' Reimbursement of Expenses 82 16
| (150) (28)

' - Remuneration/ Salary 353 35
'Maulik  Nikhilkumar I B | 5. (428) sy
Dixit Reimbursement of Expenses | 14 1

—— _— o i L B ()1 =
Note: Figures in bracket represent previous year figures of 2021-22.
Note 25: Expenditure in foreign currency:
Amount in Thousands

VIZUN} ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY #v7. LD, g

&7 A.shah
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Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Pvt. Ltd.
Reg. Office: Plot 7, Mahagujarat Estate Moraiya Sanand Ahmedabad Ahmedabad - 382213 Guijarat India

CIN: U292300J201 SFTC108825
Note 26: Ratios

Key financial ratios along with the details of si gnificant changes (25% or more) in FY 2022-23 compared
to FY 2021-22 is as follows:

L N L e T T T T
[ e " Current Ratio is
Current Ratio (time
: (times) e ks sg3sy,  decreased mainly due
[Current Assets/ Current Liabilities] to reduction in Bank

 Balance _
Debt to Equity Ratio
is increased mainly

Debt — Equity Ratio (times)
24.52 7.07 268.94%

| [Debt/ Shareholders Equity] :“J‘c"mufl‘:t‘l‘é"iggms‘“
| ' Debt Service
Debt Service Coverage (times) Coverage Ratio is
3 R {0.50) (1.07) -53.54% increased mainly due
]E[;gg\(,ing + LT;S;{ reduction in
. | _ accumulated reserves
Return on Equity (ROE) (%) ‘ Mainly due to
4 | -193.92% -58.91% 292.82% increase in Losses
. |PAT/ Sharcholders Equit. | 5
Return on capital employed (ROCE) Due to increase in
5 T G e (0.04) (0.03) 23.41% Losses
| T/ Capital Emplos ed)
Note 27: Ageing of Capital work-in-progress
DR~ SWork —in | Amount of CWIP for periodol 3 | Tatul 5
lﬁw as 4t 3! “Less than 1 | 1-2 year | 2-3yeurs. | More than 3| g
2023 mr [-years [ Bl -7
|ProJeclsmProgress | - __ = :_._________.._- g m-j-__& =
|Pr01ects temporanly - - - -
 suspended = 0 ! |
i F Amount of CWIP for = period of | ol
J  Wark. in L :
L #S At 3i|Less than 1[1-Zyear | 2-3vears | More fhan 3 . |
f | year ! veurs S
I' — " 2 =l = . W |- Sl e e ——————
lirojecis inﬁogroins __ 3,89,5¢ 562 15,838 - - | 4,05,401
Projects temporarily = - - - I < :

suspended

Vi2UN AovANcep PROCESSING TECHNOL0GY MLITD, =
YA Sha 5
DIRECTOR / AuTHo. SigH,
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Note 28: Ageing of Trade Payable

_Ageing for trade payables us at March 31,2023 is as follows: B s
[ [ Outstanding for [lon ing peciods from dug dite ol payment™

“m_ Pt e 2 |'= A yenr L Elvears 23 v | >3 yean, ____f‘uhl & =l
HOMMERE S = e gl e A e e |
(ihOthers | (] e [ W
| (iil) Disputed dues-MSME | = “ | =1 L ||
(iv) Disputed dues-Others = - = - B

_Ageing for trade payables as at March 31, 2022 is as follows: e el Sy om_=m
| Outstonding for fallowing peviods feom due date of payment? : |

_I ?'.?;h-“ 1 =1 year | 12 vears | 3-3 vears | =3 years | Towal = |
. (i) MSME - ol | = D B -_f— i =l -
g )y e ———— =
' (iii) Disputed dues-MSME_ | o | 3. 2l - -
(wl Dispute'd dues-Others = ol =S — - -

Note 29: The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the
contributions by the company tewards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and
Employment has released draft rules for the Code on Social Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and
has invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under active consideration by the Ministry. The
Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified and will give
appropriate impact in its financial statements.

Note 30: The Company has assessed the possible impact of COVID-19 on its financial statements based
on the internal and external information available up to the date of approval of these financial statements
and concluded no adjustment is required in these statements. The Company continues to monitor the
future economic conditions,

Note 31: The Company has no transactions with the companies struck off under Companies Act,
2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

Note 32: The Company has not granted loans to its promoters, directors, key managerial personnel
(KMP) and the other related parties (as defined under the Companies Act, 2013) which are repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment or any other loans or advance in the
nature of loans.

Note 32:

(2) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities.(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified
in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
Buarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

VIZUM! ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD. |
DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGK. 3
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Reg. Office: Plot 7, Mahagujarat Estate Moraiya Sanand Ahmedabad Ahmedabad - 382213 Guijarat India
CIN: U29230GJ2019FTC108825

(b) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, secnrity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

Note 33: The Company has not made any investments during the year. The Company has not granted
secured/ unsecured loans/ advances in the nature of loans to any Company/Firm/Limited Liability

Note 34: No proceedings have been initiated on or are pending against the Compaiyy for holding benami
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

Note 35; The Company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institutions or
govemment or any government authority,

Note 36: The Company has not traded or invested in crypto currency or virtual currency during the
current or previous year.

Note 37: Figures for the Pprevious year have been regrouped where necessary.

In terms of our report attached
For, K P Shah Associates For, Yizumi Advanced Processing Technology Private
Chartered Accovntanis Limited

Fitm Reg No.109614W

G . ’A She_ :

Yash Anilbhai Shah iyao Chen
Jigar K. Shah Director Director
Partner (DIN: 08492216) (DIN: 08492217)
Mem. No.: 126747
II
.";- : VAaS
Place: Ahmedabad ! 4

Date: 29~July ~2.3 e
UDIN: 2312¢ LqumE‘mT

' HNGLOGY PVT. LTD.
1 ADVANCED PROCESSING TEC
T YA .5 eyl

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.
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ANNEXURE - P-2 ,55/9

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Unaudited Provisional Balance Sheet as at 30 June,2023

CIN : U29230GJ2019FT'C108825
(Figures : Indian Rupees)

Particulars Notes o Jﬁ:;m
ASSETS
Non-curtent assets
Property, Plant & Equipment 1,03,25,18,539
Capital Work in Progress -
Intangible Assets =
1,03,25,18,539
Financial Assets
- Loans 2 .
Deferred tax Asset (Net) 14 51,84,529
Other non-current assets 3 17,69,508
Total Non-cuttent assets 1,03,94,72,576
Current assets
Inventories 4 -
Financial Assets
- Trade Receivables 5 1,26,51,464
- Cash and Cash equivalents 6 2,88,58,616
- Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalents 8 1,26,22,055
- Loans 2 =
- Other Financial Assets 7 =
Cutrent tax assets (net) 9 48,27,637
Other cutrent assets 3 1,78,03,103
7,67,62,874
TOTAL ASSETS 1,11,62,35,450
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share capital 10 22,22,22.200
Other Equity 11 (16,21,21,154)
Total Equity 6,01,01,046
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities .
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 12 98,31,99,240
Other Non-cutrent liabilities 17
Provisions 13 -
Defetred tax liabilities (Net) 14 -
Total Non-current liabilities [
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Trade Payables
- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises 15 -
- Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 15 15,802
- Other financial liabilities 16 (30,56,896)
Other cutrent liabilities 17 7,59,76,259
Provisions 13 -
Total Current liabilities 7,29,35,165
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES J A-s L\M N 1,11,62,35,450




YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Unaudited Provisional Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures : Indian Rupees)
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1558

For the period
Particulars ‘Notes ended on
30 June,2023

Income
Revenue form Operations (net) 18 -
Other income 19 2,02,99,726
Total Income 2,02,99,726
Expenses
Cost of raw materials and components consumed 20 -
Changes in inventoties of finished goods 21 -
Employee benefits expense 22 21,88,820
Finance Cost 23 1,20,86,560
Depreciation and amortization expense 1 75,60,625
Other Expenses 24 844175
Total Expenses 2,26,80,180
Profit/(loss) before Tax (23,80,453)
Tax Expenses

- Current Tax 14 -

- Deferred Tax 14 -
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (23,80,453)

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD.

I A Shad |

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.
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YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures in Indian Rupees)
Note No 2
Loans
Non-current Current
Particulars As at ‘As at
| 30 June, 2023 30 June, 2023
Unsecured, considered good
Loans to Employees -
Security Deposits
Total ~ -
Note No 3
Other Assets
Non-current Current
Particulars As at Asar
30 June,2023 30 June,2023
Deposits 17,69,508
Advance recoverable in cash or in kind or value to be received - 23,216
Balance with Government authorities - 1,77,61,137
Advances to Suppliers - 18,750
Other Advances (Un amortised Expenses) -
Total 17,69,508 1,78,03,103
Note No 4
Inventories
Asat
‘Particulars 30 June,2023

Raw Materials and Packing Materials
Work in Process

Stores & Spares

Machinery Parts/Finished goods (Cost or NRV, whichever is lower)

Total

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD.

S A shuk

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.
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YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED ] 6 5 / 2
Notes to financial statements for the petiod ended on 30 June,2023
(Figutes in Indian Rupees)
Note No 5
Trade Receivables
: As at
Factculace 30 June,2023
Cuttent
Unsecured Consideted good 1,26,51,464
Credit Impaired
Allowance for doubtful debts
Total 1,26,51,464
Note No 6
Cash and Cash equivalents
' E=pC Ty ‘As at
Fetticulacs 30 June,2023
(a) Balances with banks
- in Current Account 2,88,58,616
- in Fixed Deposits (original maturing upto 3 months)
(b) Cash on hand .
Total 2,88,58,616
Note No 7
Other Financial Assets- Others
Non-current Current
Particulars  Asat ~ Asat
30 June,2023 30 June,2023
Interest accrued on fixed deposits -
Total = c
Note No 8
Bank Balance Other than Cash and Cash Equivalents
e As at
Particulars 30 June,2023
Fixed Deposits (otiginal maturity mote than 3 months but upto 12 months) 1,26,22,055
Total 1,26,22,055
Note No 9
Cutrent tax assets (net)
‘Current
Particulars As at
30 ]une,2023 !
Advance Tax paid /TDS teceivable (Net of Provision) 48,27,637
Total 48,27,637

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD

A She h

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.



YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures in Indian Rupees)

Note No 10
Equity Share capital
L At at
Festicylus 30 June,2023.
Equity share capital
The Company has only one class of shares i.e. Equity Shares having a par value of Rs.100 per share
Authorised shares
22,25,000 Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each 22,25,00,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares
22,22,222 Equity Shares of Rs 100/- each Issucd, subscribed and fully 22,22,22.200
paid-up Capital
22,22,22,200

b)

9

d)

169 F
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Movements in equity share capital:
During the period, the Company has neither issued nor bought back any shares.

Terms and rights attached to equity shares:
Dividends

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the
shareholders in ensuing Annual General Meeting except in the case where interim dividend is distributed.

Liquidation

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares shall be entitled to receive all of the remaining assets of the Company,
after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. Such distribution amounts will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

During the last five financial years, no class of shares have been allotted as fully paid up pursuant to contract(s) without payment being received

in cash, allotted as fully paid up by way of bonus shares or bought back.

Information of shareholders holding more than 5 percent Equity Shares

 Asat
Name of Sharcholder _ Relationship | o0Junc22
No of Equity shares

held iPercentagei(%o)s

Yizumi Precision Machinery (HK) Co Ltd I‘Iuldmg 18,00,000 81
Company

Guangdong Yizumi Precision Machinery Co Ltd Sharcholder 2,00,000 9
Mr. Ramesh Varadan Sharecholder 2,22,222 10
Total 2222222 100

Terms /rights attached to equity shares

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share.

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PV. LTD.

I A Sha

DIRECTOR / AUTHD. SIGH.



YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements for the period ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures : Indian Rupees)
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Note No. 11
Other Equity
Particulars Reserve & Surplus Total
Retained Eatnings Share Premium
Account
Balance as at 01 April, 2023 (15,97,40,701) (15,97,40,701)
Profit for the period (23,80,453) (23,80,453)
Balance as at 01 June, 2023 (16,21,21,154) - (16,21,21,154)

YIZUMi ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD.

Y. A Shan
DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.



YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the petiod ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures : Indian Rupees)
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Note No. 12
Botrowings
Particulars Non- current Current
Asat —Asar
30 June,2023 30 June,2023
Loan from related party:
Unsecured, Considered Good 83,31,99,240 -
External commercial borrowing from:
Yizumi Precision Machinery (HK) Limited
Payable after 5 Years
Loan from Bank:
Term Loan from ICICI Bank Limited 15,00,00,000
Total 98,31,99,240 -
Note No. 13
Provisions
Particulars Non-Current Current
As at _ As.aﬁ _
30 June,2023 30 June,2023

Provision for Employee Benefits:
- Provision for Gratuity

Provision for Taxation

- Provision for Leave Encashment

Total

YiZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD
9’, N '5\’\.;4 k

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN
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YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to financial statements fot the petiod ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures : Indian Rupees)

Note No. 14
Deferted tax liability/ (asset) (Net)

The major components of deferred tax liability / asset as recongised in the financial statement is as follows:

As at
30 June,2023

Particulars

Deferred tax liability
Excess of net block of property, plant and equipment for books of accounts over net block for tax

putpose <
Amortisation of Preliminary expenses

Excess of Gratuity paid allowed in for tax purpose

Total (A) -

Deferted tax asset

Excess of net block of propetty, plant and equipment for tax putpose over net block for books of
accounts

Provision for Employee benefits

Carried Forward loss 51,84,529
Minimum Alternative Tax
Total (B) 51,84,529
Net Deferted Tax Liability/ (Asset) (A) - (B) (51,84,529)
Deferred Tax Chatge / (Ctedit) for the yeat

Note No. 15
Trade payables

As at

Particulars 30 June,2023

Trade Payables*
- Due to Micro and Small Enterprises
- Other than Micro and Small Enterprises 15,802

Total [ 15,802

a) Trade payables are non- interest bearing and are normally settled upto 180 days terms.

b) Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act,2006" is
based on the information available with the company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said Act,
as per the inforation received from them on request made by the company.

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD.

T4 sha

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN



YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures : Indian Rupees)

Note No. 16
Other Financial Liabilities- Cutrent

Page 139

657

Payable for Expenses 7,34,879
Payable for fixed assets (37,91,775)
Total (30,56,896)

Note No. 17

Other Current Liabilities

Interest Accrued but not due on longterm borrowing 7,58,34,467
Advance from customers

Statutory Liabilities 1,41,792
Share application money - pending for allotment -
Total 7,59,76,259

J‘ A r ‘: l A k/

DIRECTOR | AUTHD. SICN.



Page 140.

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED 19 5 } K

Notes to financial statements for the petiod ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures in Indian Rupees)

Note No. 18
Revenue from Operations

Sale of products :
T '. el n M ' o
Domestic Sales

Other Operating revenue
Scrap sales

Revenue from operation

Note No. 19
Other Income

Interest Income 1,44,419

Canteen Income -

Foreign Exchange gain 42,01,308

Sales Commission -

Rent Income 1,59,54,000

Total 2,02,99,726
Note No. 20

Cost of raw materials and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year
Add: Putchases duting the year
Less: Inventory at the end of the year

Total

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNGLOGY PVT. LTD.
y A Sha e

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.



YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the petiod ended on 30 June,2023

(Figures in Indian Rupees)

Note No. 21
Changes in inventories of finished goods, wotk-in-progtess and stock-in-trade
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Opening Stock

- Finished Goods
- Machinery Parts
- Work in Process

Closing Stock

- Finished Goods
- Machinery Patts
- Work in Process

Increase /(Decrease) in Stock

Note No. 22
Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and Wages including bonus 21,12,977

Contribution to Provident Fund & Other Funds 75,843

Staff Welfare Expenses -

Total 21,88,820
Note No. 23

Finance Cost

Interest - Others -
Interest on ECB Loan 84,57,998
Interest on Term Loan 36,28,562
Interest on Intetcorporate Loan -
Total 1,20,86,560

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTD.

J 4. Shuk

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.



YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the period ended on 30 June.2023

(Figures in Indian Rupees)

Note No. 24
Other Expenses
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Particulars

For the period
ended on
30 June,2023

Power & Fuel

Sub-contracting charges

Rent Expenses

Freight Outward

Security Charges

Rates and Taxes

Repair & Maintenance:

To Plant & Machineries

To Others

To Building

Factory Expenses
Communication Expenses
Commission & Brokerage
Legal & Professional Charges
Printing and Stationery
Insurance Expense

Auditors Fees

Travelling & Conveyance Expenses
Foreign Exchange loss
Professional Tax-Company
Provision for Doubtful Debts/Advances
Postage and Courier

Chinese Consultant's Expenses
Office Expense

Preliminary Expenses

Sundry Balance Written Off
Bank Charges

5,19,850

(1,02,658)

4,397.44

2,34,173

1,33,311

55,248

1,000
(1,180)
34

Total

8,44,175

YIZUMI ADVANCED PROCESSING TECHNOLOGY PVT. LTB.
YA Sha ko

DIRECTOR / AUTHO. SIGN.
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DEVADIYA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

UDIN: -23112495RGYWCY9732
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Jo,
The Members of
YIZUMI PRECISION MACHINERY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED

(CIN: U29190G12016PTC093223)
Ahmedabad

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opirion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of YIZUMI PRECISION MACHINERY
{INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED {“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31,
2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary
ot the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
gencrally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, the profit
for the year, total comprehensive income change in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specizied under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institutz of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the
independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the financial statements.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

I
il

Key Audit Matters

Reporting of key audit matters as per SA 701; Key Audit Matters are not applicable to the Companry
as it is an unlisted company.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Cornpany’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s Annual report is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this Auditor’s Report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we 4o not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

if, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required ta report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regarc.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

Tne Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India
including the accounting standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatemeat, whether
due to fraud or error.

A-203, Namarayan Oomplex. Nr. gwasﬂ! Cross Road,
R WOk2 705, Eovl et vty com
Web. : www.devadiya.com
- \Wh Officas al: Abmedabed & Barada
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%

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Ccempany’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial staternents as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involive coliusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

s  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or con ‘f’
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. '\\4'-.»
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e  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide these charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by ine
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure “A”, a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs
3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those baoks.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss Account and the Cash Flow deait WIth
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.

ECISI0H HACHINERY (IRDIA) PVT. LTD., : ,
FOR, YIZUMI PRECISIOH ] ot e Conpt SRR s,
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d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014;.

e) On the basis cf the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financiai reporting of the
Company and the cperating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirernent of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the year is In accordance with the provisions of section
1970f the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Campanies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

it The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses; and

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv.

(a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company
{"Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf ofthe
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

" Foh, YTUN| PRECISION EACHERY (NLIR PYLUD.
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of it's knowledge and belief, as

(c)

V.

vi.

disclosed in the notes to accounts, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that has been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under h (iv) (a}
and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

As stated in Note No. 45 to the Financial Statement, the interim dividend declared and
paid by the Company during the year and until the date of this report is in compliance
with Section 122 of the Act.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2023, and accordingly,
reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not
applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2023.

For Devadiya & /issociates

Chartered Ac "uuntants

{CA Sanjay Dzz-..lf--adiya)

M. No: 112454

FRN No.: 123045W

UDIN: 23112495BGYWCY9732
Place: Ahmedabad

Date: 20/07/2023

FOR YIZUMIPREC\SWN FACRINERY {IKDIA) PYT. LTD

x\ff\é

A-203, Namarayan Complex, Nr. Swastik Cross Road,
Navrengpura, Ahmoedabad-280009.

Voica ; 078 - 4032 6703, Email : sanjay@devadlya.com
Web. : www.devadiya.com

Officos at ; Ahmedabad 4 Baroda



Page 149

A £2

L TN
DEVADIYA & ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexure A to the Auditor’s Report

The Annexure A referred to in our independent auditor’s report to the members of the company on
the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2023

In terms of Information & explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge
and belief, we state that:

(a) The company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particuiars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of Property, Plant
and Equipment in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
program, certain Property, Plant & Equipment were physically verified by the
management during the year. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) The company does not hold any immovable property.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right -
of-Use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at 31
March, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
(Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(i The inventories, except goods-in-transit and stocks lying with third parties, have bean
physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion and based on
information and explanations given to us, the coverage and procedure of such verification by
the management is appropriate having regard tc the size of the Company and the nature of
its operations. For stocks held with third parties at the year-end, written confirmations have
been obtained. No discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of
inventories were noticed on such physical verification of inventories.

As disclosed in Note 30.C the standalone financial statements, the Company has been
sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crore in aggregate from banks during the
year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company. The quarterly returns /
statements filed by the Company with such banks are in agreement with t_h:?"E&f; oks of

accounts of the Company. ) A\-vJ
i
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According to the infcrmation and explanation given to us, the company has nct made any
nvestment & not provided any Guarantees to companies, LLP, Partnership Firm, or any
other parties during the year and hence reporting under this clause of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has granted
unsecured loan to one body corporate covered in the register maintained under section 189
of the Companies Act, 2013, which is specified as below:

To Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, Associates:
~ (Amount in Thousand)

sr.No Nature ' Aggregate Amount Balance Outstanding as on
| ' | during the year 31.03.2022
1 TAssociate | 46421 10359 il

Te other than Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures, Associates:
(Amount in Thousand)

Sr.No MNature Aggregate Amount Balance Qutstanding as on
during the year 31.03.2022
Nil

The terms and conditions of the grant of loans and advances in the nature of loans is not
prejudicial to the interest of the company.
In respect of loan granted by the company, the schedule of repayment of principal and
payment of interest has not been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and
receipts of interest are regular.
The amount is not overdue, on the above loan and advances; hence this clause is not
applicable;
As no amount has been overdue and neither any loan renewed nor any fresh loan given to
settle any overdue amount and hence Reporting under this clause of the Order is not
applicable.
The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Details of the said loan or
advances is as follows;
o N _ _ (Amount in Thousand)

Sr.No Particulars | All Parties | Promoters | Related Parti=s
1. Aggregate amount of loans/

| advances in nature of loans
(A) Repayable on demand . - - -

(B)  Agreement does not specify any 46421 - 46421
terms or period of repayment | _ A
Total (A+B) 46421 - 46421

2. Percentage of loans/ advances in 100 - 100 !

nature of loans to the total loans (%) | . X

3.  Closing Balance as on 31.03.2022 10359 - 10359 |

e S g
Cft
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant cf
loans, making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

The company has not accepted deposits and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at
March 31, 2022 anid hence reporting under this clause of the Order are not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the
Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the Central
Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of the
apinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained.

According to thie information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, income Tax, Goods and Service
Tax, Custorns Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it with the
appropriate authorities.

According to information and explanation given to us, there were no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax,
Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears
as at March 31, 2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became
payable

(b) Details of statutory dues referred to in sub clause (a) above which have not been
deposited as on 31st March, 2022 on account of disputes are given befow:
Name of Nature of Forum Period to Amount Amount
Statute Dues where which  the involived Unpaid
dispute is Amount (Rs. in | (Rs. in
- pending Relates Thousand)  Thousand)
Income Tax [T  Matter ACIT AY. 2018- 12527 12527
under 19
Dispute

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that were surrendered
or disclosed as income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 {43 of 1961)
during the year and hence reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable.

In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any gqovernment authority.

The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no unutilised term loans at
the beginning of the year and hence, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable. :
e
‘.' )
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On an overall examination of the Financial Statements of the Company, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been utilised during the year for long-term purpnses
by the Companv.

‘The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of i< subsidiaries or associates during the year and hence, reporting under
this clause of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries or associate companies.

According to information and explanation given to us, the Company has not raised moneys
by way of initiai public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) and hence
reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debenture (fully or partly or optionally) during the year and hence reporting
under this clause of the Order is not applicable.

To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the
Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 has been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, during the year and upto the
date of this report.

As per the information & explanations and records produced before us by the management,
there are no whistle blower complaints received by the company during the year.

As the company is not Nidhi Company, and hence reporting under this clause is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanation given to us, all transactions with the related

parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details

have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc.,, as required by the applicable_
accounting standards.

In our opinion and based on our examination, the company is not required to have an
internal audit system as per provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and hence reporting
under this clause is not applicable.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by
the management, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or perscnh connected with him and hence provision of section 192 of Companies
Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

The company is not required to be registered under section 45-lA of the Reserve Bank ofl | |

india Act, 1934 and hence reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable I}r’

o e R Rl TR
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(xvi)  The Cornpany has rnot incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and
the immediately preceding financial year.

(;viii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
hence reporting under this clause of the Order is not applicable.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date ot
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that ail liabilities
falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

o\
(x%

(a) The company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of other than
ongoing projects, tc a Fund specified in Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 2013 till the date
of our report. However, the time period for such transfer i.e. six months of the expiry of the
financial year as permitted under the second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the
Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.

(b} There is no any ongoing project of CSR Activity during the year and hence reporting under

this clause of the Order is not applicable.

For Devadiya & Associates
Chartered Actountants

(CA=Znjay D¢ rle'.diya)

M. No: 1124p4

FRN No.: 123815W

UDIN; 23112495BGYWCY9732
Date: 20/07/2023

Place: Ahmedabad
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“Annexure B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of YIZUMI PRECISION
MACHINERY (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibilitv

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Comparnies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, hoth
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obt